
Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,
Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP

DYDD IAU, 23 MAWRTH 2017

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD 
O’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU SYDD I’W GYNNAL YN 
SIAMBR, 3 HEOL SPILMAN, CAERFYRDDIN AM 10.00 AM AR 
DYDD IAU, 30AIN MAWRTH, 2017 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI’R 
MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA ATODEDIG.

Mark James DYB
PRIF WEITHREDWR

AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA

Swyddog Democrataidd: Kevin Thomas
Ffôn (Llinell Uniongyrchol): 01267 224027
E-bost: kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk
Cyf: AD016-001

Pecyn Dogfennau



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU
13 AELOD

GRŴP PLAID CYMRU – 5 AELOD

1. Cynghorydd J.M. Charles
2. Cynghorydd J.K. Howell
3. Cynghorydd G.B. Thomas
4. Cynghorydd D.O. Tomos
5. Cynghorydd J. Thomas

GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL – 4 AELOD

1. Cynghorydd W.R.A. Davies
2. Cynghorydd H.I. Jones
3. Cynghorydd H.B. Shepardson 
4. Cynghorydd E.G. Thomas (Is-Gadeirydd )

GRŴP LLAFUR – 4 AELOD

1. Cynghorydd D.M. Cundy (Cadeirydd)
2. Cynghorydd S.L. Davies
3. Cynghorydd T. Devichand
4. Cynghorydd S. Matthews

 



AGENDA  
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 

3. DATGAN CHWIPIAID PLAID SYDD WEDI EU GWAHARDD 

4. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I 
LAW) 

5. GORCHYMYN DATBLYGU LLEOL DRAFFT – CANOL TREF 
LLANELLI 

5 - 54

6. ADRAN CYMUNEDAU GYNLLUN BUSNES YR ADRAN AM 2017-
2020 

55 - 102

7. DIWEDDARIAD BLYNYDDOL: GWASANAETHAU HAMDDEN 103 - 116

8. GWEITHREDU'R DDULL VANGUARD 117 - 124

9. LLOFNODI YN GOFNODAU CYWIR, COFNODION Y PWYLLGOR 
A GYNHALIWYD AR:- 

9 .1 30AIN IONAWR 2017 125 - 130
9 .2 17EG CHWEFROR 2017 131 - 134



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau
30 Mawrth 2017

Gorchymyn Datblygu Lleol Drafft – Canol Tref Llanelli  

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

I ystyried y Gorchymyn Datblygu Lleol arfaethedig am Ganol Tref Llanelli fel 
y paratowyd ar gyfer ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus (am o leiaf 6 wythnos)

Rhesymau: 
 I dderbyn yr adroddiad er ystyriaeth y pwyllgor.    Bydd unrhyw sylwadau yn cael eu 

hystyried cyn mabwysiadu’r ddogfen derfynol ynghyd a’r sylwadau hynny a dderbynir  
yn ystod yr Ymgynghoriad Cyhoeddus.  

 I adlewyrchu amcanion adfywio corfforaethol o fewn Canol Dref Llanelli
 I sicrhau bod y materion parhaus o fywiogrwydd a hyfywedd Canol Dref Llanelli yn 

derbyn ystyriaeth addas ac i ddefnyddio darpariaethau Polisi Cynllunio Cenedlaethol 
ynghylch y mater.

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:     
Nac oes (Wedi adrodd i’r Cyngor ar 22 Chwefror 2017) 

Aelod(au’r) Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio: Cyng. L Mair Stephens 
(Cynllunio)
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:

Adran yr Amgylchedd

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth:

Llinos Quelch

Awdur yr adroddiad:

Ian R Llewelyn

Swyddi:

Pennaeth Cynllunio

Rheolwr Blaen-gynllunio

Ffôn 01267 228659

E-bost 
LQuelch@Sirgar.gov.uk 

Ffôn 01267 228816

E-bost 
IRLlewelyn@Sirgar.gov.uk 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  5



Community Scrutiny Committee
30th March 2017

Draft Local Development Order – Llanelli Town Centre 

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This Report sets out progress and proposals in relation to the preparation of a Local 
Development Orders (LDO) within Llanelli Town Centre which will shortly be issued for 
public consultation.  This Consultation Draft LDO was approved for consultation purposes 
by Council on the 22nd February 2017.  A copy of the Consultation Draft LDO and its 
Statement of Reasons is attached to this report.

Background

2.1 It should be noted that this report has been prepared in the context of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (LDP) and its recommendations emerge from 
the need to continually monitor and assess its successful implementation.  In this respect 
the LDP Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) for 2015-2016 was received by full Council on 
the 14 December 2016. It should be noted that there is specific reference within the AMR 
to consideration being given to identifying a LDO within Llanelli Town Centre (Notably 
Policy Targets 17 and 18). 

2.2 The LDO will seek to consider and address issues of vacancy and activity on both ground 
and upper floors, and to examine the potential for alternative uses within a defined spatial 
area within the Llanelli Town Centre.

2. What is an LDO?

3.1 An LDO is made by Local Planning Authority (LPA) and grants planning permission for the 
type of development specified within the terms of the LDO, and within a defined spatial 
area.  It offers an LPA the opportunity in particular circumstances to streamline the 
planning process by removing the need for developers/applicants to make a planning 
application to the LPA.  This can allow an LPA to act proactively in response to locally 
specific circumstances within their area.   As stated above it should relate to a 
geographical area, and should reflect the focused purpose of the LDO and the nature of 
its intended outcomes.  An LDO may also be permanent or time limited depending on 
their objective, in this respect a time limited LDO provides for increased flexibility in fast 
changing and developing areas allowing for easy revision and updating, or to deliver a set 
objective over a fixed timescale. 

3.2 Certain types of development as set out within the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (PDO) are already permitted without the need for 
planning permission. The PDO grants a general permission for various types of relatively 

Tudalen 6



       small scale and normally non contentious development without the need to make a 
planning application.  LDOs can therefore be seen as an extension of permitted 
development, but decided upon locally in response to specific local circumstances.

3.3  For information an LPA can revoke an LDO at any time. Where it is proposed to modify a 
Local Development Order, re-consultation may be required.  

3.4 The appended report provides further information in respect of the Legislative and Policy 
Framework and outlines some of the core considerations and limitations in respect of an 
LDO. 

4.  Developing an LDO - Llanelli Town Centre 

4.1 Whilst the LDP sets a strong policy direction for retail within Carmarthenshire, the 
challenges facing Llanelli require specific consideration.  The opportunities exist to co-
ordinate with and develop upon the successful grant award under the Vibrant and Viable 
Places initiative and the ‘Opportunity Street’ scheme for properties at the eastern end of 
Stepney Street. In addition the establishment of a ‘Task Force’ to address matters 
surrounding the decline of the town centre and its environs, presents an opportune time 
evaluate options.  There is potential to review and develop an effective strategy to 
promote uses to complement the town centre and out of town retail offer.  In this respect it 
should not be predicated on an abandonment of the town centres overall retail focus, but 
the consideration of a flexible approach to complement activities which support the 
centres vitality and viability.  

4.2 As part of its consideration and preparation the LDO the Llanelli Town Centre Task Force 
has received regular reports on progress and potential outcomes with spin off discussions 
held with Llanelli Town Council and Llanelli Rural Council.  Further discussion have also 
be held with Natural Resources Wales, Dwr Cymru and representatives of the Business 
Improvement District.  Further engagement has also been held with representative of 
pertinent internal service areas in ensuring the effective operation of the LDO.

5.    Spatial Extent of the LDO

5.1 The extent of the town centre to which the Draft LDO’s provisions will relates is shown in 
the attached Draft LDO and the Statement of Reasons.   Further details are also included 
within the attached documents in relation to the extent of the Llanelli Conservation Area, 
the location of Listed Buildings and the extent of the C2 Flood Zone as defined through 
Technical Advice Note 15.

6.   What will the LDO Permit 

6.1 The following table (as contained within the attached Draft LDO and Statement of 
Reasons) outlines the relevant use classes which will be permitted or otherwise through 
the LDO and within its defined spatial area.

Tudalen 7



 WITHIN C2 ZONE OUTSIDE C2 ZONE

Use Class Ground Floor (GF)
Other Floors (OF)

(Excluding 
basements)

GF
OF

(Excluding 
basements)

A1 Shops Yes Yes Yes Yes
A2 Financial and 
Professional 
Services Yes Yes Yes Yes
A3 Restaurants and 
Cafes Yes Yes Yes Yes
A4 Drinking 
establishments (but 
not night clubs) Yes Yes Yes Yes
A5 Hot food 
takeaways Yes No Yes No
B1 Business (offices 
other than those 
within A2) No Yes No Yes
C1 Hotels, boarding 
houses and guest 
houses No Yes No Yes
C3 Dwellings 
(residential incl. 
flats) No Yes No Yes
D1 Non-residential 
institutions (Note - 
LDO excludes Law 
Courts, Church Halls 
and Libraries) No Yes Yes Yes
D2 Assembly and 
leisure buildings 
(Note LDO only 
permits gymnasiums 
and area for indoor 
sports or recreations 
- except for motor 
sports, or where 
firearms are used) No Yes Yes Yes
Other (specified 
sui) Launderettes 
and taxi businesses 
only Yes Yes Yes Yes

Further information in relation to the Use Class Order can be viewed through the following 
link:

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200130/common_projects/9/change_of_use 

Tudalen 8

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200130/common_projects/9/change_of_use


7.    Lifetime of the LDO 

7.1 It is proposed that the LDO operate for an initial period of three years from its adoption. 
This period will however be subject to ongoing review and may be extended or reduced in 
light of the success or failure of the LDO. 

7.2 Development that commences while the LDO is in effect may be completed and/or 
continued after this three-year period (subject to the conditions of the LDO). Once the 
LDO has expired, however, no new changes of use will be allowed under its terms 
without conventional planning permission. Reference should be had to the content of 
Appendix A1 in relation to the legislative framework in respect of revocation and revision 
and the potential for compensation should an LDO be withdrawn.

8.   Operation of the LDO

8.1 Where a ‘development’ is proposed which is within the LDO area and conforms with the 
schedule of approved use classes (as set out in the table above) a certificate of 
conformity will be issued by the Council.  Applicants will be required to submit their 
proposals and pay the nominal fee to the LPA.  No change of use permitted by the LDO 
shall commence until an application for a Certificate of Conformity has been submitted to, 
and approved in writing by, the LPA.  This certificate would allow a change of use 
permitted by the LDO to proceed without the need to apply for planning permission but 
will be limited to the uses set out in the LDO and its provisions. 

8.2  Prior to commencement it should be noted that proposals may be required to satisfy other 
pertinent legislative provisions, for example Building Regulations, Licensing and 
Environmental Health. 

8.3 The initial consultations undertaken to date has indicated a requirement to develop a 
notification system whereby key consultees (e.g. Town/Rural Councils, Dwr Cymru or 
Natural Resources Wales) are informed of LDO proposals. This reflects that such bodies 
would ordinarily be notified/consulted through the planning application process.

9.   Monitoring and Measuring Success 

9.1 Throughout the three-year period, Carmarthenshire County Council will assess the impact 
of the LDO and decide whether to (i) renew the LDO with no revisions, (ii) renew the LDO 
with new terms and conditions or (iii) revoke the LDO.   In this respect, the LDO will be 
considered a success if two or more of the following changes have occurred in the LDO 
area:

• Five or more vacant ground-floor units have been issued with Certificates of 
Conformity allowing a change of use (source: Forward Planning); 

• Annual footfall has increased within the LDO area (source: Council Regeneration 
Department footfall counters); 

Tudalen 9



• The number of vacant ground-floor units has decreased (source: Forward    Planning);

• Three or more upper floor vacant units have been issued with Certificates of 
Conformity which would allow them to brought back into use – this includes flats and 
residential uses – use class C3 – (source: Forward Planning).

10.   Evidential Requirements and Documents

10.1 As part of a co-ordinated strategic approach evidence is being developed in relation to 
matters of Flood Risk (to satisfy the provisions of TAN 15) and Infrastructure as part of 
the Llanelli Town Centre Masterplan being prepared through the Regeneration and 
Policy Division.  This evidence is necessary to support the LDO’s adoption and its 
effective operation and will be required ahead of any public consultation.

10.2 The consultants commissioned in respect of the Town Centre Masterplan will also advise 
upon and inform any other required supporting documentation – including 
Environmental Impact Assessment and Habitats Regulations- Test of Likely Significant 
Effect (TLSE). A screening as part of the Equalities Impact Assessment process will 
form part of the supporting documentation. 

10.3 The LDO is based on changes of use within existing buildings and as such it is not 
foreseen that it will be subject to the MoU and betterment requirements.

10.4 Such evidence will be published in conjunction with the consultation on any future LDO.  
Reference is also made to the Carmarthenshire Retail Study Update 2015 and the 
Carmarthenshire Town Centre Retail Audit 2016.

11.   Next Steps

11.1 It is requested that Scrutiny Committee consider the Draft LDO and make comment as 
appropriate. Any comments raised will be noted and considered alongside those 
received during the public consultation period.

         There will follow a minimum 6 week public consultation during Spring/Summer 2017.  
Representations received during this period will be subsequently considered and 
reported back to a future meeting of Full Council for consideration prior to its formal 
adoption and implementation. 

11.2 This will be accompanied by the publication of the appropriate evidence and any other 
supporting information.  

11.3 As part of its preparatory process update reports will be provided through the Llanelli 
Task Force and RDT as appropriate.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES 

Tudalen 10



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:      L Quelch                                                             Head of Planning                           

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

Reflects the provisions of National Planning Policy and the evidential information set out 
within the report support and will where appropriate be utilised in the implementation of the 
LDO and will inform a review of the Local Development Plan.  The proposed LDO and LDP 
where appropriate expresses in land use terms the objectives of the Integrated 
Community Strategy for Carmarthenshire 2012-17.  Retail considerations, play an 
important role in delivering of the outcomes, particularly Supporting Opportunities for the 
Building of Economically Viable and Sustainable Communities.   National and local 
planning policies seek to promote the principles of sustainability and sustainable 
development by facilitating the creation of communities and local economies which are 
more sustainable.

The integration of sustainability and the evidential requirements in preparing the LDO 
ensures an iterative approach to policy making which ensures sustainability is at its heart 
and that it is reflective of the requirements emanating from the Wellbeing and Future 
Generations Act.

Tudalen 11



2. Legal  

A Local Planning Authority may issue an LDO under section 61 (A, B, C and D) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as inserted by section 40(1) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 and amended by sections 188 and 238 and Schedule 13 of the Planning Act 
2008.  This power became effective in Wales on 30 April 2012. The Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 (DMPWO), sets out the procedural 
requirements for making LDOs, including preparation, notices, publicity, consultation, and 
adoption.

Guidance on the procedures relating to the use of LDOs is contained in Welsh Government 
Circular 003/2012: Guidance on using a Local Development Order.

3. Finance  
Financial costs (including preparation of the LDO) will be covered through the financial 
provisions in place - including reserves.  Established provisions are in place in relation to the 
gathering and apportionment of financial contributions from developer contributions.  The 
impact on such contributions is unknown and can only be established once the extent of any 
LDO is understood.

The implication on planning fees through the removal of the need for planning permission is at 
this stage unknown.  Whilst this is not expected to be significant it will be off-set by the 
economic and regeneration benefits accrued through the successful implementation of the 
LDO.  Reference is made to the potential that Compensation may be payable should an LDO 
be subsequently withdrawn.  The potential for this is subject to the provisions of statutory 
instruments. 

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below

Signed:   L Quelch                                                               Head of Planning                                              

Tudalen 12



(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)

1. Scrutiny Committee –are being consulted on the 30th March 2017 and comments 
raised will be noted and further considered alongside those received through the formal 
public consultation process.

2. Local Member(s)   - Members will be consulted as part of the formal consultation process.

3.Community / Town Council - Llanelli Town Council and Llanelli Rural Council have 
been consulted as part of the initial preparatory process.  They will also be a formal 
consultee as part of the consultation process. 

4. Relevant Partners - Identified partners including the membership of the Llanelli Task 
Force sub group have been party to discussion and consultation, as have identified 
external technical consultees.  

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - Contributions have been 
sought from relevant internal consultees. 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

Carmarthenshire Local 
Development Plan

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/resid
ents/planning/policies-development-plans/local-
development-plan/

Annual Monitoring 
Report 2015/16

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/164
3860/Annual-monitoring-report-201516-AMR-
Document-for-web.pdf

Carmarthenshire 
Retail Study Update 
2015

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/164
3869/2015-Retail-Study-Update-Carms-Retail-
Study-Update-ENGLISH-NEW-COVER.PDF

Carmarthenshire -
Town Centre Retail 
Audit 2016

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/164
3878/Carmarthenshire-Retail-Audit-2016-Final-
Retail-Audit-2016.pdf 

Tudalen 13

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/local-development-plan/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/local-development-plan/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/local-development-plan/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643860/Annual-monitoring-report-201516-AMR-Document-for-web.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643860/Annual-monitoring-report-201516-AMR-Document-for-web.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643860/Annual-monitoring-report-201516-AMR-Document-for-web.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643869/2015-Retail-Study-Update-Carms-Retail-Study-Update-ENGLISH-NEW-COVER.PDF
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643869/2015-Retail-Study-Update-Carms-Retail-Study-Update-ENGLISH-NEW-COVER.PDF
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643869/2015-Retail-Study-Update-Carms-Retail-Study-Update-ENGLISH-NEW-COVER.PDF
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643878/Carmarthenshire-Retail-Audit-2016-Final-Retail-Audit-2016.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643878/Carmarthenshire-Retail-Audit-2016-Final-Retail-Audit-2016.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1643878/Carmarthenshire-Retail-Audit-2016-Final-Retail-Audit-2016.pdf


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 
 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER: LLANELLI TOWN CENTRE 

STATEMENT OF REASONS (CONSULTATION DRAFT) 

CONTENTS  

1.0 Legislation and Policy  

2.0 Overview  

3.0 Justification for the creation of the Llanelli Town Centre LDO  

4.0 Lifetime of the LDO 

5.0 Permitted Uses  

6.0 Policy context and expected impact  

7.0 Conditions  

8.0 Notes  

9.0 Compliance  

10.0 Results and Monitoring 

11.0 Planning contributions/Community Infrastructure Levy 

12.0 Risk Assessment  

13.0 Plan of the LDO Area 

14.0 Plan of Listed Buildings and Conservation Area 

15.0 Development Advice Maps (TANs) – (January 2015) for LDO Area 

16.0 Key Contacts 

 

APPENDICIES 

A1 Application form for LDO 

A2 Sample Certificate of Conformity  

A3 Notification Procedure  

A4 Consultation Report (to be prepared post consultation)  

 

  

Tudalen 15



2 
 

1.0 Legislation and policy 

1.1 Local Planning Authorities may issue a Local Development Order (LDO) under section 

61 (A, B, C and D) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as inserted by section 

40(1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and amended by sections 188 

and 238 and Schedule 13 of the Planning Act 2008. This power became effective in Wales 

on 30 April 2012.  

1.2 The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 state that permission granted 

by a LDO will constitute “planning permission” (regulation 5(3)(a)ii). As a consequence, 

an LDO may obviate the need to submit a planning application for a certain type of 

development, but it will not prevent a levy from being charged, when appropriate, under 

any prospective Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule. It should be 

noted that at the time of writing no CIL charge is in place within Carmarthenshire. 

1.3 Welsh Government Circular 003/2012 states that an LDO may not grant planning 

permission for development that would:  

a) Have a significant effect on a European Site or a European Offshore Marine 

Site (either alone or in combination with other projects) unless the development 

is connected to, or necessary for, the management of the site;  

b) Constitute “Schedule 1 development” or “Schedule 2 development” within 

the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 

Regulations 1999; or  

c) Affect a listed building.  

1.4 In relation to point b) above, reference is made to the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2016.  These supersede the 

1999 Regulations and specifically make provision for Local Development Orders to grant 

Tudalen 16



3 
 

planning permission for Schedule 2 EIA development in certain circumstances.  In this 

respect the Schedule 2 EIA screening thresholds for ‘Urban Development Projects’ 

increased from 0.5ha to: 

 1ha if the development does not include housing; or 

 The construction of over 150 new houses; or 

 An overall development area exceeding 5ha. 

1.5 The LDO has been subject to a screening opinion for the purposes of the 

Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations and does not constitute “Schedule 1 

development” or “Schedule 2 development”. A Test of Likely Significant Effect (TLSE) for 

the purposes of the Habitats Regulations has concluded that the LDO will have no 

significant effect (alone or in combination) with a European Site or a European Offshore 

Marine Site. The LDO has also been screened as part of the Equalities Impact 

Assessment process.  

1.6 The LDO does not require its own Sustainability Appraisal – Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SA-SEA) because the LDO is deemed to be an elaboration upon the 

provisions of the Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2006 — 2021( Adopted 

December 2014). The LDP has already been subject to SA-SEA along with a Plan level 

Habitats Regulations Assessment. 

1.7   The draft LDO, along with these draft summary of reasons, are being made available 

for public consultation for a minimum of six weeks between in accordance with procedural 

and regulatory requirements. There is also a suite of supporting documentation available 

for reference, include those referenced above - along with a Strategic Flood 

Consequence Assessment and Drainage Strategy. 

Tudalen 17



4 
 

2.0 Overview  

2.1 A Local Planning Authority (LPA) may use a LDO to grant blanket planning permission 

for non-contentious, though not necessarily minor, forms of “development” / changes in 

use within a defined spatial area.  

2.2 The Llanelli LDO is shown on the map in Section 13.  

2.3 The LDO grants conditional planning permission for specified uses in ground and 

upper-floor units. It is envisaged that the LDO, in permitting a wide range of compatible 

uses, will help to increase occupancy levels and footfall in the town centre.  

2.4 The LDO permits only certain changes of use (as listed in Section 5) within the area 

identified on the Plan in Section 13).  

2.5 In order to protect the living conditions of existing and future residents in the town 

centre, every applicant must ensure that they satisfy the pertinent provisions within the 

relevant legislation. For example, building regulations and environmental health & public 

protection. For reference, a list of key contacts is provided in Section 16. 

2.6 After three years, the LDO will be considered a success if two or more of the following 

changes have occurred in the LDO area: 

 Five or more vacant ground-floor units have been issued with Certificates of Conformity 

allowing a change of use (source: Forward Planning) ;  

 Annual footfall has increased within the LDO area (source: Council Regeneration 

Department footfall counters);  

 The number of vacant ground-floor units has decreased (source: Forward Planning ); 

 Three or more upper floor vacant units have been issued with Certificates of Conformity 

which would allow them to brought back into use – this includes flats and residential uses 

– use class C3 - (source: Forward Planning ).  

Tudalen 18



5 
 

3.0 Justification for the creation of the Llanelli Town Centre LDO  

3.1 Where a retail centre is demonstrating signs of decline, national planning policy 

makes provision for that decline to be managed and/or for action to be taken to regenerate 

a centre. In such circumstances an LDO may (as part of a collective approach) contribute 

to local economic development and regeneration, helping make places more attractive 

and more competitive, helping in incentivising development and reducing vacancy rates. 

There is clear evidence that Llanelli town centre faces specific challenges.  Whilst this 

may not impact wholly across the town centre, there are areas where implications of 

changing retail patterns may be most prevalent often manifesting in the form of long term 

vacancies. 

3.2 The Genecon Study on Town Centres and Retail Dynamics in Wales undertaken for 

Welsh Government (WG) identified Llanelli as a case study to show the impacts of out of 

centre retail development. Published in April 2014, the study indicated a 27.9% town 

centre vacancy rate (2012), highlighting one of the main effects of town centre decline 

being an increased pressure to change A1 uses in the town centre to A2 and A3 uses. It 

emphasises that from a planning perspective, Llanelli demonstrates the challenge when 

a centre has declined to a point where the viability of retaining an A1 retail core could be 

brought into question. It notes that the geographical shift in Llanelli’s retail sector to a 

major new out of town Retail Park has placed pressure for changes of use from retail 

within the town centre. 

3.3 In order to further understand the shopper and visitor activity on Street Shopper 

Surveys were carried out during weekdays and a Saturday in June 2015 both within 

Llanelli Town Centre and Parc Trostre.  In summary, the survey indicated that the majority 

of respondents (28%) visiting Llanelli town centre did so primarily to use services such as 

the post office, bank, hairdressers etc.  Whilst other key reasons listed were a 

combination of food and non food shopping (16%) and just food shopping (15%), it should 

Tudalen 19



6 
 

be noted that 10% of respondents were visiting for work/business purposes and 9% for 

social/leisure reasons.  

3.4 In relation to visitors to the town centre, the emerging trend is to a diverse and mixed 

offer where a range of uses are utilised by visitors.  This is in contrast to Parc Trostre 

where the survey indicates that the majority of visits are focused on food and non-food 

shopping and just food shopping. 

3.5 This can be seen as an indication of a shifting role for the Town Centre, where the 

potential to accommodate a versatile mix of day and night uses can complement both its 

existing retail function and, rather than compete against, that which is available at Parc 

Trostre.  

3.6 In transport and sustainability terms, it should be noted that 44% arrived by a car and 

14% by a bus at Llanelli Town Centre which contrasts with the 87% arriving by car in Parc 

Trostre.  

3.7 Reference is drawn to the content of the 2015-16 LDP Annual Monitoring Report 

(AMR). This represents the first AMR post adoption of the LDP and sets the baseline for 

future AMRs and the consideration of any future review or amendments to the Plan. 

Regard should also be had to the recently published Carmarthenshire updated Retail 

Study 2015 and the Carmarthenshire Town Centre Retail Audit 2016. 

3.8 The Town Centre Retail Audit 2016 conducted as part of ongoing LDP policy 

monitoring indicates 73.8% of units in occupied as A1 retail (based on retail frontage).  

However, whilst this is a healthy indication of retail occupancy, it is accompanied by a 

16.7% vacancy rate with a further 9.5% in non-retail use (A2 and A3).  It should be noted 

that this includes the St Elli Centre which exhibits a high level of retail use with low 

vacancy levels.   

Tudalen 20



7 
 

3.9 Taking that area of the Retail Core outside the St Elli Centre ‘focused around Stepney 

Street and Vaughan Street’ the levels of A1 occupancy drops to 66% with vacancy levels 

at 24%. This represents a marked change with areas of long term vacancy clustered 

within the eastern end of Stepney Street. 

3.10 That area designated within the LDP as Retail Frontage, reflects the greater flexibility 

attached to the scale of non-retail units within this area.  This demonstrates a greater mix 

of use types with some 49.5% occupied by A1 retail with 15% vacancy with 26% in non 

retail (A2 and A3) and 9.5% in other uses. 

3.11 National Planning Policy reflects that in some circumstances where there has been 

an over emphasis on A1 uses these may undermine a centre’s prospects, with potential 

consequences such as higher vacancy rates. In such circumstances the role of uses other 

than A1 (retail) in increasing diversity and reducing vacancy may be considered. This may 

be achieved through a rationalising of boundaries, allowing appropriate changes of use 

whilst focusing A1 (retail) uses in a more concentrated area.   

3.12 In this context an LDO can facilitate changes of use, alterations, extensions etc, 

replacing many minor planning applications which are routinely approved. LDOs can be 

particularly effective when combined with other regeneration proposals to bring about 

more comprehensive improvements to centres, including as part of environmental and 

infrastructure enhancements. To this end, the LDO can be seen as a wider package of 

policy interventions in the Town Centre which the County Council is undertaking in 

partnership under the auspices of the Task Force. 

3.13 Whilst the LDP sets a strong policy direction for retail within a Carmarthenshire, the 

challenges facing Llanelli require specific consideration.  The opportunities exist to co-

ordinate with and develop upon the successful grant award under the Vibrant and Viable 

Places initiative and the ‘Opportunity Street’ scheme for properties at the eastern end of 

Stepney Street. In addition the establishment of a ‘Task Force’ tasked with addressing 

Tudalen 21



8 
 

matters surrounding the decline of the town centre and its environs, presents an 

opportune time evaluate options.  There is potential to review and develop an effective 

strategy to promote uses to complement the town centre and out of town retail offer.  In 

this respect it should not be predicated on an abandonment of the town centres overall 

retail focus, but the consideration of a flexible approach to complement activities which 

support the centres vitality and viability. The platform for engagement, together with a 

direct policy intervention, is also confirmed by the establishment of the Llanelli Business 

Improvement District (BID) in 2016. Reference is given to the Task Force Policy Themes 

and Actions whereby the exploration of an opportunity for an LDO is listed as Action 4 

under the Environment and Access Theme.  

3.14 For the time being, developers who wish to change the use of a town centre unit 

must operate within the legislative and policy parameters. This means that most changes 

of use, no matter how desirable, require planning permission. The practice of allowing a 

valuable unit to remain empty for up to eight weeks while a planning application is 

processed is inimical to economic growth. By creating a more permissive planning regime 

in the town centre, the LDO will seek to promote a living town centre environment.  

3.15 In scoping and drafting this LDO it was considered necessary to clearly establish its 

purpose, scope and extent linking into the regeneration and other objectives.  

Discussions, including input from local members and interested groups, were undertaken 

at an early stage during 2016. In this respect, it was considered essential to consult 

informally with communities, statutory consultees and other stakeholders, with the 

emphasis on the future of the area rather than the specific details of the LDO.  This 

allowed an opportunity to build on the partnership work to date. There has also been an 

ongoing liaison with the Task Force along with Llanelli Town Council and Llanelli Rural 

Council. There has also been a requirement to undertake an iterative and collaborative 

liaison with officers from Natural Resources Wales (NRW) and Dwr Cymru Welsh Water 

(DCWW). 

Tudalen 22



9 
 

3.16 Such liaison, along with a clear understanding of evidential and legislative 

requirements,  have allowed the LDO spatial extent, along with the draft schedule of 

permitted uses, to be developed. 

   

  

Tudalen 23



10 
 

4.0 Lifetime of the LDO  

4.1 The LDO is active for a period of three years from its adoption. This period will 

however be subject to ongoing review and may be extended or reduced in light of the 

success or failure of the LDO.  

4.2 Development that commences while the LDO is in effect may be completed and/or 

continued after this three-year period. Once the LDO has expired, however, no new 

changes of use will be allowed under its terms without conventional planning permission. 

Towards the end of the three-year period, Carmarthenshire County Council will assess 

the impact of the LDO and decide whether to (i) renew the LDO with no revisions, (ii) 

renew the LDO with new terms and conditions or (iii) revoke the LDO.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 24



11 
 

5.0 Permitted Uses   

5.1 The following table outlines the relevant use classes which will be permitted or 

otherwise through the LDO and within its defined spatial area. 

 

WITHIN C2 ZONE OUTSIDE C2 ZONE 

Use Class Ground Floor (GF) 

Other Floors 
(OF) 
(Excluding 
basements) 

GF 
OF 
(Excluding 
basements) 

A1 Shops Yes Yes Yes Yes 

A2 Financial and 
Professional Services Yes Yes Yes Yes 

A3 Restaurants and 
Cafes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

A4 Drinking 
establishments (but not 
night clubs) Yes Yes Yes Yes 

A5 Hot food takeaways Yes No Yes No 

B1 Business (offices 
other than those within 
A2) No Yes No Yes 

C1 Hotels, boarding 
houses and guest 
houses No Yes No Yes 

C3 Dwellings 
(residential incl. flats) No Yes No Yes 

D1 Non-residential 
institutions (Note - LDO 
excludes Law Courts, 
Church Halls and 
Libraries) No Yes Yes Yes 

D2 Assembly and 
leisure buildings (Note 
LDO only permits 
gymnasiums and area 
for indoor sports or 
recreations - except for 
motor sports, or where 
firearms are used) No Yes Yes Yes 

Other (specified sui) 
Launderettes and taxi 
businesses only Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 

Further information in relation to the Use Class Order can be viewed through the following 
link: 

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200130/common_projects/9/change_of_use  

 

Tudalen 25

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200130/common_projects/9/change_of_use


12 
 

6.0 Policy context and expected impact  

6.1 The relevant Development Plan for Llanelli is the Carmarthenshire LDP. To the extent 

that development plan policies are material to an application for planning permission, the 

decision must be taken in accordance with the development plan unless there are 

material considerations that indicate otherwise (Section 37(6) : Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004).  

6.1.1 Given that proposals will be permitted under this LDO without the need for planning 

permission, it is important to note the LDO’s overall linkages and compliance with the 

LDP. This also confirms that an SA-SEA on the LDO is not required (see paragraph 1.5). 

This Section reviews the LDO against the 14 LDP Strategic Objectives (SO) and those 

LDP Strategic Policies (SP) of relevance. There is also commentary provided in relation 

to relevant Area Wide (AW) policies. 

LDP - Strategic Objectives  

6.1.2 SO1: To protect and enhance the diverse character, distinctiveness, safety and 

vibrancy of the County’s communities by ensuring sympathetic, sustainable, and high 

quality standards of design. 

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO will be consistent with efforts to promote a vibrant, 

safer and diverse town centre which acts as a catalyst to the wider regeneration of the 

area. 

6.1.3 SO2: To ensure that the principles of spatial sustainability are upheld by: 

(a) enabling development in locations which minimise the need to travel and 

contribute towards sustainable communities and economies and respecting 

environmental limits, and 

Tudalen 26



13 
 

(b) to wherever possible encourage new development on previously developed 

land which has been suitably remediated. 

Expected impact of LDO: By concentrating developmental opportunities within the town 

centre, which is accessible to pedestrians and users of public transport, the LDO will be 

consistent with efforts to promote sustainable development.  

6.1.4 SO3: To make provision for an appropriate mix of quality homes; access to which 

will be based around the principles of sustainable socio-economic development and 

equality of opportunities. 

Expected impact of LDO: By providing opportunities for upper floor conversion to 

residential, the LDO will be consistent with efforts to provide a range and mix of homes 

across the area as well as promoting vibrant and living town centres.  

6.1.5 SO4: To ensure that the natural, built and historic environment is safeguarded and 

enhanced and that habitats and species are protected. 

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO does not permit any building operations; therefore, it 

will have no impact on the appearance of the built environment or the natural 

environment. Anyone wishing to make alterations to a listed building would still require 

the relevant consent. 

6.1.6 SO5: To make a significant contribution towards tackling the cause and adapting to 

the effect of climate change by promoting the efficient use and safeguarding of resources. 

Expected impact of LDO: By concentrating commercial uses in the town centre, which is 

accessible to pedestrians and users of public transport, the LDO will be consistent with 

efforts to promote sustainable development. It will promote the appropriate use and/or re 

use of existing buildings (including but not exclusively vacant buildings). 

Tudalen 27



14 
 

6.1.7 SO6: To assist in widening and promoting education and skills training opportunities 

for all. 

Expected impact of LDO: A more permissive planning regime in the town centre may 

provide opportunities for additional facilities.  

6.1.8 SO7: To assist in protecting and enhancing the Welsh Language and the County’s 

unique cultural identity, assets and social fabric. 

Expected impact of LDO: A more permissive planning regime in the town centre may well 

generate additional opportunities and facilities for promoting the County’s special 

characteristics.  

6.1.9 SO8: To assist with widening and promoting opportunities to access community, 

leisure and recreational facilities as well as the countryside. 

Expected impact of LDO: A more permissive planning regime in the town centre may well 

generate additional opportunities and facilities.  

6.1.10 SO9: To ensure that the principles of equal opportunities and social inclusion are 

upheld by promoting access to a high quality and diverse mix of public services, 

healthcare, shops, leisure facilities and work opportunities. 

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO is designed to encourage a mix of appropriate and 

complementary town centre uses. This would seek to encourage social and/or physical 

inclusion. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 28



15 
 

6.1.11 SO10: To contribute to the delivery of an integrated and sustainable transport 

system that is accessible to all. 

Expected impact of LDO: By concentrating developmental opportunities within the town 

centre, which is accessible to pedestrians and users of public transport, the LDO will be 

consistent with efforts to promote sustainable development. 

6.1.12 SO11: To encourage investment & innovation (both rural and urban) by: 

(a) making an adequate provision of land to meet identified need; and, 

(b) making provision for the business and employment developmental needs of 

indigenous /new employers, particularly in terms of hard & soft infrastructural 

requirements (including telecommunications/ICT); and, 

(c) making provision for the infrastructural requirements associated with the 

delivery of new homes particularly in terms of hard & soft infrastructural 

requirements (including foul and surface water); and, 

(d) adhering to the principles of sustainable development and social inclusion in 

terms of the location of new development. 

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO is designed to encourage a mix of appropriate and 

complementary town centre uses. It is considered that a more permissive planning regime 

will provide opportunities to increase employment opportunities. 

6.1.13 SO12: To promote and develop sustainable & high quality all year round tourism 

related initiatives. 

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO is designed to encourage a mix of appropriate and 

complementary town centre uses.  It is considered that a more permissive planning 

regime will provide opportunities to increase visitor economy related opportunities.  

Tudalen 29



16 
 

6.1.14 SO13: To assist with the development and management of safe and vibrant places 

& spaces across the County. 

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO will be consistent with efforts to promote a vibrant, 

safer and diverse living town centre which acts as a catalyst to the wider regeneration of 

the area. 

6.1.15 SO14: To assist with the delivery and management of mixed & sustainable 

communities by: 

(a) promoting safe, vibrant and socially interactive places; and, 

(b) promoting the utilisation of local services and produce whenever possible. 

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO will be consistent with efforts to promote a vibrant, 

safer and diverse living town centre which acts as a catalyst to the wider regeneration of 

the area. 

LDP – Selected/Relevant Strategic Policies  

6.1.16  SP1: Sustainable Places and Spaces       

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO will be consistent with efforts to promote a vibrant, 

safer and diverse town centre which acts as a catalyst to the wider regeneration of the 

area. By concentrating upon town centre appropriate uses, which are accessible to 

pedestrians and users of public transport, the LDO will be consistent with efforts to 

promote sustainable development. 

6.1.17 SP2: Climate Change         

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO will promote the re use of existing buildings (including 

but not exclusively vacant buildings). In relation to flood risk, the LDO is supported by a 

Strategic Flood Consequence Assessment (SFCA) and as such there is potential for the 

Tudalen 30



17 
 

LDOs implementation to mitigate and manage given that a large part of the town is already 

located within Development Advice Map Zone C2. No Highly Vulnerable Development is 

permitted on the ground floors by the LDO. 

6.1.18 SP3: Sustainable Distribution- Settlement Framework     

Expected impact of LDO: The local and regional importance of Llanelli within the LDP is 

recognised given its classification as a Growth Area. The LDO will be consistent with this 

classification in seeking to facilitate a vibrant town centre.  

6.1.19 SP5: Housing          

Expected impact of LDO: By providing opportunities for upper floor conversion to 

residential, the LDO will be consistent with efforts to provide a range and mix of homes 

across the area. The LDO will not create any new buildings, but it will encourage 

appropriate conversions in the town centre, thus contributing to the housing supply.  

6.1.20 SP6: Affordable Housing         

Expected impact of LDO:  By providing opportunities for upper floor conversion to 

residential, the LDO will be consistent with efforts to provide a range and mix of homes 

across the area, including affordable housing. 

6.1.21 SP8: Retail           

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO will be consistent with the aim of protecting and 

enhancing the role of Llanelli as a principal centre. It is hoped that a more permissive 

planning regime will help ensure its continued attractiveness as a destination with a strong 

retail offer.   

 

 

Tudalen 31



18 
 

6.1.22 SP9: Transportation          

Expected impact of LDO: By concentrating commercial uses in the town centre, which is 

accessible to pedestrians and users of public transport, the LDO will be consistent with 

efforts to promote sustainable development. 

6.1.23 SP13: Protection and Enhancement of the Built and Historic Environment  

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO does not permit any building operations; therefore, it 

will have no impact on the appearance of the built environment. Anyone wishing to make 

alterations to a listed building would still require the relevant consent. 

6.1.24 SP14: Protection and Enhancement of the Natural Environment    

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO does not permit any building operations; therefore, it 

will have no impact. In relation to the Habitats Regulations, the LDO has been subject to 

Test of Likely Significant Effect. 

6.1.25 SP15: Tourism and the Visitor Economy       

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO will be consistent with the aim of protecting and 

enhancing the role of Llanelli in the tourism hierarchy. It is hoped that a more permissive 

planning regime will help provide opportunities in relation to the visitor economy.  

6.1.26 SP16:  Community Facilities         

Expected impact of LDO: A more permissive planning regime in the town centre may 

provide opportunities as part of a living town centre environment.  

 

 

 

Tudalen 32



19 
 

6.1.27 SP17: Infrastructure          

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO does not permit any building operations; therefore, it 

will have no impact. In relation to supply and treatment of water, the LDO is accompanied 

by appropriate evidence.  

LDP –Relevant Area Wide Policies   

6.1.28 GP1: Sustainability and High Quality Design 

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO does not permit any building operations; therefore, it 

will have no impact on the appearance of the built environment. A more permissive 

planning regime can however assist in countering instances of vacant units and dead 

spaces with a view to enabling a more vibrant street scene with active frontages.  

6.1.29 GP3: Planning Obligations  

Expected impact of LDO: Permitted uses will not be required to make financial 

contributions through current planning obligation provisions. Developments may however 

make a voluntary contribution as appropriate. However, any future implementation of CIL 

may result in a requirement for contributions to be sought.  

6.1.30 GP4: Infrastructure and New Development  

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO does not permit any building operations; therefore, it 

will have no impact. In relation to supply and treatment of water, the LDO is accompanied 

by appropriate evidence.  

6.1.31 RT1:  Retailing Hierarchy        

Expected impact of LDO: The LDO will be consistent with the aim of protecting and 

enhancing the role of Llanelli as a principal centre. It is recognised within this statement 

of reasons and as supported by evidence that Llanelli Town Centre currently exhibits 

Tudalen 33



20 
 

signs of decline. It is considered at this point that the Town Centre requires specific 

consideration and policy intervention. It is hoped that a more permissive planning regime 

will help ensure its continued attractiveness as a destination with a strong retail offer. 

6.1.32 RT2: Principal Centres (Growth Areas): Primary Retail Frontage  

Expected impact of LDO: The policy is intended to resist any further over-concentration 

of non-retail (non A1) uses in the Primary Retail Frontages.  The Primary Retail Frontage 

confirms that the principle function should be retail. The policy also states that proposals 

involving the change of use and / or re-development of a ground floor frontage to 

residential are not considered compatible with a ‘town centre’ location. Reference is 

however made to Section 3 of this Statement of Reasons (Policy Justification). 

Furthermore, paragraph 6.4.3 of the LDP written statement states that: “Whilst shopping 

will be expected to continue as the principal activity in town centres, it is only one of the 

factors which contribute to their wellbeing.  It is evident that retail policies cannot be 

divorced from the broader functions of the larger towns as centres for other services and 

facilities, including food and drink establishments (cafes, restaurants, public houses, etc.) 

and commercial leisure developments.  A diversity of uses in town centres assists in 

promoting their continued viability and, particularly with regard to leisure uses, contributes 

to the vitality of a successful evening economy”.  This is particularly pertinent in respect 

of Llanelli Town Centre with the challenges currently being exhibited. Paragraph 6.4.19 

of the LDP written statement outlines that: “As part of the monitoring and review process, 

the Council will undertake an annual survey of uses within the identified town centres 

including the Primary Retail Frontages.  The survey will not only look at the nature of 

occupants but also the levels of vacancy which may occur.  The survey together with 

future updates of the retail study will inform policy updates and supplementary guidance 

emerging from any changes in town centre conditions.” In this respect, the 2016 

Carmarthenshire Town Centre Audit highlights the challenges in relation to vacancy etc. 

being exhibited within certain parts of Llanelli  Town Centre. The introduction of the LDO 

Tudalen 34



21 
 

will mean that the potential conflict between the LPA and a proponent of non-A1 use 

within Llanelli Town Centre will be removed, subject to the proposal meeting the 

requirements of the LDO. It should be noted that the LDO does not permit changes of use 

of ground floor units to residential. It is also recognised that the designation of the LDO 

reflects the emphasis within Planning Policy Wales. 

6.1.33 RT3: Principal Centres (Growth Areas): Secondary Retail Frontage  

Expected impact of LDO: Whilst the policy recognises the importance of a strong retail 

element and seeks to control the extent of non-retail uses to protect the general retail 

character of central streets and maintain continuity of shopping frontages, it does also 

acknowledge the contribution that a complementary retail, leisure and business offer can 

make in increasing the overall attractiveness of the town centre.  The introduction of the 

LDO will mean that the requirement to provide a policy justification and/or challenging the 

LPA’s position within the planning application process will not be required as the process 

would be streamlined and simplified.  

6.1.34 RT4:  Principal Centres (Growth Areas): Town Centre Zone   

Expected impact of LDO: The policy creates opportunities for the introduction of beneficial 

economic commercial uses to properties which may otherwise become rundown or 

vacant.  It permits the change of use or redevelopment of shops to other appropriate town 

centre uses within these areas. In this regard, it demonstrates synergy to the objectives 

of the LDO within the context of Llanelli Town Centre. It should be noted that the LDO 

does not impact upon those areas covered by this policy. 

6.1.35 EP1: Water Quality and Resources, EP2: Pollution and EP3: Sustainable Drainage 

6.1.35.1 Expected impact of LDO: The LDO does not permit any building operations; 

therefore, it will have no impact. In relation to supply and treatment of water, the LDO is 

supported by appropriate evidence. For the purposes of the Habitats Regulations, a Test 

Tudalen 35



22 
 

of Likely Significant Effect (TLSE) has been undertaken by the Local Planning Authority. 

This concluded that the implementation of the LDO was unlikely to have a “significant 

effect” alone or in combination on the Carmarthen Bay and Estuaries European Marine 

Site (CBEEMS) and that an Appropriate Assessment is not required.  

6.1.35.2 In relation to surface water, those units within the LDO Area are already linked 

to the sewer/surface water system (in most instances likely to be the combined system). 

The Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) would not apply in relation to the LDO.  

6.1.35.3 Reference should be made to the Procedural Notification process which will 

ensure that relevant parties (e.g. Natural Resources Wales and Dwr Cymru Welsh Water) 

are informed of certificates of conformity issued. 

  

Tudalen 36



23 
 

7.0 Conditions  

General  

1. No change of use permitted by the LDO shall commence until an application for a 

Certificate of Conformity has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 

Planning Authority (LPA).  

Reason: To ensure that proposed changes of use comply with the terms of the 

Local Development Order.  

2. With reference to Planning Policy Wales Technical Advice Note 15 (TAN15): 

Development and Flood Risk (or any document that updates or replaces it during the 

course of the LDO), no change in use to highly vulnerable development (as defined in 

TAN 15) is permitted in any ground-floor unit located in Development Advice Map Zone 

C2.  

Reason: To accord with the provisions of national planning policy in the form of 

TAN 15.  

3. Change of uses to highly vulnerable development permitted by the LDO on non ground 

floor units that are located within Development Advice Map Zone C2 shall accord with the 

provisions of the LDO SFCA and TAN 15. Any required details or measures shall be fully 

implemented and maintained in that state thereafter.  

Reason: To ensure that no development permitted by the LDO has unacceptable 

flooding consequences.  

Removal of permitted-development rights  

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995 as amended (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order), 

no development within Schedule 2, Part 40, Classes A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H or I may be 

Tudalen 37



24 
 

carried out at any dwelling house (as defined in Welsh Statutory Instrument 2009 

2193(W.185)) created under the LDO without the prior written permission of the LPA.  

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory form of development takes place. 

Residential Proposals  

5. No conversion scheme implemented under the terms of the LDO, whether in isolation 

or in combination with another scheme (regardless of ownership), may create an 

inappropriate concentration of single bedroom units.   

Reason: To allow the opportunity for the creation of suitable mix of unit sizes and 

tenure mix within a living town centre environment.   

Units of multiple occupation  

6. No conversion scheme implemented under the terms of the LDO, whether in isolation 

or in combination with another scheme (regardless of ownership), will be considered 

appropriate where it results in the creation of a unit of multiple occupation. 

Reason: To allow the opportunity for the creation of suitable mix of unit sizes and 

tenure mix within a living town centre environment.   

Internal floor space  

7. No dwelling created under the LDO may be occupied until floor plans that satisfy the 

relevant minimum standard for internal floor space have been submitted to, and approved 

in writing by, the LPA. The approved scheme must be retained in that state thereafter.  

Reason: To secure an adequate level of residential amenity for occupiers.  

Street Scene  

8. Existing ground-floor windows and shop fronts must not be obscured, either internally 

or externally, by paint, whitewash, film, curtains or any other opaque material.  

Reason: To maintain the commercial character and appearance of the Town Centre.  

 

Tudalen 38



25 
 

Licensing and Public Protection  

9. Those uses permitted by the LDO will be required to adhere to requirements in relation 

to Licensing and matters of public protection. Advice should be sought from the relevant 

department. The required permissions/licenses must be in place prior to commencement 

of change of use (irrespective of whether a LDO statement of conformity has been 

issued).  

Reason: To protect the amenities of persons in neighbouring properties.  

Building Regulations  

10. Those uses permitted by the LDO will be required to adhere to requirements in relation 

to Building Regulations. Advice should be sought from the relevant department. The 

required approvals must be in place prior to commencement of change of use 

(irrespective of whether a LDO statement of conformity has been issued).  

Reason: To ensure compliance with legislative provisions.   

Lettings Policy 

11. Where appropriate, residential uses permitted by the LDO will be required to adhere 

to requirements in relation to any County Council Lettings Policy. Advice should be sought 

from the relevant department. 

Reason: To allow the opportunity for the creation of suitable mix of unit sizes and 

tenure mix within a living town centre environment.   

Other Regulatory Regimes  

12. Those uses permitted by the LDO will be required to adhere to any other relevant 

requirements. For example, operational times and regimes (including arrival, departure, 

loading or unloading of any commercial delivery vehicles). Appropriate advice can be 

sought from the LPA in this regard. Any required approvals (notwithstanding 10 and 11 

Tudalen 39



26 
 

above) must be in place prior to commencement of change of use (irrespective of whether 

a LDO statement of conformity has been issued).  

Reason: To protect the amenities of persons in neighbouring properties. 

Tudalen 40



27 
 

8.0 Notes  

1. The LDO is active for a period of three years from its adoption. This period will however 

be subject to ongoing review and may be extended or reduced in light of the success or 

failure of the LDO.  

2 Development that commences while the LDO is in effect may be completed and/or 

continued after this three-year period. Once the LDO has expired, however, no new 

changes of use will be allowed under its terms without conventional planning permission. 

Towards the end of the three-year period, Carmarthenshire County Council will assess 

the impact of the LDO and decide whether to (i) renew the LDO with no revisions, (ii) 

renew the LDO with new terms and conditions or (iii) revoke the LDO.  

3. The LDO does not grant planning permission for any “development” (as defined in Part 

III, Section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990) except the changes of use 

described in section 5 of these reasons.  

4. In order to alleviate the impact of development on local services and facilities, section 

106 and Community Infrastructure Levy contributions may be sought in accordance with 

current council procedures.  

5. The LDO does not remove any requirement for advertisement or listed-building 

consent.  

6. The LDO does not remove any requirement for consent under non-planning 

regulations, such as those relating to licensing, environmental health and building control.  

7. The LDO applies only to the area indicated on the LDO plan (see section 13).  

8. Occupiers of dwellings created under the terms of the LDO will not be entitled to council 

parking permits.  

9. The LDO has been screened under the Environmental Impact Assessment 

Regulations, and it is considered that an Environmental Statement is not required.  

Tudalen 41



28 
 

10. A Test of Likely Significant Effect (TLSE) has been undertaken by the Local Planning 

Authority for the purposes of the Habitats Regulations.  This concluded that the LDO was 

unlikely to have a “significant effect” alone or in combination on the Carmarthen Bay and 

Estuaries European Marine Site (CBEEMS) and that an Appropriate Assessment is not 

required.  

11. Applicants may need to submit access statements for proposals that would 

necessitate access by employees and/or provide services to the public. (If the proposed 

and existing uses should belong to the same class, or if an A2 or A3 use should become 

an A1 use, an access statement will not be required.)  

12. The Welsh Government’s Development Advice Map may be viewed on their website. 

Reference is also made to the Plan set out in Section 15. 

 

 

 

  

Tudalen 42



29 
 

9.0 Compliance  

Carmarthenshire County Council will monitor changes of use within the Town centre and, 

when appropriate, may take enforcement action against unauthorised development, 

including any uses that operate in breach of the conditions.  

10.0 Results and monitoring  

In addition to reviewing applications for Certificates of Conformity, Carmarthenshire 

County Council will monitor vacancy levels in ground-floor units and footfall. The findings 

of such research will be presented in annual monitoring reports as part of the statutory 

LDP Monitoring Process. Consideration is also being given to introducing a periodic 

monitoring regime within the Town Centre.  

11.0 Planning contributions/Community Infrastructure Levy  

Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy contributions may be sought in 

accordance with current council procedures and regulatory and legislative requirements.  

12.0 Risk Assessment  

The below sets out some of the key issues that are considered to be worthy of review:  

 

 Democratic control and the role of Elected Members and the Community; 

 Officer workload, particularly in terms of monitoring and compliance; 

 How would bodies that are ordinarily be notified/consulted through the planning 

application process be engaged?; 

 Loss of Planning application fees; 

 Planning Obligations; 

 Legal and Financial matters arising from any future LDO revocation; 

 Residential amenity; 

Tudalen 43



30 
 

 The integrity of the historic environment; 

 Parking; 

 Regulatory matters;  

 Flood Risk. 

12.1 It is considered that the LDO may ultimately reduce workload in development 

management, cutting out routine work within the defined LDO area. Furthermore in 

relation to monitoring, there are established mechanisms available and a data capture 

system has been set up by the Data Management Officer within Planning Services.  

 

12.2 A notification system whereby key consultees (e.g. Town/Rural Councils, Dwr Cymru 

or Natural Resources Wales) are informed of LDO proposals has been established by the 

Council. This reflects the fact that such bodies would ordinarily be notified/consulted 

through the planning application process. 

 

12.3 Any LDOs will result in a reduced income from planning applications fees, as 

developers only need to submit a pre-notification, for which they pay the Council a 

nominal fee for administrative purposes. It is considered however that the scope and 

extent of the impact would be potentially minor in income terms (based on the potential 

number of applications likely to be received). Whilst not quantifiable the impact in income 

terms will be negated through regeneration benefits within the town centre.  

 

12.4 It should be noted that as part of the democratic reporting process, the Council has 

been afforded the opportunity to review a range of pertinent considerations, particularly 

in terms of resource and legal implications.  

 

Tudalen 44



31 
 

12.5 An LDO may be revoked or revised at any time by the LPA on its own initiative. The 

Welsh Government also has reserve powers to direct an LPA to revoke an LDO or 

prepare a revision of it. Where an LPA revokes an LDO the authority must :-  

 

  Publish on their website a statement that the LDO has been revoked  

  Give notice of the revocation by local advertisement. This is a requirement to 

publish the notice in as many newspapers as necessary to secure that the press 

coverage (taken as a whole) extends to the whole of the area to which the LDO 

relates, and  

  Give written notice of the revocation to every person whom the authority consulted 

before the making of the order.   

 

12.6 Section 189 of the Planning Act 2008 amends Sections 107 and 108 of Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990, which provide for compensation where a development order 

or local development order is withdrawn. In summary, where planning permission granted 

by a LDO is withdrawn, there will be no entitlement to compensation where notice of the 

withdrawal is published not less than 12 months or more than the prescribed period (24 

months) before the withdrawal takes effect.  

 

12.7 If development is started before the notice is published, compensation will be 

available unless the order in question contains provision permitting the completion of 

development. The reform may therefore offer LPAs reassurance, through providing 

additional flexibility when considering the revision or withdrawal of LDO permissions, 

although the Welsh Government considers that an LPA would only rarely need to do this 

where the merits and effect of an LDO have been properly considered during its 

preparation. 

 

Tudalen 45



32 
 

12.8 Residential amenity is an important consideration because there are already 

people residing within the LDO area. There are separate legislative frameworks that seek 

to can control various threats to residential amenity, including noise and odour.  

12.9 In relation to parking, the Town Centre is well served by public transport and 

pedestrian networks; therefore, it is considered unlikely that the LDO will substantially 

increase demand for off- and on-street parking. Occupants of new dwellings will not be 

entitled to parking permits.  

12.10  The LDO does not allow developers to display advertisements on, or make 

external alterations to, any building in the town centre. In order to ensure the continuing 

protection of the built heritage, development which would affect a listed building is also 

excluded from the scope of LDOs. In view of this, it is felt that the LDO will preserve the 

special character and appearance of listed buildings and the Conservation Area.  

12.11 In relation to flooding, the LDO area is heavily impacted by the C2 flood zone, with 

several buildings already located within the C2 flood zone (Lliedi).Technical Advice Note 

(TAN15): Development and Flood Risk (July 2004) confirms that Highly Vulnerable 

Development (HVD) should not be considered in zone C2. HVD includes all residential 

premises (use classes C1 and C3), public buildings (often use class D1) and, in some 

cases, leisure-related businesses (use class D2).  

12.12 It should be noted that the LDO will not permit any change in use to a highly 

vulnerable use (HVD) in any ground-floor unit within that area of the LDO which is within 

the C2 Zone. In relation to upper floors, it should be noted that a Strategic Flood 

Consequence Assessment (SFCA) has been completed by the LPA to the satisfaction of 

Natural Resources Wales (NRW). As a result, the LDO permits HVD uses (including C3) 

on upper floors and remain complaint with TAN 15 - subject to the required details or 

measures being fully implemented and maintained in that state thereafter.  

 

Tudalen 46



33 
 

12.13 In regulatory terms, the LDO has been subject to a screening opinion for the 

purposes of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations and does not constitute 

“Schedule 1 development” or “Schedule 2 development”. A Test of Likely Significant 

Effect (TLSE) for the purposes of the Habitats Regulations has concluded that the LDO 

will have no significant effect (alone or in combination) with a European Site or a 

European Offshore Marine Site. The LDO has also been screened as part of the 

Equalities Impact Assessment process. The LDO does not require its own Sustainability 

Appraisal – Strategic Environmental Assessment (SA-SEA) because the LDO is deemed 

to be an elaboration upon the provisions of the Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 

2006 — 2021(Adopted December 2014). The LDP has already been subject to SA-SEA 

along with a Plan level Habitats Regulations Assessment.  

Tudalen 47



13.0 Llanelli Town Centre

1
9

40

1
 to

 1
5

PH

14

1
6

PH

12

20

2
0a

32

2

1

1
1

1
8

50

1

13

18

3

30

30

6

2
7

1 to 29

17

49

47

71

61

48b

48a

38

48

2
2

24

4
2

14

2

PC

Bus Station

Cinema

Shelters

El Sub Sta

13

1

21

1

11

18

2

45

35

50

58

2
3

3

3
3

Tanks

El S
ub S

ta

Bank

2

3

Gas Gov

13

Club

22

9

14

10

24

2
1

17

2
9

2
7

Club

1

2
5

17

8

2

Sunday

School

Zion
Baptist Chapel

Theatre

PH

Buildings

4

14

12

Exchange

16

10

Hotel

5

8

4
6

2

3

10

PH

4a

14

7

Bank

1

2

1

8

22

26

19

24

B
a
n
k

2

10
12

8
4
a

4

8 to
 1

2

6

1

5
 t
o
 9

38

33 to 37

21

31

Bank

Multi-storey

Car Park

Llanelly House

1
4

1
3

1
1

Bank

Lych

Gate

2a
2

A
rca

d
e

46a

52

481

46

39

8

37a

58

4
7

2
0

Bank26

43

Library

The Old

Hall

Vicarage

C
ou

rts

M
ag

is
tra

te
s

5

6

H
ou

se

Crown Buildings

Club
Brookfield
House

Th
e

C
or

ne
r Shelter

Shelter

Surgery

10

36

1

6

41

Club

PH

43

46

PH

PH35

AR Centre

27

29

1

PH

24

3

1

C
o
n
greg

a
tion

a
l

22

P
a
rk

C
h
u
rch

Club

1
4

4

5

8

1

2

9

Cowell P
recinct

5

4 to
 8

1
1

3

1a

1

9

1b

2

7

5

1 to 30

1
3

Church

1
5

Pugh Buildings

1
7

1
9

2
3

The
 O

ld
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

21

2
 to

 4

13

1

49

55b57

16

YM
C

A

6
7

6
9

6
5

55a

Hall

Post Office

1

53
5

51

Council

Town Hall

PC

Offices

ESS

Club

Chapel

Baptist

Moriah

1

21

31

11

6

Telephone Exchange

Bandstand

PCs

4

2

6

1

6a

The

Grange

2

C
on

gr
eg

at
io

na
l

C
ha

pe
l

Ta
be

rn
ac

leSchool

14
Sunday

33

8

2
7

13

1
2

1
6

24

Shelter

11.6m

P
o

sts

ALS STREET

U
P
P
E
R

 W
IL

L
IA

M

Ps

11.0m

ED Bdy

Und

E
D

 B
d
y

C
R

P
O

T
T
E

R
Y

 P
L
A

C
E

LA
W

RE
N
C
E TER

R
A
CE

UPPER ROBIN
SON STREET

W
E

R
N

 R
O

A
D

C
W

R
T
 Y

 W
E
R
N

PARK S
TREET

Ps

Car Park

ESS

U
PPER R

O
BIN

SO
N S

TREET

PARK EYNON

11.3m

STEPNEY P
LACE

P
O

T
T
E
R
Y

 S
T
R

E
E
T

9.1m

Car Park

LB

S
T
R
Y

D
 Y

 C
R
O

C
H

E
N

D
Y

E
D

 B
dy

M
IN

CIN
G LANE

LB

S
te

p
n
e
y
 P

re
c
in

c
t

M
A

R
K

E
T
 S

T
R

E
E
T

8.5m

8.5m

Und

TCB

L
in

e
 o

f P
o
s
ts

8.8m

8.8m

M
URRAY S

TREET

UPPER IN
KERM

AN S
TREET

B
R

E
S
 R

O
A
D

ED B
dy

Def

BRIDGE STREET

Rising Bollard

Posts

V
A

U
G

H
A

N
 S

T
R

E
E
T

STEPNEY STREET

8.2m

C
O

W
E
L
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
u
b
w

a
y

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

LB

TCB

E
l S

ub S
ta

Line Of Posts

War Memorial

LB

C
H
U
R
C
H

 S
T
R
E
E
T

Rising Bollard

Posts

8.2m

FREDERIC
K STREET

C
RO

W
N
 PRECIN

CT

El Sub Sta

Line  o f P osts

Car Park

STR
EET

7.9m

8.5m

JO
HN

8.8m

7.9m

TCB

7.6m

Monument

TERRACE

Monument

Square

9.1m

Town Hall

9.8m

7.3m

7.6m

WAUNLANYRAFON

H
IL

L

Draft Local Development Order

Compiled by  on 27 January 2017

Additional information: ¼ Carmarthenshire County Council

Template: U:\xgApps\Template\ccc_a4l.wor

Scale 1:2500

Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin,
Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Adran Amgylchedd,
8 Heol Spilman, Caerfyddrin. SA31 1JY

Carmarthenshire County Council
Planning Services, Environment Department,
8 Spilman Street, Carmarthen. SA31 1JY

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2016 Arolwg Ordnans 100023377
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100023377

T
udalen 48



14.0 Listed Buildings & Conservation Area

50

48

27

1

1
7

23

35

14

24

2

35

30

34 

38 to 41

16a
16

2

18

27

39

19

16

31

17

1
1

27

46
 to 4

9

26

50 to 53

16

15

42 to 45

38

19

2
5

40

3
0 12

28

2

5
7

C
a
p

e
l A

ls

School

78

Sunday

Half M
oon

66

7

13

7

1
2

2
5
a

4

25

1

1
1

PH

8

3

PH

1
2

16

3

9

El Sub Sta

S
u
rg

e
ry

1

1

16

32

38

36a

40

15

30

Garage

2
6

36

Shelter

1
 to

 1
5

PH

14

1
6

PH

1
2

2
0

2
0
a

5
0

5
4

1

4
0

15

5
2

1

1

2

6

5
6

59

1

(PH)

2
7

55

6
9

32

6
3
a

63

1

3

1

14

PH

2

2

1

1
1

17

1
8

12

Temple

Cottage

PH

4

50

1

1
3

18

3

30

30

6

2
7

1
 to 2

9

17

7
9

4
9

4
7

38

7
1

2

6
1

3
2

48b

48a

1

2

14

38

48

2
2

24

4
2

14

2

PC

Bus Station

Cinema

Shelters

El Sub Sta

13

1

2
1

1

11

18

2

45

3
5

50

58

2
3

3

33

Tanks

El S
ub S

ta

Bank

1

2

14

26

3

Gas Gov

13

Club

22

9

14

10

24

2
1

17

2
9

27

Club
1

25

1
3

2

1
4

22

1

17

8

2

2
5

19

1
4

H
ea

lth
 C

e
nt

re

13

15 to  18

Zion Chapel House

Sunday

School

Zion
Baptist Chapel

ESS

Theatre

PH

B uildings

4

14

12

E xc
hange

16

10

Hotel

3

1

1

5

3

Crown Parade

Shelter

13

5

8

4

6

2

3

10

PH

4a

9 to 12

23

18

Cwrt B
uckley

Falcon

6
4

14

1
0

8

1 to 8

Chambers

7

Bank

1

2

1

8

22

26

19

24

B
a

n
k

2

10
12

8

St Ellyw's Church

4a

4

8
 to

 1
2

6

1

5 
to

 9

38

33 to 37

21

31

Bank

Multi-storey

Car Park

Llanelly  House

1
4

1
3

1
1

Bank

The Verandah

Lych

Gate

1

2
a

2

A
rc

a
d
e

46a

52

48

1

46

39

8

37a

5
8

4
7

20

Bank26

43

Library

The O
ld

Hall

V icarage

C
ou

rt
s

M
ag

is
tra

te
s

5

6

H
ou

se

Crown Buildings

Club
Brookfie ldH

ouse

T
h
e

C
or

ne
r

Shelter

Shelter

21a

9

Surgery

9a

11

PH

PH

PH

PH

2
6

2
22
4

2
0

2
5 3

4

23

Surgery

10

36

1

6

14

In
de

1
1
a

28

E
ben

9

14

41

Club

PH

43

46

PH

PH35

AR Centre

27

29

1

PH

24

3

1

C
o
ng

re
g
at io

na
l

Sunday

School

22

P
a
rk

C
h
urch

Club

1
4

4

5

8

1

2

9

Cowell P
recin

ct

5

4 to
 8

1
1

3

1a

1

9

1b

2

7

5

1 to 30

1
3

Church

1
5

Pugh Buildings

1
7

1
9

2
3

T
he 

O
ld

 W
are

hou
se

Caeglas

Llys

21

2

Castle
 B

uild
ings

2
 to

 4

12

13

1

49

5
5b

57

16

YM
C
A

1

2

Dairy

M
e

th
o
d
is

t

H
a
ll 

S
tr

e
e

t

C
h
u
rc

h

School

Sunday

3
1

2

20

4

67
6
9

6
5

55a

Hall

Post Office

1

5
3

5

Cinema

5
1

Council

Town Hall

PC

Offices

ESS

Club

Chapel

Baptist

Moriah

1

21

31

11

6

Telephone Exchange

11

1

3a

2

16

Police Station

Bandstand

PCs
Surgery

2
1

Pavilion

Princess

21

55

1
7

Court

1 to 20

41

12

Hall

Sorting Office

7

12a

67

4
2

4

2

6

1

6 a

The

Grange

2

C
on

gr
eg

at
io

na
l

C
ha

pe
l

Ta
be

rn
ac

leSchool

14

Sunday

PH

11

13

11a

Garage

1

1a

3
3

8

2
7

13

1
2

1
6

Probation Office

15a
17

15

PH

38

West End Yard

1

34

3

4
6

24

49

Shelter

69

5
2

62

7

5
7

50

4
5

28

21

7
2

82

Primary School

Pentip VA

2

1

Lofts

Queens

3 to 14

Hom
e and Day Centre

Caemaen Residential

TCB

P
E

N
R

Y

13.4m

P
L
A

C
E

TE
R

R
AC

E

14.6m

M
Y
R

T
LE

TUNNEL ROAD

El Sub Sta

TEMPLE STREET

11.6m

CWRT ELUSE NDY

A
V

IS
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

C
O

L
L
E
G

E

11.0m

C
A
E
-D

U
-B

A
C

H

LB

SQUARE

P
o

s
t s

ALS STREET

U
P
P
E

R
 W

IL
L
IA

M
 S

T
R
E
E

T

12.8m

Ps

11.0m

ED Bdy

Und

E
D

 B
d

y

C
R

12.5m

P
O

T
T
E
R

Y
 P

L
A

C
E

LAW
REN

CE TERRAC
E

UPPER R
OBIN

SON S
TREET

W
E

R
N

 R
O

A
D

13.1m

C
W

R
T
 Y

 W
E
R

N

S
W

A
N

F
I E

L
D

 P
L
A

C
E

PARK S
TREET

Z
IO

N
 R

O
W

9.8m

Afon Lliedi

Ps

Car Park

ESS

UPPER R
OBIN

SO
N S

TREET

PARK E
YNON

11.3m

ST
EP

N
EY

 P
LAC

E

P
O

T
T

E
R

Y
 S

T
R

E
E
T

9.1m

Car Park

LB

S
T

R
Y

D
 Y

 C
R

O
C
H

E
N

D
Y

E
D

 B
d
y

7.6m

M
IN

CIN
G LANE

LB

S
te

p
n
e

y
 P

r
e
c
in

c
t

M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
T
R

E
E
T

8.5m

8.5m

Und

TCB

L
in

e
 o

f P
o
s
ts

LLYS Y
R H

EN FELIN

9.8m

8.8m

13.1m

ESS

8.8m

M
URRAY S

TREET

U
PP

ER
 IN

K
ER

M
A

N
 S

T
RE

ET

B
R
E
S

 R
O

A
D

ED B
dy

Def

A
N

D
R

E
W

Subway

15.5m

T
H

O
M

A
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

M
IL

L
 L

A
N
E

Cross

BRIDGE STREET

D
e

f
E

D
 B

d
y

Rising Bollard

Posts

V
A

U
G

H
A

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

STEPN
EY S

TREET

8.2m

C
O

W
E

L
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
u

b
w

a
y

E
l S

u
b

 S
ta

LB

TCB

E
l S

ub S
ta

R
IC

H
AR

D S
TR

EET

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

Line Of Posts

War Memorial

LB

C
H
U

R
C
H
 S

T
R
E
E
T

GELLI-O
NN

Slop ing m
asonry

Rising Bollard

Posts

8.2m

FREDERIC
K S

TREET

C
R

O
W

N
 P

R
E
C

IN
C
T

El Sub Sta

Line  o f P osts

R
O

A
D

Car Park

7.6m

V
A

U
X

H
A

L
L

S
T
R
E
E
T

H
ALL

Car Park

Line of Posts

STR
EET

7.9m

8.5m

JOHN

8.8m

7.9m

7.9m

TCB

7.6m

Monument

TE
R

R
AC

E

Monument

Square

9.1m

Town Hall

9.8m

LBs

W
A

U
N

L
A

N
Y

R
A

F
O

N

7.3m

LLOYD STREET

STRYD LLOYD

PAR K C
RESCENT 7.6m

7.6m

WAUNLANYRAFON

Wr Pt

Play Area

8.2m

Paddling Pool

Bowling Green

C
O

LE
S
H
IL

L

Sports Court

C
O
L
E
S
H
IL

L
 T

E
R
R
A
C
E

7.6m

E
l S

ub
 S

t a

C
O

L
D
S
T
R
E
A
M

 S
T
R
E
E
T

WEST END

Sports Court

Wr T

Car Park

ESS

6.4m

Fn

Compiled by  on 27 January 2017

Additional information: ¼ Carmarthenshire County Council

Template: U:\xgApps\Template\ccc_a4l.wor

Scale 1:3500

Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin,
Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Adran Amgylchedd,
8 Heol Spilman, Caerfyddrin. SA31 1JY

Carmarthenshire County Council
Planning Services, Environment Department,
8 Spilman Street, Carmarthen. SA31 1JY

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2016 Arolwg Ordnans 100023377
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100023377

T
udalen 49



15.0 Development Advice Maps

1
9

25

40

57

Half M
oo

1
 to

 1
5

PH

14

1
6

PH

12

20

2
0a

5
0

5
4

4
0

5
2

5
6

(PH

55

32

PH

2

1

1
1

1
8

12

50

1

13

18

3

30

30

6

2
7

1 to 29

17

49

47

71

61

48b

48a

38

48

2
2

24

4
2

14

2

PC

Bus Station

Cinema

Shelters

El Sub Sta

13

1

21

1

11

18

2

45

35

50

58

2
3

3

3
3

Tanks

El S
ub S

ta

Bank

2

26

3

Gas Gov

13

Club

22

9

14

10

24

2
1

17

2
9

2
7

Club

1

2
5

17

8

2

Sunday

School

onptist Chapel

Theatre

PH

Buildings

4

14

12

Exchange

16

10

Hotel

5

8

4
6

2

3

10

PH

4a

14

7

Bank

1

2

1

8

22

26

19

24

B
a
n
k

2

10
12

8

4
a

4

8 to
 1

2

6

1

5
 t
o
 9

38

33 to 37

21

31

Bank

Multi-storey

Car Park

Llanelly House

1
4

1
3

1
1

Bank

Lych

Gate

2a
2

A
rca

d
e

46a

52

481

46

39

8

37a

58

4
7

2
0

Bank26

43

Library

The Old

Hall

Vicarage

C
ou

rts

M
ag

is
tra

te
s

5

6

H
ou

se

Crown Buildings

Club
Brookfield
House

Th
e

C
or

ne
r Shelter

Shelter

Surgery
10

36

1

6

41

Club

PH

43

46

PH

PH35

AR Centre

27

29

1

PH

24

3

1

C
o
n
greg

a
tion

a
l

22

P
a
rk

C
h
u
rch

Club

1
4

4

5

8

1

2

9

Cowell P
recinct

5

4 to
 8

1
1

3

1a

1

9

1b

2

7

5

1 to 30

1
3

Church

1
5

Pugh Buildings

1
7

1
9

2
3

The
 O

ld
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

21

2
 to

 4

13

1

49

55b57

16

YM
C

A

6
7

6
9

6
5

55a

Hall

Post Office

1

53
5

51

Council

Town Hall

PC

Offices

ESS

Club

Chapel

Baptist

Moriah

1

21

11

6

Telephone Exchange

Bandstand

PCs

4

2

6

1

6a

The

Grange

2

C
on

gr
eg

at
io

na
l

C
ha

pe
l

Ta
be

rn
ac

leSchool

14
Sunday

33

8

2
7

13

1
2

1
6

Shelter

11.6m

P
o

sts

ALS STREET

U
P
P
E
R

 W
IL

L
IA

M
 S

T
R

E
E
T

Ps

11.0m

ED Bdy

Und

E
D

 B
d
y

C
R

P
O

T
T
E

R
Y

 P
L
A

C
E

LA
W

RE
N
C
E TER

R
A
CE

UPPER ROBIN
SON STREET

W
E

R
N

 R
O

A
D

C
W

R
T
 Y

 W
E
R
N

PARK S
TREET

Ps

Car Park

ESS

U
PPER R

O
BIN

SO
N S

TREET

PARK EYNON

11.3m

STEPNEY P
LACE

P
O

T
T
E
R
Y

 S
T
R

E
E
T

9.1m

Car Park

LB

S
T
R
Y

D
 Y

 C
R
O

C
H

E
N

D
Y

E
D

 B
dy

7.6m

M
IN

CIN
G LANE

LB

S
te

p
n
e
y
 P

re
c
in

c
t

M
A

R
K

E
T
 S

T
R

E
E
T

8.5m

8.5m

Und

TCB

L
in

e
 o

f P
o
s
ts

8.8m

8.8m

M
URRAY S

TREET

UPPER IN
KERM

AN S
TREET

B
R

E
S
 R

O
A
D

ED B
dy

Def

BRIDGE STREET

Rising Bollard

Posts

V
A

U
G

H
A

N
 S

T
R

E
E
T

STEPNEY STREET

8.2m

C
O

W
E
L
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
u
b
w

a
y

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

LB

TCB

E
l S

ub S
ta

Line Of Posts

War Memorial

LB

C
H
U
R
C
H

 S
T
R
E
E
T

Rising Bollard

Posts

8.2m

FREDERIC
K STREET

C
RO

W
N
 PRECIN

CT

El Sub Sta

Line  o f P osts

Car Park

STR
EET

7.9m

8.5m

JO
HN

8.8m

7.9m

TCB

7.6m

Monument

Monument

Square

9.1m

Town Hall

9.8m

7.3m

YRAFON

Flood Risk

Compiled by  on 27 January 2017

Additional information: ¼ Carmarthenshire County Council

Template: U:\xgApps\Template\ccc_a4l.wor

Scale 1:2500

Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin,
Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Adran Amgylchedd,
8 Heol Spilman, Caerfyddrin. SA31 1JY

Carmarthenshire County Council
Planning Services, Environment Department,
8 Spilman Street, Carmarthen. SA31 1JY

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2016 Arolwg Ordnans 100023377
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100023377

T
udalen 50



37 
 

Notes  

i) The above map is based on the Development Advice Maps (DAMs) published by the 

Welsh Government in January 2015.  

ii) The DAMs are reviewed periodically and therefore may change during the three-year 

lifetime of the LDO. Reference should be made to the Welsh Government’s website in 

this regard. 

  

Tudalen 51



38 
 

16.0 Key Contacts 

TBC  

Tudalen 52



A1. Local Development Orders

A1.1 The following should be read in conjunction with the content of the main report.  
It sets out further detail in relation to the legislative framework underpinning an LDO 
and some specific limitations in their use.  In addition in preparing an LDO 
consideration will be given to any potential implications arising from its designation.  
The following identifies some specific examples drawn from Welsh Government 
Good Practice. 

Legislative and Policy Framework
A1.2 A Local Development Order (LDO) may be issued by an LPA may under 
section 61 (A, B, and C) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as inserted by 
section 40(1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and amended by 
sections 188 and 238 and Schedule 13 of the Planning Act 2008. This power 
became effective in Wales on 30 April 2012.  Reference is also made to the 
Development Management Manual 2016 whilst the The Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 (DMPWO), sets out the 
procedural requirements for making LDOs.

A1.3 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 state that 
permission granted by a LDO will constitute “planning permission” (regulation 
5(3)(a)ii). As a consequence, an LDO may obviate the need to submit a planning 
application for a certain type of development, but it will not prevent a levy through 
CIL from being charged, when appropriate and where a CIL charge applies.

A1.4 It should be noted however that Section 106 planning obligations cannot be 
required under an LDO; however, this does not prevent section 106 agreements 
being offered by a developer. For example, if a condition attached to a Local 
Development Order requires mitigation of an impact from development then a 
section 106 agreement could be used to secure this. 

Considerations associated with LDO’s
A1.7 Welsh Government Good Practice prepared in relation LDO’s identified a 
number of areas for Welsh local authorities to consider.  Specific examples are as 
follows:

 Would an LDO lead to a loss of democratic control over development, 
undermining the role of elected members and local communities?  In 
response WG Good Practice points to case studies undertaken which indicate 
that where an LDO is in place, Local Planning Authorities and communities 
still exercise democratic control over development.  In this respect clear rules 
are required in advance as part of the LDO, as opposed to any case-by-case 
discretion. 

 Is there a potential for an increase in workloads and would additional layers of 
complexity be added to the planning process? – WG Good Practice suggests 
that it may ultimately reduce workload in development management, cutting 
out routine work within the defined LDO area. 

Tudalen 53

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/use-of-planning-conditions/


A1.8 Any LDOs will result in a reduced income from planning applications fees, as 
developers only need to submit a pre-notification, for which they pay the Council a 
token sum. However, will only be quantifiable once the LDO and its geographical 
extent is defined. Subject to its scope and extent the impact may be potentially minor 
in income terms (based on the potential number of applications likely to be received), 
however it should be recognised that there will none the less be an impact.  

Revision and revocation 
A1.9 An LDO may be revoked or revised at any time by the LPA on its own initiative. 
The Welsh Government also has reserve powers to direct an LPA to revoke an LDO 
or prepare a revision of it. Where an LPA revokes an LDO the authority must :- 
 Publish on their website a statement that the LDO has been revoked 
 Give notice of the revocation by local advertisement. This is a requirement to 
publish the notice in as many newspapers as necessary to secure that the press 
coverage (taken as a whole) extends to the whole of the area to which the LDO 
relates, and 
 Give written notice of the revocation to every person whom the authority consulted 
before the making of the order. 

Compensation where local development order is withdrawn 
A1.10 Section 189 of the Planning Act 2008 amends Sections 107 and 108 of Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990, which provide for compensation where a 
development order or local development order is withdrawn. In summary, where 
planning permission granted by a LDO is withdrawn, there will be no entitlement to 
compensation where notice of the withdrawal is published not less than 12 months or 
more than the prescribed period (24 months) before the withdrawal takes effect. 

A1.11 If development is started before the notice is published, compensation will be 
available unless the order in question contains provision permitting the completion of 
development. The reform may therefore offer LPAs reassurance, through providing 
additional flexibility when considering the revision or withdrawal of LDO permissions, 
although the Welsh Government considers that an LPA would only rarely need to do 
this where the merits and effect of an LDO have been properly considered during its 
preparation.

Link to Welsh Government Circular 003/2012: 
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/120427ldoguidanceen.pdf 

Tudalen 54

http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/120427ldoguidanceen.pdf


PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU 
DYDDIAD: 30 MAWRTH, 2017

Y PWNC: 
ADRAN CYMUNEDAU: 

GYNLLUN BUSNES YR ADRAN AM 2017-2020

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:
Cynnydd a wnaed yn erbyn blaenoriaethau adrannol a osodwyd yng nghynllun busnes llynedd 
yn gyfochr â'r gyllideb.

Elfennau a gynhwysir yn y cynllun busnes sydd ynghlwm yn ymwneud â: -
 Tai, Diogelu’r Cyhoedd a Gofal a Chymorth 
 Gwasanaethau Hamdden 
 Gwasanaethau Integredig (Pobl Hŷn ac Anableddau Corfforol)
 Iechyd Meddwl, Anableddau Dysgu a Diogelu
 Comisiynu Strategol ar y cyd
 Cymorth Busnes
 Tîm Perfformiad, Dadansoddi a Systemau

Y RHESYMAU: 
Mae gan y Pwyllgor Craffu rôl allweddol o ran craffu ar gynlluniau busnes fel rhan o 
fframwaith yr Awdurdod ar gyfer rheoli perfformiad.
Angen cyfeirio'r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol/Cyngor er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:      
NAC OES
Yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol sy'n dal y Portffolio:   
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans (Deiliad y Portffolio Tai)
Y Cynghorydd Meryl Gravell (Deiliad y Portffolio Hamdden)
Y Cynghorydd Jim Jones (Deiliad y Portffolio Diogelu’r Cyhoedd)
Y Cynghorydd Jane Tremlett (Deiliad y Portffolio Gofal Cymdeithasol a Iechyd)
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Cymunedau
Pennaeth Y Gwasanaeth
Jake Morgan
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Silvana Sauro

Swyddi:
Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cymunedol
Rheolwr Perfformiad, Dadansoddi a 
Systemau

Rhifau ffôn:
01267 224698
01267 228897
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
Jakemorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
ssauro@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 55

Eitem Rhif  6

mailto:Jakemorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:ssauro@sirgar.gov.uk


COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
30TH MARCH, 2017 

Communities Departmental Business Plan 2017-20

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT.

 This business plan provides Members with an update of progress made against actions 
for Housing & Leisure Services which are included in the departmental business plan 
from 2017-20 

 The full Departmental business plan which will be presented to members contains an 
update on the priorities for the department during 2017-20. This plan was developed 
following a series of workshops with senior managers and staff.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 56



IMPLICATIONS 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:   Jake Morgan (Director of Communities)             

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder & 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signed:   Jake Morgan (Director of Communities)             

1.Local Member(s)  
None
2.Community / Town Council 
None
3.Relevant Partners  
None
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  

None

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
There are none.
Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

Tudalen 57



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Departmental Business Plan

Communities

2017-20

March 2017

OUR DEPARTMENTAL VISION........

For a Carmarthenshire that enables people to live healthy and fulfilled lives by working 
together to build strong, bilingual and sustainable communities

Tudalen 59



Page | 2 

Contents

Page
Executive Board Member Foreword 3

1 Departmental Overview 4
2 Strategic Context 11
3 Review and Evaluation 16
4 Departmental Priorities / Risks 21
5 Resources 36
6 Key Departmental Measures 40
7 Appendices 43

Tudalen 60



Page | 3 

Executive Board Member Foreword

We have great pleasure in introducing the new Department for Communities Summary Business Plan for 
2017/20. We are satisfied that this Business Plan provides a comprehensive overview of the 
Departmental performance. It also provides the Department’s aims and objectives for 2017/20. 

Cllr Jane Tremlett – Executive Board member for Health and Social Care

Cllr Linda Evans – Executive Board Member for Housing 

Cllr Jim Jones – Executive Board Member for Public Protection 

Cllr Meryl Gravell, Executive Board Member, Leisure Services

Sign Off

Cllr.  Jane Tremlett   
Cl lr.  Linda Evans     
Cl lr .  J im Jones
Cllr.  Meryl Gravell                                        Date: Tudalen 61

http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/cccapps/councillors/pdf/Llanfihangel%20ar%20Arth.pdf
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/cccapps/councillors/pdf/Glyn.pdf


Page | 4 

1. Departmental Overview

Introduction by Director

As Director of Statutory Social Services, I am pleased with the progress 
that has been made during 2016/17.  This is a significant achievement 
as we deal with reducing budgets and increasing demand for health and adult 
social care.

We were the first Welsh local authority to have its children’s services 
inspected by the CSSIW under the new inspection framework aligned to 
the expectations of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 
and received a very good judgement, with only a few relatively 
straightforward recommendations to address.  We also received a 
CSSIW Inspection of the West Wales Adult Placement Scheme (Shared 
Lives).  During 2016/17, CSSIW Thematic Reviews were also undertaken 
in relation to carers and safeguarding, reports in relation to these are        
not yet available.

Over the last year we have been preparing for the implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing 
Act, raising awareness amongst staff and partners and realigning our services to respond to the new 
requirements. This has been challenging for us with a demand for services increasing in some areas 
against a climate of financial austerity. However the Act has provided us with the opportunity to develop 
services which promote wellbeing and independence and build on people’s strengths and abilities which 
can significantly improve outcomes for those who use our services. 

We have also introduced a new Performance Management Framework to ensure we balance the 
relationship between service demands, the allocation of resources and service user satisfaction. The 
framework has a suite of measures which are monitored at a monthly meeting chaired by myself.

2017/2018 brings new opportunities alongside financial challenges.  The newly enacted Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 will challenge us to consider the long-term implications of our services for 
people and communities and to consider how we can support the sustainable development of our 
communities by prioritising preventative action to reduce costs in the long-term whilst raising standards of 
wellbeing and achievement.

Performance against key indicators has been good overall, reflecting the prioritisation of resources against 
areas of significant importance identified in the Corporate Strategy, and by service users and members of 
the public.  

In May we shall have elections to the County Council with a refreshed strategy to follow soon thereafter.   
At a national level we shall watch with interest the programme to develop closer regional collaboration on 
strategic public services.

Our Scrutiny Committees take a keen and active interest in checking and monitoring our performance and 
have offered significant challenge to service areas and the executive over the last year.  I have particularly 
valued the input of members at our consultation events over the past year which are setting the strategic 
direction for our services, such as the Older People’s Strategy and Community Resilience which will 
develop supportive communities. 

Jake Morgan, Statutory Director 
of Social Services

Tudalen 62



Page | 5 

Leisure is a much valued, front line service providing a range of health and well-being related facilities, 
activities and programmes, all aimed at getting: 

More people, More active, More often.

We want Carmarthenshire to be a place:

 That is the most active and healthy in the UK
 Where every person is an active participant at a 'Community Club' or 'Leisure / Cultural Facility'
 Where every child is hooked on Leisure / Cultural activity for life

The service is non-statutory in the main, although elements of the service are classed as statutory, namely: 
Library services; elements of Archives and Museums Services, and KS2 swimming provision for primary 
schools.

We are committed to delivering the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard+ and Investing in tenants’ homes 
and providing more homes.  Increasing the availability of rented and affordable homes.

Finally, mention must be made of the valued contribution of the workforce to delivering a high standard of 
service and their role in making the required improvements and efficiencies.  I receive many letters of 
thanks from families, members of the public and councillors every week which reflects staff dedication 
and commitment in delivering services every day across the community.

I look forward to another successful year for the Department for Communities services in Carmarthenshire. 

Tudalen 63



         Management Structure for Community 
Services 

Management Structure for Community Services
As at March 2017

Jake Morgan
Director of Community Services

Ian Jones
Head of Leisure 

Services

Avril Bracey 
Head of Mental 
Health, Learning 

Disability Services & 
Safeguarding

   

Chris Harrison
Interim Head of 
Strategic Joint 
Commissioning 

(Pembs and Carms)

Robin Staines
Head of Housing, 

Public Protection & 
Care and Support 

Lyn Walters
Business Support 

Manager

Stefan Smith
Head of Children’s 

Services

Rhian Dawson
Head of Integrated 

Services (Older Persons 
& Physical Disabilities)

T
udalen 64



Departmental Overview

The vision for Carmarthenshire…… ‘A Carmarthenshire that enables people to live healthy and fulfilled 
lives by working together to build strong, bilingual and sustainable communities’

 (Source: Integrated Community Strategy – 2011/16)

The Communities Department has five Divisions providing front line services to the people of 
Carmarthenshire and a business support unit and performance, analysis & systems team that assist and 
provide support to the five divisions in delivering their services.

The Leisure Services Division provides a wide range of much valued, front line service of health and 
well-being related facilities, activities and programmes, all aimed at getting: 
More people, More active, More often.
We want Carmarthenshire to be a place:

 That is the most active and healthy in the UK
 Where every person is an active participant at a 'Community Club' or 'Leisure / Cultural Facility'
 Where every child is hooked on Leisure / Cultural activity for life

The service aims to deliver 6 key Outcomes for residents and visitors to the County:

 Outcome 1: Supporting independence 
 Outcome 2: Keeping Safe
 Outcome 3: Improving Health & Well Being
 Outcome 4: Information, Advice and Signposting
 Outcome 5: People achieve their potential (Workforce and users)
 Outcome 6: Well Managed, sustainable, efficient services that contribute to a prosperous 

economy 

The service is non-statutory in the main, although elements of the service are classed as statutory, 
namely: Library services; elements of Archives and Museums Services, and KS2 swimming provision for 
primary schools.

Housing, Public Protection & Care and Support Division provides services to the following:
The Care and Support Services Team for Older People is made up of three main service areas, 
Domiciliary, Residential and Day Services. The Services are managed on a countywide basis with 
management and support structures centrally located in Carmarthen. Services provide short term support 
to assist people to regain skills in order to retain a level of independence to enable them to continue living 
at home. They also support others who require care on a longer term basis both in the community and 
residential care homes. 

The Housing Advice and Options Team is responsible for providing a whole range of advisory services 
which include: preventing homelessness, supporting the delivery of adaptations, advice to owner occupiers 
on how to improve their homes, advice to owners of empty homes to support them being re-occupied, 
energy advice and advice to private landlords and tenants. 

Tudalen 65



Page | 8 

The Investment and Older People Team is responsible for services to older tenants living in Council 
properties and to those who require housing related support. The team also manages our sheltered 
accommodation across the County. The team also leads on maintaining and improving the CHS+ (we have 
a statutory duty for maintaining the standard), responsible for delivering the Affordable Homes plan 
through delivery of over 1000 homes from existing solutions (e.g. buybacks etc) and the development of 
more new build homes and wider re-generation through a potential alternative delivery vehicle. 

The Housing and Community Support Team provides a countywide housing management service 
for tenants and leaseholders. This includes estate and tenancy management, gypsies and travellers and 
tackling anti-social behaviour. The team is also responsible for helping to deliver the Carmarthenshire 
Homes Standard Plus (CHS+). It also leads on co-ordinating tenant and resident engagement (and 
involvement), managing environmental improvements in communities and general asset management 
(council homes, garages and land) along with the Investment and Older People Team. 

The Environmental Health and Licensing Team is responsible for regulating and monitoring 
pollution levels, managing public health, carrying out food hygiene inspections, supporting health and 
safety projects and the licensing of taxis, charities, traders and premises. Full information on actions are 
contained within the Environmental health and Licensing service delivery Plan (link). 

The Trading Standards and Animal Health Team is responsible for regulating animal health, 
verifying weighing and measuring equipment, enforcing intellectual property rights and detecting 
cybercrime, regulating safety of petroleum installations and products, preventing scams and doorstep 
crime and regulating foods standards. 

Integrated Services (Older Persons & Physical Disabilities)
The County has an integrated Community Health & Social Care Service ‘infrastructure’. This model aligns 
with national and local policy direction with reference to delivering Integrated Health and Social Care. The 
Service supports older people and people with physical disabilities to maintain their independence and 
wellbeing where and when possible in their own home.  There is a Section 33 Agreement in place to 
provide the governance around this arrangement. The case for integrated care is reinforced by the need 
to develop whole-system working across health and social care to address the complex needs associated 
with age related co-morbidity and frailty (including dementia). A key focus of our business plan, 
therefore, is to develop an integrated system of care which focuses on the promotion of wellbeing and 
the maintenance of independence for our adult population while supporting the long term care needs 
and safeguarding of the more frail and vulnerable. 
We have three Community Resource Teams (CRTs) based in Carmarthen, Llanelli and Ammanford 
consisting of multidisciplinary professionals who lead the assessment and care management of this 
service user group and ensure that they receive interventions that support identified and expressed 
needs. Specifically, the integrated service includes Social Work, Physiotherapy, Occupational Therapy, 
Community Nursing and Reablement. Enquiries to the CRTs are supported by a single point of access for 
service enquiries 'IAA' service and is also complimented by the Integrated Community Equipment Store.

Tudalen 66



Page | 9 

Mental Health, Learning Disability Services & Safeguarding supports adults with learning 
disabilities, mental health and people with drug and alcohol problems. It also safeguards vulnerable adults 
and people who lack mental capacity in care homes and hospitals. The service also works with disabled 
children and young people aged between 16 and 25 as well as providing day services support to people in 
need of employment, leisure and personal development opportunities.
The service is striving to deliver an approach that supports and enables people to remain in control of their 
lives, and where possible in control of the solutions that best meet their aspirations and what matters to 
them. We want to focus on people’s strengths and abilities, and support them by using family, friendship 
and community networks alongside services. This culture change is at the heart of the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act (2014) which emphasises community models of care and support. The Act requires us to 
focus on accessible services, information, advice and support, prevention and maximising the potential of 
the community as a resource. Person centred planning is at the heart of this legislation and real engagement 
with those who use our services is paramount.

Over the last year we have been preparing for the implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing 
Act, raising awareness amongst staff and partners and realigning our services to respond to the new 
requirements. This has been challenging for us with a demand for services increasing in some areas 
against a climate of financial austerity. However the Act has provided us with the opportunity to develop 
services which promote wellbeing and independence and build on people’s strengths and abilities which 
can significantly improve outcomes for those who use our services. We have also introduced a new 
Performance Management Framework to ensure we balance the relationship between service demands, 
the allocation of resources and service user satisfaction. The framework has a suite of measures which 
are monitored at a monthly meeting chaired by the Director of Community Services. This approach is 
driving improvement and will ultimately result in improved outcomes for service users. Overall 
performance in relation to performance Indicators over the last year is positive, although improvement is 
required in relation to timeliness of safeguarding investigations, Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 
applications (DoLS) and reviews. 

Business Support Unit provides a range of timely, effective and efficient support services to all 
divisions for the Department for Communities, in accordance with corporate standards and the principles 
of continuous improvement. The main purpose of the Division is to support and advise all sections of the 
Department by providing a variety of financial that includes income collection, administrative, democratic 
and business support, Health & Safety, Learning & Development and provision of transport. The provision 
of support services to all sections enables them to efficiently fulfil their duties and discharge their 
responsibilities and functions on behalf of the Council Learning & Development, Operational Training and 
Performance Management.  The Division also provides the lead and a coordinating role on a range of 
corporate initiatives. In order to fulfil this central supporting role the Division is structured into several 
clearly defined areas, each with distinct and individual aims and objectives.  

Tudalen 67



Page | 10 

Performance, Analysis & Systems Team provides support for all front line teams throughout the 
Department to continually improve their services. The services provided by the team are diverse and 
range from: 

 System maintenance and support and training, 
 Process mapping 
 Collating all performance management data
 Provision of management information and scrutiny reports  
 Co-ordinating complaints
 Access and engagement functions
 Business plans, Improvement plan and Annual report 
 Risk Management 
 Development of measures to meet the requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act  
 Supporting the performance management framework   

2016-17 Departmental Performance Management Framework

The Performance Analysis and Information Team has been established to drive performance 
information and data across the department and support the performance management framework. 
The following model outlines the benefits that a strong performance management culture can deliver:  

Tudalen 68

file://ntcarmcc/cfp/Adult%20Care/PM%20Framework%20Measures/2.%20Performance%20Framework%20April%20Final%2016.pdf


Page | 11 

2. Strategic Context

Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015 

This is a new Act introduced by the Welsh Government, which will change aspects of how we work. The 
general purpose of the Act is to ensure that the governance arrangements of public bodies for improving the 
well-being of Wales take the needs of future generations into account. The Act is designed to improve the 
economic, social and environmental well-being of Wales in accordance with sustainable development 
principles. 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act is about encouraging public bodies to think more about the 
long-term, work better with people and communities and each other, look to prevent problems and take a 
more joined-up approach. This will help us to create a Wales that we all want to live in, now and in the future. 
To make sure we are all working towards the same vision, the Act puts in place seven well-being goals, which 
are noted below: 

The Sustainable Development Principle and the 5 Ways of Working

The principle is made up of five key ways of working that public bodies are required to take into account 
when applying sustainable development. These are:- 

A. Looking to the long term so that we do not compromise the ability of future generations to meet their 
own needs; 

B. Taking an integrated approach so that public bodies look at all the well-being goals in deciding on their 
priorities; 

C. Involving a diversity of the population in the decisions that affect them; 
D. Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable solutions; 
E. Understanding the root causes of issues to prevent them from occurring. 

Tudalen 69



Page | 12 

How Services join-up to show contributions to the National Well-being Goals
The identification of well-being objectives should flow from having a clear view of the contribution a public 
body can make to the seven well-being goals SPSF 2 Para 4

KEY:  L = Lead Role / S = Supporting Role The 7 Well-being of Future Generations Goals 
See Appendix 3 for Definitions

Department Division

Pr
os

pe
rit

y

Re
si

lie
nc

e

He
al

th
ie

r

M
or

e 
Eq

ua
l

Co
he

si
ve

 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es

Cu
ltu

re
 a

nd
 

W
el

sh
 L

an
gu

ag
e

G
lo

ba
l 

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y

Business Support & Service Imp. S S S S S S S
Commissioning S S S S S S S
Housing & Public Protection S S S S S S S
Integrated Services S S S S S S S
Leisure S S L S S S S

Communities

Mental Health & Learning Disability S S S S S S S

Significant Strategies, Acts & Guidance for the Department

 The Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act

 Housing (Wales) Act 2014
 The Social Services and Well-being Act 

(2014) 
 Welsh Language Standards under s 44 

Welsh Language (Wales) measure 2011
 Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA)
 Data Protection Act
 Equalities Act 2010
 Disability Acts
 Employment and Employee Acts
 Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 and 

subsequent respective legislation
 Environmental Protection Act 1990
 Clean Neighbourhood Act & Environment 

Act 2005
 Anti-Social Behaviour (Crime and Policing) 

Act 2014
 Police & Crime Act 2009
 One Wales Connecting the Nation, The 

Wales Transport Strategy 
 Swansea Bay City Region Economic 

Development Strategy

 EU revised Waste Framework Directive 
2008/98/EC

 Towards Zero Waste (WG’s overarching 
waste strategy document).

 Carmarthenshire County Council Corporate 
Strategy 2015 – 2020 

 Integrated Community Strategy 
 Ageing Well in Wales Plan 
 Strategic Regeneration Plan for 

Carmarthenshire 
 Carmarthenshire’s Vision for Sustainable 

Services for Older People for the Next 
Decade 

 Local Development Plan 
 The Environment Act
 Corporate Strategy
 Departmental Business Plans
 Planning (Wales) Act 2015, including 

various secondary legislation published 
post-January 2016

 Environment (Wales) Act 2016
 Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs)

Tudalen 70



Strategic Links

 The County of Carmarthenshire’s Well-being Plan

Over the course of 2017 Carmarthenshire’s Public Services Board (PSB) will be developing their 
partnership plan for improving the environmental, economic, social and cultural well-being of 
Carmarthenshire. The Well-Being Plan will identify priorities for the County and outline how 
the public bodies will work together to achieve them. Following the publication of the Well-
Being Plan in March 2018 Carmarthenshire County Council will be able to identify the areas 
that we can maximise our contribution towards. 

 Service Specific Acts 

Legislation introduced recently that is changing the way we work includes:

 Future Generations Act
 Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014
 Housing (Wales) Act 2014

 Carmarthenshire County Council’s Well-being Objectives

The County Council’s Well-being Objectives are currently being developed and will be 
published in March 2017.

The current Well-being Objectives that the Department leads on are:
 Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes
 Help people live healthy lives (Tackling risky behaviour and Adult obesity)
 Supporting good connections with friends, family and safer communities
 Support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity and independence 

in their later years

There are other Well-being Objectives that the Department has a major supporting role in:
 Help children live healthy lifestyles;
 Reduce the number of young adults that are NEET 
 Tackling Poverty
 Look after the environment now and for the future
 A Council wide approach to supporting Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 71

http://www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales/


Page | 14 

 Carmarthenshire’s Corporate Strategy 2015-20 

In September 2015 the Council published its Corporate Strategy and outlined its key areas of focus across 
seven outcome areas.  The Corporate Strategy will be revised following the May 2017 Local Government 
Elections.  

The Department for Communities leads on 6 of the Corporate Strategy outcomes and strategic focus, and 
provides significant support on 25 of the outcomes and strategic focus.

In particular, the Department supports the following outcomes within the Corporate Strategy:

Ref Corporate Strategic Expected Outcomes and Strategic Focus Lead Role Significant
Support

 
Making Better Use of Resources

1 Managing and making best use of the Council’s property and assets with a focus on 
rationalising office accommodation and sharing with other partners as well as facilitating 
community ownership of assets for community benefit  



2 Providing services as efficiently as possible, ensuring value for money and supporting staff 
in order to reduce sickness absence rates



3 Investigating and developing new ways of working and providing services 
4 Working in collaboration with other organisations to identify areas for shared services 

and economies of scale to reduce running costs


5 Reviewing management and 'back office' costs in order where possible to safeguard 'front 
line' services.



Building a Better Council
6 Promoting local democracy and transparency by further developing approaches to 

engaging and communicating with our residents and stakeholders including the increased 
use of digital technologies



9 Developing an integrated workforce plan that supports the Council’s strategic objectives. 
10 Increasing collaboration with our partners and communities in order support the delivery 

of services


11 Responding to the need to reform local government and ensuring Carmarthenshire is well 
positioned in any future arrangements.



12 Strengthening the position of the Welsh language in Carmarthenshire by implementing 
the recommendations of the ‘Welsh Language in Carmarthenshire’s report (March 2014)



People in Carmarthenshire are healthier
13 Ensuring further integration of community focused Council support services with health 

services


14 Enhancing the range of community options to support older people to remain 
independent in their later years 



16 Increasing the availability of rented and affordable homes to support the needs of local 
people by building new homes, bringing empty homes back into use and ensuring an 
allocation of affordable homes on new developments



17 Mitigating the local impacts of welfare reform by supporting effected residents through 
the changes 



18 Supporting residents suffering from fuel poverty and introducing renewable energy 
technology to our tenants homes in order to save them money on energy costs



19 Getting more Carmarthenshire people more (physically and creatively) active, more often 
in order to improve the health and well-being of our residents. 



People in Carmarthenshire fulfil their learning potential
27 Further developing Welsh medium and bilingual education provision within the County in 

accordance with the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan


People who live, work and visit Carmarthenshire are safe and feel saferTudalen 72



Page | 15 

28 Protecting and safeguarding children and adults from harm 
32 Reducing anti-social behaviour by working in partnership with other agencies and 

communities to tackle local problems


33 Reducing drug and alcohol misuse within the county 
Carmarthenshire’s communities and environment are sustainable

35 Supporting resilience with our rural and urban communities 
37 Improving digital inclusion within the county but ensuring access to IT equipment, 

developing digital literacy and supporting connectivity for our communities


Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy
38 Creating jobs and growth throughout the County 
39 Developing training and learning opportunities for local people 
41 Ensuring long-term economic and social benefits for Carmarthenshire through the 

Swansea Bay City Region and future European and external funding avenues


Core Values

Customers First – we put the needs of our 
citizens at the heart of everything that we do 
Listening – we listen to learn, understand and 
improve now and in the future 
Excellence – we constantly strive for excellence, 
delivering the highest quality possible every time 
by being creative, adopting innovative ways of 
working and taking measured risks 
Integrity – we act with integrity and do the right 
things at all times 
Taking Responsibility – we all take personal 
ownership and accountability for our actions 

We will measure how well we achieve the above through our departmental performance management 
framework and the following key deliverables: 

 Responding to our customers – answering the telephone, correspondence, email when our 
customers contact us  

 Information, Advice and Assistance  – ensuring that customers receive accurate information and 
advice in a timely manner and in an accessible format which meets their needs 

 People are satisfied with the service that they receive – listening to what people tell us and 
shaping our services accordingly  

 Annual appraisals – ensuring that everyone receives an annual appraisal which agrees  
objectives as well as learning and development needs for the year ahead 

 Managing our services within budget – ensuring that we deliver services appropriate to the 
determined need whilst remaining within our financial resources

 Delivering excellent services – through the introduction of new ways of working, adoption of 
new technology, the implementation of service improvements and through taking appropriate 
calculated risks 

Tudalen 73



Page | 16 

3. Review and Evaluation 

Events and Awards

The Commissioning event ran by Carmarthenshire County Council and attendance from Assistant Chief 
Inspector David Francis during March 2017.  Letter of recognition.  The council had arranged the event 
in response to so much interest in in the good practice we had highlighted in our inspection and our 
recognition that Carmarthenshire in our view were the most advanced in taking forward sustainable, 
outcome focussed approaches to commissioning.  Here is what he said:

“Carmarthenshire presented their approach in detail, the journey and outcomes so far and their plans 
moving ahead. I really think there is a lot to draw down when thinking about national frameworks and I 
know Maria has been in contact with Carmarthenshire.
 
I was again very impressed. It’s not revolutionary but it is innovative and progressive and 
Carmarthenshire would be the first to say there is more they can do to improve and refine the system 
e.g. in relation to initial assessments.
 
What I liked:
 
Long term relationship building, inclusion of providers in strategic planning and the emphasis on 
partnership, joint solution finding and trust.

 Well structured, careful tendering process with emphasis on sustainability 
 NB The use of a patchwork model (NOT ZONING), and the retention of local SMEs to underwrite 

capacity
 NB The time allocation model (not slots) with allowance for meet/ greet and flexibility on the 

day and costs model based on payments for both visits and care time
 NB mandatory use of Electronic Call Monitoring with flexibility in use of systems and flexible 

collection of output data
 NB Workforce requirements, inc. requirement to offer min 12 hours contracts
 Management of contingencies and risk
 NB the bespoke reconciliation and payments system they have designed which is very efficient 

and provides not only an efficient payment/ variance system but an effective basis for quality 
monitoring e.g. carer continuity, missed calls, reducing dependency etc. Care is paid by the 
minute. This model could be developed for national application. 

 Application of John Bolton thinking in relation to small packages of care and the reductions 
already being achieved

 NB Releasing time project on double handed care

I noted that the main project has achieved a reduction of 7% use of hours (47,000 a year) with further 
reductions from the JB and double handed work and this arises because of more effective use of “on 
site” time and trusting providers and not confining to timeslots. There is greater transparency in the 
system and reductions in DToC.
 
I had spoken at length to one of their main framework providers the day before who provides care 
across UK. He was very complimentary about Carmarthenshire, the systems and the trust which had 
built up and the commissioners’’ understanding of his business needs. 
 
I am keen to ensure the benefits and opportunities of this practice is carefully understood and 
considered as we move toward national frameworks.”Tudalen 74



Page | 17 

 
British Association of Social Work (BASW) Cymru Awards which was held in Cardiff on 
11th October, 2016

Carmarthenshire County Council’s social care staff have been recognised for their work in a national 
awards ceremony.  Five staff members and two teams were commended by the British Association of 
Social Workers (BASW).

* Janet Davies, Social Worker received a Lifetime Achievement Certificate of Merit Award for her 
lifetime commitment to direct working with service users.  Janet has worked for 38 years in child care, 
hospital and now the adult team.  

* Kenneth Lloyd, Team Manager also received a Lifetime Achievement Certificate of Merit Award for 
his commitment to mental health social work.  Ken has been an Approved Social Worker for the last 17 
years.  In 2008 he was appointed as one of the Council’s two professional leads in mental Health.

* Jan Evans, Assistant Team Manager received a Certificate of Merit for Innovation Award for her 
commitment in developing the Social Care Induction Framework for Shared Lives Carers in Wales.  

*Clare Yarnton, Team Manager received a Certificate of Merit in the Practice Teaching Category.  
Clare was nominated for the excellent learning opportunities she offers her students and for mentoring 
newly qualified social workers.

*Sarah Lloyd, Senior Practitioner received a Certificate of Merit in the Spirit of Social Work category 
for her skills in direct work with young people and families as well as her contribution to training.

*Carmarthenshire Substance Misuse Team – The Team received the Social Work Team Award.  
The Team are constantly innovating and aiming to improve the services that they offer.  They are an 
extremely committed group of professionals with a strong team ethos.  Their effectiveness is 
demonstrated by the positive testimony they receive year on year from people who feel their lives have 
changed as a result of the Team’s input.

*3Ts Social Work Team – The Team also received the Social Work Team Award.  The team have 
developed close working relationships with the GP practices in their area and support the development 
of “Stay Well” plans for frail patients.  These plans draw on support available in the patient’s home area 
as well as the development of contingency plans.  Successfully negotiating with GPs to adopt this 
innovative way of working is a tribute to the professionalism of the team and their determination to 
improve the health and well-being of people living in their area.

Executive board member for health and social care, Cllr Jane Tremlett said: “These awards promote the 
positive aspects of our profession, great social work practice and supportive organisations. What an 
achievement for Carmarthenshire County Council’s social care team, we had commendations in every 
category and it just goes to show their dedication and commitment. We are extremely proud of the 
team we have in Carmarthenshire.”

Tudalen 75



Page | 18 

Communication

In 2015, we found that 35% of you weren’t receiving ‘appraisals’.  As a DMT, we looked at this and we 
included it as an action in our Performance Management Framework.  Heads of Service also took this on 
board with their divisional management teams to look at local arrangements and how any difficulties 
could be overcome.  We have also looked at the systems that can help us to record and monitor 
appraisal activity.  
Our goal is to ensure that everyone receives an appraisal which will benefit you as individuals, giving 
you clarity on your performance, your goals and any support that you may need.  

We have improved in the latest survey – nearly 80% of you are now receiving these reviews – and it is 
our ambition that we will achieve 100% in 2017/18.

Over 600 people have responded to the latest survey, about one third of the workforce.  As a whole, the 
results were positive:

 Nearly all staff felt that they were competent and confident in carrying out their duties.  
 Around 9 out of 10 said that they had job satisfaction (based on a score of 3 or higher, out of 5)
 Around 80% confirmed that they are having annual reviews (up from 65.4% in 2015).  Of the 280 

people having these reviews, most were happy with their effectiveness.  

So, what are we going to do next?

DMT have agreed the following actions:

 Communication – based on your feedback, communication is something that we need to look 
at.  We will review the current arrangements for staff communication (in both directions) and 
develop a communications plan.  We know that there are a wide range of staff working in a 
variety of settings and any plan has to also address the needs of those who don’t have access to 
Council computers.  We will seek your views on how we can do this.

 Appraisals – we will build on our progress in this area with the aim that everyone is given the 
opportunity to have an annual discussion with their manager to reflect on past performance, 
plan future goals and discuss any support that may be needed.  Our actions include the 
development and roll-out of a module on Resource Link so that appraisals can be recorded and 
activity monitored more effectively, as well as looking at improving the quality of the process 
and ensuring consistency through providing briefing sessions for managers.  

 The use of the appraisal module on Resource Link will make the recording and monitoring of 
these discussions easier.  We are also looking at providing learning and development to our 
managers so that the discussions are effective.

 Engagement with staff – I intend to meet with small groups of staff over the coming months 
from all areas of the service to hear their experiences directly and discuss their views on where 
we can improve. 

Tudalen 76



Page | 19 

Population Needs Assessment
Introduction
The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act places a strong emphasis on cooperation and partnership 
working between agencies, and with citizens, to ensure that the very best help is available to those that 
need care and support within our communities. Two core principles lie at the heart of the West Wales 
Care Partnership and all that it seeks to achieve: Firstly, that the citizen’s voice must be paramount in 
shaping the way in which care and support is delivered in our region and secondly that by working 
collaboratively local authorities, the NHS and our partners in the third and independent sectors we can 
become both more efficient and responsive to the needs of the individuals and communities we are all 
here to serve. 

As a result we have, for the first time, a comprehensive overview of care and support needs across the 
region, examples of innovation and good practice and numerous pointers in terms of where we still 
need to improve. We are clear that this is just the start of a much longer process. Not only will the 
Assessment form the basis for our Area Plan, we will also ensure that it feeds into local improvement 
plans within individual agencies and is used as a baseline against which the partnership can assess its 
progress over the coming months and years. 

Ensure that the citizen’s voice is taken into account at all stages in the planning and delivery of care and 
support. In so doing we are confident that we will build strong, resilient communities in which people 
work together to deliver positive outcomes and all play a part in supporting and protecting those most 
in need. 

Overview and purpose
The Population Assessment will be a key driver for the integration and transformation of care and support in 
West Wales over the coming period. The Regional Partnership Board (RPB), which has been established 
under Part 9 of the Act and has responsibility for promoting integration and a partnership approach to 
service improvement.

How we undertook the Population Assessment

The Assessment was undertaken collaboratively by all partners in the region and has been agreed by 
the RPB. It has also been endorsed by the three LAs and the UHB, signifying a shared commitment 
across partner agencies to address its findings.

Opportunities were taken to engage with people needing care and support and their carers across West 
Wales. Questions relating to people’s experience of care and support and their thoughts on how things 
might be improved were included in the Wellbeing Survey conducted across the region during August and 
September 2016 to inform the Wellbeing Assessment required under the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act.

Recommendations 
Whilst specific areas for improvement are identified in each of the thematic reports, a number of 
generic recommendations have been identified for consideration by the Regional 
Partnership Board and its constituent agencies. These are set out below under the core 
principles of the Act: 

 Voice and control 
 Prevention and early intervention 
 Wellbeing 
 Co-production 
 Cooperation, partnership and integration Tudalen 77



Page | 20 

Thematic Reports 
For each of the Core Themes at the heart of the population assessment, namely: 

 Carers 
 Children and Young People (C&YP) 
 Health and Physical Disabilities 
 Learning Disabilities and Autism 
 Mental Health 
 Substance Misuse 
 Older People 
 Sensory Impairment 
 Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) 

 

Tudalen 78



Page | 21 

4. Departmental Priorities 

Integrated Services (Older Persons & Physical Disabilities) Division 

We must take all reasonable steps (in exercising functions) to maximise our contribution to the 7 Well-being Goals
*SEP – Strategic Equality Plan 2016-20
*WBO – Well-being Objectives

Ref Service Priorities
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures

By When#1 By Who

1 To identify the strengths and resources within communities  which can 
contribute to promoting and supporting the health and wellbeing of 
their population

April 2018 Julia Wilkinson

2 To implement the Codes of Practice within the  Social Services & Well-
being Act to all relevant service areas

April 2018 Jayne Thomas

3 To progress and develop a robust and efficient Information Advice & 
Assistance service

April 2018 Sam Watkins

4 To embed the population needs assessment into service planning at 
locality level

April 2018 Julia Wilkinson

5
*SEP

To promote the Welsh language and ensure compliance with the 
‘Active Offer’ across all service areas

April 2018 Rhian Dawson

6 Workforce modernisation to support implementation of the duties 
under the SSWBA and the objectives outlined in ‘Carmarthenshire’s 
Vision for Sustainable Services for Older People for the Next Decade’ 
and the Health Board’s Integrated Medium Term Plan. 

April 2018 Rhian Dawson

7 To progress prudent commissioning using effective professional and 
performance management

April 2018 Locality 
Managers

8 To manage the risks associated with outstanding reviews and DoLS 
applications

April 2018 Jayne 
Thomas

9 To effectively commission short term assessment and interventions to 
maximise independence and wellbeing outcomes for our population

April 2018 Debra 
Llewellyn  

Chris 
Harrison

10
*SEP

To implement actions within the Regional Dementia plan in line with 
the findings of the Older People’s Commissioner report “More than 
just Memory Loss”

April 2018 Julia Wilkinson

11 To develop a vision for sustainable services to support younger adults 
of working age

April 2018 Jane Wood 
Rhian Dawson

12 To utilise Part 9 of the SSWBA / Section 33 agreement to develop 
“shadow” pooled funds to jointly plan services with the HDUHB and 
make efficient use of resources

November 
2018

Rhian 
Dawson

#1 By When: If a three year project, also enclose a 2017/18 Milestone

Risks

 Not delivering on financial efficiencies will compromise our ability to deliver future services and 
progress the modernisation agenda

 Failure to respond in a timely manner to "Careline" contact calls could result in compromised 
client safety

Tudalen 79



Page | 22 

 There will be over provision and sub optimal outcomes for individuals if care and support plans 
are not person centred and outcome focused

Mental Health, Learning Disability Services & Safeguarding Division 

We must take all reasonable steps (in exercising functions) to maximise our contribution to the 7 Well-being Goals
*SEP – Strategic Equality Plan 2016-20
*WBO – Well-being Objectives

Ref Service Priorities
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures

By When#1 By Who

1 Ensure our specialist substance misuse team meets the needs of 
children and adult services by providing expert advice, support and 
direct input to front line teams

March 
2018

Kelvin Barlow

2 Review social work resource to increase mental health, safeguarding 
and learning disability response at the point of entry

September
2017

Mark Evans

3 Continue to embed the performance management culture and budget 
management within operational teams

December
2017

Senior 
Managers

4 We will implement a personalised approach to allocating resources for 
young people, ensuring that services are delivered on the basis of need

September 
2017

Kelvin Barlow

5
*SEP

Contribute to health led transformation programmes in mental health 
and redesign of services within learning disability

December 
2017

Mark Evans

6 Review substance misuse service and strengthen links with the Area 
Planning Board

October 
2017

Kelvin Barlow

7 Review third sector contracts to establish compliance with the SSWB 
Act and service transformation in mental health and learning disability

July 2017 Mark Evans

8 Revaluate and redesign safeguarding processes (in collaboration with 
partner agencies) to ensure they are complaint with the SSWB Act’s 
requirements

June 2017 Cathy 
Richards

9 Embed a person centred approach to safeguarding which ensures the 
service user is heard and central in decision making

October
2017

Cathy 
Richards

10
*SEP

Establish and promote an “everybody’s business “approach to 
safeguarding in Carmarthenshire by working with local authority 
colleagues and partner agencies

December
2017

All Senior 
Managers

11
*SEP

To implement a robust strategy for successfully managing new and 
historical DOLS applications

May 2017 Cathy 
Richards

12 We will ensure that young people and adults have equal access to 
education, training, work and leisure opportunities

November
2017

Sharon 
Frewin

13 Expand the Cynydd programme and Cae Nesaf projects in relation to 
those young people who are NEET and at risk of becoming NEET

December
2017

Sharon 
Frewin

14 Review our disability service to ensure seamless transition and 
pathways from children to adults

September
2017

Kelvin 
Barlow

15 We will extend the specialist provision at Garreglwyd as a centre of 
excellence for children and young people with Autistic Spectrum 
disorder

September
2017

Kelvin 
Barlow

16 Develop a commissioning strategy for mental health and learning 
disabilities

December 
2017

Mark 
Evans/Kelvin 

Tudalen 80



Page | 23 

Risks

 Outcomes for young people and service capacity will be compromised if we do not have a 
seamless pathway from transition into adult care

 Not delivering on savings will impact on future service provision
 Individuals will not be safeguarded and a risk of legal challenge and financial penalty if we do not 

manage the DOLs referrals 
 Outcomes for individuals will be compromised and a risk of duplication and loss of funding if we 

do not collaborate with partner
 Financial savings will not be achieved and individuals will not be safeguarded if assessments and 

reviews are not completed
 The number of adults going into residential care will increase and there will be an impact on 

financial savings if we do not develop alternative community provision
 There will be over provision/poor outcomes for individuals if care/support plans and service 

delivery plans are not person centred and outcome focussed

Housing, Public Protection & Care & Support Services

We must take all reasonable steps (in exercising functions) to maximise our contribution to the 7 Well-being Goals
*SEP – Strategic Equality Plan 2016-20
*WBO – Well-being Objectives

Ref Service Priorities
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures

By When By Who

Care and Support Services
1 Undertake a ‘property asset’ review to determine the condition of 

the Care Homes and secure investment in order to upgrade achieving 
the highest standards to meet future care & support needs exceeding 
the  regulation and registration requirements of the Care Standards 
Act 2000               

March 
2018

Gail Jones

2 Review service models in line with any revised commissioning 
arrangements for  Domiciliary, Care Home and Day Centre Services

March 
2018

Gail Jones

Barlow
17 Contribute to the market position statement and the local area plan in 

conjunction with regional partnership
June 2017 Mark 

Evans/Kelvin 
Barlow

18 Collaborate with colleagues in commissioning and housing in order to 
increase the range of accommodation options

March 
2018

Mark 
Evans/Kelvin 

Barlow
19 Implement new service model following  TIC review September

2017 
Sharon 
Frewin

20 Increase Direct Payments and use of citizen directed cooperatives at 
operational, commissioning and contracting levels

March 
2018

All Senior 
Managers

21 Increase capacity of Shared Lives and develop Home Share pilot November
2017

Sharon 
Frewin

22 Collaborate with colleagues in commissioning and housing to increase 
the range of accommodation options

March 
2018

Mark 
Evans/Kelvin 

Barlow

Tudalen 81



Page | 24 

3 Prepare for the implementation of the Regulation and Inspection of 
Social Care (Wales) Act  

March 
2018

Gail Jones

4 Work with colleagues on the Project Board to deliver an options 
appraisal and potential business case(s) regarding the possibility of 
delivering some or all of the existing in-house social care through an 
alternative service delivery model                                                                        

May 2017 Gail Jones

5 Develop new service models to further support dementia care both 
in the community and in long term placement

March 
2018

Gail Jones

6 Review IT systems and equipment to assist transformation of services                                       December 
2017

Gail Jones

Housing and Community Support Team
1 Produce a longer term digital services plan March 

2018
Les James

2 Enable staff to become digital champions by using new technology March 
2018

Les James

3 Understand implications of Renting Homes Act and review our 
procedures accordingly

September 
2018

Les James

4 Develop our vision of tenant involvement September 
2018

Les James

5 Survey all our garage sites to ensure they are fit for purpose, and 
producing local action plans for each site

May 2018 Les James

6 Review our grounds maintenance (grass cutting) contract so that it 
reflects what matters to our tenants 

December 
2017

Les James

7 Prepare for the Introduction of Universal Credit March 
2018

Les James

8 Introduce a new gas and solid fuel servicing contract that will 
improve our performance on servicing heating appliances

October 
2017

Les James

10 Develop a range of options which rewards tenants who look after 
their home

October 
2017

Les James

11 Develop a tenant online portal which gives access to their rent 
account, outstanding repairs and transfer applications

December 
2017

Les James

Housing Advice and Options Team

Deliver commitments outlined in the Affordable Housing Five Year 
Plan 
-Bring back 50 more empty homes a year as affordable housing
-Develop our in-house Social Letting Agency so we manage 50 new 
properties a year

March 
2018

Jonathan 
Willis

Promote and develop National Licensing of Landlords including setting 
up landlords training and undertaking proactive enforcement (March 
2018)

March 
2018

Jonathan 
Willis

Review in conjunction New Homes Team and RSL partners the process 
of letting social housing (March 2018) 

March 
2018

Jonathan 
Willis

Develop a plan in relation to providing housing options to single March Jonathan Tudalen 82



Page | 25 

people (March 2018) 2018 Willis
Develop a plan in relation to how we manage and procure temporary 
accommodation (March 2018)

March 
2018

Jonathan 
Willis

Review our approach to Health and Homelessness (September 2017) September 
2017

Jonathan 
Willis

Develop a new Homelessness Strategy (March 2018) March 
2018

Jonathan 
Willis

Develop an approach for targeted area housing improvement 
including identifying opportunities from the Swansea Bay Region 
(March 2018)

March 
2018

Jonathan 
Willis

Evaluate local lettings policy and proposal of any amendments 
(September 2017)    

September 
2017

Jonathan 
Willis

Investment and Older People Team
1 Establish a new service delivery model to provide more affordable 

housing (December 2017) 
December 
2017

Jonathan 
Morgan

2 Complete the review of HRA spending and costs March 
2018

Jonathan 
Morgan

3 Undertake a review to determine the present condition of care homes 
and sheltered housing, highlighting future investment priorities to 
meet future care & support needs of older people       

March 
2018

Jonathan 
Morgan

4 Embed housing in the regeneration process (March 2018) March 
2018

Jonathan 
Morgan

5 Develop a new approach to better understand future housing and 
accommodation needs, particularly in rural areas and for specific client 
groups (March 2018)

March 
2018

Jonathan 
Morgan

6 Engage with tenants and key partners to get their views on potential 
improvements to the CHS+ (March 2018)

March 
2018

Jonathan 
Morgan

7
*SEP

Deliver the affordable home delivery plan (March 2019) March 
2019

Jonathan 
Morgan

8 Engage with Swansea Bay City Region partners’ to deliver energy 
efficiency improvements to homes- ???

Jonathan 
Morgan

Environmental Health and Licensing Team
1 Maintaining good air and water (drinking & recreational) quality for 

the residents of and visitors to the County implementing a sampling 
programme with risk assessments to monitor radon in private water 
and remediation as necessary 

March 
2018

Sue Watts

2 Engage with stakeholders and use feedback to identify and 
implement service improvements

September 
2017

Sue Watts

3 Evaluate the best means of raising awareness of Healthy Options 
through stakeholder engagement 

September 
2017

Sue Watts

4 To provide and deliver a food service delivery plan in accordance 
with the FSA agency framework agreement  

March 
2018

Sue Watts

5 Work to ensure that companies do not fall below level 3 of the Food 
Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act (March 2018)
Implement the monitoring of shellfish in accordance with Welsh 

March 
2018

Sue Watts

Tudalen 83



Page | 26 

Government and FSA to ensure that they satisfy standards for 
commercial gathering

6
*SEP

Developing the action plans for air quality monitoring in Llanelli and 
Carmarthen   

Sue Watts

Trading Standards and Animal Health Team
1 Promoting financial literacy through the FESS scheme (March 2018) Roger 

Edmunds

2 Deliver the current national Trading Standards and Animal Health 
enforcement priorities for Wales and UK

March 
2018

Roger 
Edmunds

3 Develop further partnership arrangements in respect to financial 
exploitation 

March 
2018

Roger 
Edmunds

4 Develop marketing and commercial boundaries with regard to income 
generation 

March 
2018

Roger 
Edmunds

5 Increasing the number of vulnerable and disadvantaged people 
protected through FESS (March 2018)

March 
2018

Roger 
Edmunds

6 Ensuring the promotion of product safety through advice and 
guidance to local businesses  delivered via web site (March 2018) 

March 
2018

Roger 
Edmunds

7 Further developing Money Sense web resource in order to enhance 
income generation develop product and market it 

March 
2018

Roger 
Edmunds

8 Implement proceeds of crime across regulatory services March 
2018

Roger 
Edmunds

Risks

 Maintain the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard (CHS) in the future
 Deliver the affordable homes plan
 Mitigate the effects of welfare reform and introduction of universal credit

Leisure Services Division 

We must take all reasonable steps (in exercising functions) to maximise our contribution to the 7 Well-being GoalsTudalen 84



Page | 27 

*SEP – Strategic Equality Plan 2016-20
*WBO – Well-being Objectives

Ref Service Priorities
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures

By When By Who

Service Head
1 Develop plans for new Llanelli Wellness Hub (Leisure Centre) as part of 

Wellness village and life sciences hub at Delta Lakes
March 
2018

Ian Jones

2 Assist with delivery of Parc Howard masterplan, working closely with 
Environment dept. and key stakeholders

March 
2018

Ian Jones

3 Feed into Pendine local regeneration master plan, including provision 
for Museum of Speed, and Outdoor Recreation 

March 
2018

Ian Jones

4
*WBO8

Implement Cycling Strategy for Carmarthenshire to include focus on: 
Events; Development and Infrastructure.

March 
2018

Ian Jones

5 Continue to invest time in regional collaboration and working. March 
2018

Ian Jones 
/All Senior 
Managers

6
*SEP

*WBO8

Deliver Cycling infrastructure schemes at:
- Carmarthen Park Velodrome
- Closed Circuit track facility (location tbc)
- Assist with Tywi Valley cycleway scheme
-

May 2018 Ian Jones / 
Richard 

Stradling

Business and Project Manager 
1 Manage Workplace health champion to effect change in physical 

activity levels of staff and adults on a sustainable basis
March 
2018

Richard 
Stradling

2 Pro-active H&S management with ongoing site / service reviews 
throughout the year  

March 
2018

Richard 
Stradling

3 Work with TIC team and Service managers to effect improvements in 
service delivery and performance across the Leisure division. 

March 
2018

Richard 
Stradling

4
*WBO8

Complete Carmarthen Park Velodrome Project in conjunction with 
Carmarthen Town Council.

Summer 
2017

Richard 
Stradling

Outdoor Recreation Services 
1 Work with Environment Dept. to undertake full dredge of Burry Port 

Harbour and develop a programme of works to repair the listed 
harbour walls

December  
2017

2 Review role of Rights of way maintenance unit as part of wider grounds 
maintenance review within the Environment dept.  

May 2016 Senior 
Outdoor 

Recreation 
Mgr

3 Review outdoor events strategy for the County, linking with Tourism, 
co-ordinating the bid to stage Grand Depart of Tour of Britain Cycle 
Race 2018 

March 
2018

Senior 
Outdoor 

Recreation 
Mgr

4
*WBO12

Development of £160k Carmarthen Wetlands gateway scheme March 
2018

Senior 
Outdoor 

Recreation 
Mgr

5 Complete £2m capital investment into Pembrey Country Park, to 
include:

- Upgraded comms links to PCP
- New Restaurant and activity centre
- New shower and toilet block

November 
2017

Senior 
Outdoor 

Recreation 
Mgr

Tudalen 85



Page | 28 

- New automated entrance barrier system
- New and upgraded caravan and campsite pitch layout (including 

automated booking system)
Sports and Leisure services 

1 Create and launch new Actif website with enhanced digital capability to 
join and book a wide range of facilities and products seamlessly.

October 
2017

Carl Daniels

2 Establish and embed a leadership academy for Sport & Leisure 
volunteers and staff so that all are fully supported and developed.

December 
2017

Carl Daniels

3 Complete and progress with site masterplans for Carmarthen, 
Ammanford and Pembrey Ski & Activity Centres to maximise activity 
and income generating opportunities.

March 
2018

Carl Daniels

4
*WBO2

Review and launch an overhauled suite of party packages and a 
progressive term-time activity programme for children that puts a 
pathway in place to develop the physical literacy of future generations.

November 
2017

Carl Daniels

5
*WBO2

Review and implement an improved pathway of aquatics provision that 
enables participants to reach their full potential.

December 
2017

Carl Daniels

6
*SEP

Create and implement an ‘Actif Accreditation’ quality assurance mark 
for community sports clubs in order to analyse and strengthen the 
sporting infrastructure.

Septem-
ber 2018

Carl Daniels

7
*WBO8

Ensure a range of targeted physical activity interventions are put in 
place across the life course to increase the activity levels of those who 
are inactive or at risk of becoming inactive.

March 
2018

Carl Daniels

8 Complete legal agreements with:
- Llandysul Canoe Centre; 
- NCE Pool 

October 
2017

Carl Daniels

9
*WBO11

Further develop National Exercise Referral Scheme (NERS) March 
2018

Carl Daniels

Culture Services 
1 Ensure Y Ffwrnes Social Enterprise areas are fully occupied July 2016 Jane Davies
2 Replacement of mobile Library fleet and service Sept 

2016
Jane Davies

3 Co-locating of Llandeilo Library into Civic building June 
2016 

Jane Davies

4 Review of Cultural Services Structure and Museums function in 
particular

July 2016 Jane Davies

5 Progress ACW funded scheme looking at re-development of Oriel 
Myrddin  

March 
2017

Jane Davies

6 Progress HLF funded Tywi Gateway scheme at Carmarthen Museum 
(PIMS) 

March 
2017

Jane Davies

7 Review of Archive service / accommodation (PIMS) March 
2017

Jane Davies

8 Agree master plan for Parc Howard Museum in conjunction with user 
group and Environment dept.

March 
2017

Jane Davies

9 Undertake a review of the Theatres structure March 
2017

Jane Davies

Risks

Tudalen 86



Page | 29 

 The risk of death or serious injury from drowning or heart attack from excessive exercise is very 
real in some services.  

 Convincing politicians of value and impact of Leisure is essential in order to stave off the risk of 
disproportionate cuts to a non-statutory service such as leisure.

 The service has to recognise customer demand trends and adapt to meet challenging income 
targets

 Unforeseen increase in energy cost.  External factors such as the weather can also affect income in 
Countryside facilities

 Maintaining a strong and positive public perception of services is essential in income generating 
areas where there is competition from the private sector

Commissioning Service Division 

We must take all reasonable steps (in exercising functions) to maximise our contribution to the 7 Well-being Goals

Re
f

Service Priorities
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures

By When By Who

1 To develop an overarching strategic commissioning document  to guide 
commissioning policy and practice

To develop a Dementia Strategy with Health/”More than just memory 
loss” 

To develop a Learning Disability Commissioning Strategy 

To develop a Physically Disability/Sensory Impairment Commissioning 
Strategy   

December 
2017

Neil 
Edwards

2 To continue to deliver savings through right size packaging and analysis 
of cost providers in the pan disability service areas as part of the 
Authority’s budget management. (Risk)

To implement a supported living capped rate for the supported living 
sector
To review high cost residential placements in a co-ordinated and 
effective manner
To develop a system of accountability whereby care providers account 
for the delivery of care hours
To undertake a series of high level contract negotiations to obtain 
financial savings
To complete the accommodation care and support needs project to 
assist future strategic planning
To drive change and culture working in partnership with the 
Assessment and care Management Teams

March 
2018

Trevor 
Stainsby/ 

Neil 
Edwards

3 To help people to recover so they are able to live as independently as 
possible

To refine and improve performance of the Reablement service
To support the development of assistive technology to support 
people’s independence

March 
2018

Chris 
Harrison

4 To promote health and wellbeing by building community capacity and 
developing preventative services (Risk)
To further develop a preventative model of service building on regional 

March 
2018

Chris 
Harrison

Tudalen 87



Page | 30 

work with the sector
To continue to build effective working relationships with third sector 
organisations to maximise their potential in meeting the requirements 
of the SSWB Act 2014 

5 To drive Service Improvement and Quality Assurance
To ensure compliance with the safeguarding provisions of the Act 2014 
by working effectively with the Safeguarding service
To develop, implement and review the Regional Quality Assurance 
Framework
To engage with care providers in the development and consolidation of 
an accountable, risk competent and safe culture that safeguards 
service users and encourages  learning
To run strategic fora between commissioner and provider to ensure 
clear understanding of both parties’  respective positions and achieve 
service improvement
To undertake health and safety audits in the learning disability and 
mental health care home sector and support introduction of the 
National Framework Agreement
To develop a programme of “meaningful outcomes” audits for care 
homes for older people

September 
2017

Neil 
Edwards/ 

Elaine 
Ablett

6 To undertake a whole system design analysis of the commissioning of 
domiciliary care with specific focus on:

Interface with hospital discharge planning and reablement
The pathway process
Market management of the independent sector 
Workforce development
Continuing emphasis on outcomes focussed work including dementia 
project

To prepare a procurement approach to community based services

December 
2018

September 
2017

Neil 
Edwards/ 

Alison 
Watkins

7 To further develop and implement within Supporting People (Risk):

Re-tendering of substance misuse services. This to be done as a 
regional exercise with Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion

Re-tendering of services for offenders. This to be done as a regional 
exercise with Pembrokeshire
Young people services procurement exercise
Re-tendering of services for women suffering domestic abuse. This to 
be considered as a regional exercise with Pembrokeshire and 
Ceredigion
Developing new services from gap analysis work as identified by local 
authority strategic leads and service providers.

December 
2017

Neil 
Edwards/ 

Alun Jones

8 To consolidate and develop services for carers in Carmarthenshire:  

To review and develop further a carers strategy for Carmarthenshire 
which will continue to implement the Carmarthenshire Carers Action 
Plan and maintain an open reporting framework on progress with the 
relevant bodies

April 2018 Jon Rees

Tudalen 88



Page | 31 

The development of a new regional strategy across HDUHB
To develop further the CISS Outreach and advocacy for carers
To improve the quality of Carers Assessments.

9 To develop a joint strategic approach between commissioning and 
workforce development with the development of a strategic workforce 
development plan

September 
2017

Neil 
Edwards

10 To ensure commissioning processes and commissioned services 
comply with the recently introduced Welsh Language Standards, in 
particular the “Active Offer”.

September 
2017

Neil 
Edwards

Risks

 Achieve our priority based budgeting efficiency savings targets
 Achieve compliance with the requirements of the SSWBA
 Avoid market failure
 Respond to reduction in Supporting People grant funding and comply with grant requirements

Business Support Service Division 

We must take all reasonable steps (in exercising functions) to maximise our contribution to the 7 Well-being Goals

Ref Service Priorities
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures

By When By Who

1 To explore and develop the use of electronic claims submitted as 
part of the new framework process to also be used as the source file 
to calculate the charge for the service users

March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Tracey 

Lewis

2 Review existing process and practice within the operational teams 
with a view of introducing a more paperless system to support 
mobile working

March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Rhys 

Page

3 To increase the level of debt which is secured and to minimise the 
risk to the Authority

March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Delyth 

Davies
4 To review the process for debt collection to ensure full compliance 

with the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014
March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Delyth 

Davies
5 Develop and implement arrangements to provide 6 monthly 

statements to all residents having entered into a Deferred Payment 
agreement as required by the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) 
Act 2014

March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Delyth 

Davies

6 Review the way service users are invoiced for residential care 
charges

March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Delyth 

Davies
7 Ensure that correspondence and other dialogue within the Division 

complies with the Welsh Language Standards which come into force 
March 
2017

Lyn Walters
Tudalen 89



Page | 32 

from 31st March 2016

8 Review the current Blue Badge process and Implement the Blue 
Badge Toolkit and assess eligibility for the majority of applicants 
without referral to GP’s.

March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Tracey 

Lewis

9 Implement the interim policy relating to the SSWA for charging and 
assess operational issues for inclusion in the new policy that is to be 
developed

March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Tracey 

Lewis

10 To assess and review the usage and occupancy of the Department’s 
minibuses to further improve occupancy rates.

March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Richard 

Davies
11 To develop a new charging policy for adults accessing services under 

the SSWB (W) Act  
March 
2017

Lyn 
Walters/Rhys 

Page

Risks

 Staff turnover and delays in appointing to vacancies will impact on the ability to deliver on the 
priorities

 Changes to community services and future structure of Provider Services may delay decisions on 
vehicle replacement/renewal impacting on service delivery by the Transport Unit

 Allocate funding for property repairs and maintenance is insufficient to respond to current need
 Potential changes to charges resulting to the new SSWW Act

Performance Analysis & Systems Service Division 

We must take all reasonable steps (in exercising functions) to maximise our contribution to the 7 Well-being Goals

Ref Service Priorities
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures

By When By Who

Short Term Action
1 Systems Support 

Continue with supporting and maintaining the current IT 
Systems within Housing and Public Protection.

Upgrade of the OHMS system 

Develop Ohms to accommodate the new Housing Allocation 
policy. 

Develop Ohms to provide an audit proof recording systems for 
the Affordable Homes Buy Back process. 

Develop a Low Cost Ownership Waiting list.

Develop APP to introduce new risk rating schemes for Trading 
Standards

April 
2018

Jonathan Davies

Tudalen 90



Page | 33 

2 Production, Monitoring and Challenge of Performance 
Management Reports
 Maintenance  of PIMS – Actions &  Measures 
 SSWB Measures 
 WAG performance indicators 
 Performance Management Framework
 ICF
 Provide and co-ordinate performance data for Monthly 

Members Briefings for Housing, Public Protection and 
Service Provision

 Integrated services Dash board 
 Production of ad hoc management information reports

March 
2018

Silvana Sauro
Amy Jones

Mark Bryant
Jonathan Davies

Lianne Jones
Simon Freimanis

Daniel John
John Arnold

3 Production, Monitoring and Challenge of ½ yearly Scrutiny 
Performance Reports 
Social Care and Health 
Communities 
Environment

March 
2018

Mark Bryant/Jonathan 
Davies

4 Information Analysis (including Access and Engagement)
 WLGA Residential  care survey 
 SSWB (W) Qualitative measures  
 Co-ordinate all departments surveys (task and finish 

group to be established)
 Staff surveys  
 Update internal websites 

March 
2018

Amy Jones / Lianne 
Jones

5 FOIA  requests 
Provision of management information for departmental FOIA 
requests  

March 
2018

Mark Bryant 
/Jonathan 
Davies

6 Information Analysis (Quality)  
 Co-ordinate any internal and external inspections for 

the 
Department. 

 Lead on the development of the new Annual  Report on 
performance and complaints 

 Develop electronic reporting procedures within Leisure 
services

Silvana Sauro
Amy Jones/Mark Bryant

Amy Jones

7 Management Information 
 Develop a data-warehouse for all measures and publish 

on the website
 Develop a Dashboard to display all measures  
 Develop a data catalogue for all measures in a tiered 

approach 
which will include:
Welsh Government 
Departments Performance framework 
Service requirements 

Jonathan Davies
Mark Bryant
Amy Jones

9  Management Information Reporting 
 Develop automated Sickness/Absence Reports, 
 Develop Appraisal Reporting via Resource link 
 Develop an automated process to access Health and 

Safety data on accidents and incidents to inform service 

Silvana Sauro

Tudalen 91



Page | 34 

improvements 
 Develop a process to capture Complaints and provide 

automated reports on performance data

Risks

 Keeping all the databases/systems live and up and running to support staff/managers

Ways of Working 

Which of the 5 Ways of working Strong How much work do we still need to do
Tudalen 92



Page | 35 

have we met? Partial
None

to meet these ways of working?

A

Looking at the long term so that 
we do not compromise the 
ability of future generations to 
meet their own needs

Partial

 Our present Corporate Strategy is set for 2015-20 
and we will be looking to revise this Strategy 
following the elections in May 2017.

 The Swansea Bay Regeneration Strategy is set for a 
2013-30 timespan & Swansea Bay City Region City 
Deal 2016-35.

B
Understanding the root causes 
of the issues to prevent them 
reoccurring

Partial

 The Swansea Bay Economic Regeneration Strategy 
and the City Deal 2016-2035 have examined some 
of the fundamental issues that need to be 
addressed to ensure economic success in the 
future.

 Our Wellbeing of Future Generations assessment 
work will help us identify some of the main areas of 
concern.

C

Taking an integrated approach 
so that we look at all well- being 
goals and objectives of other 
services and partners

Partial

 A recent CSSIW inspection (July 2016) recognised 
Multi-agency arrangements should be established 
to strengthen operational plans to support 
effective co-ordination of statutory partner’s 
completion of Joint Assessment Frameworks.

 Public Services Board
 Wales Audit Report

D

Collaboration - Working with 
others in a collaborative way to 
find shared sustainable 
solutions

Partial

 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 establishes a statutory board, known as a 
Public Service Board (PSB), in each local authority 
area in Wales. The first meeting was held in May 
2016.

 In its January 2016 Corporate Assessment of the 
Council, the Wales Audit Office concluded:-
‘The Council has a long, well-established and robust 
approach to partnership working that is improving 
outcomes for its citizens. The partnership with 
Hywel Dda University Health Board (HDUHB) is 
particularly strong, collaboration has become 
‘mainstreamed’ into the working relationship 
between the two organisations with a number of 
joint posts in place.’

E
Involvement a diversity of 
population in decisions that 
affect them 

Partial

 Our budget consultation work has been 
identified as best practice in Wales and we are 
building on this. We will be further developing 
the Council’s consultation and engagement 
approaches during 2017

 Our Well-being Assessment consultation had 
over 2,500 responses for Carmarthenshire 
residents.

5. Resources

Budget Summary Tudalen 93

http://thewaleswewant.co.uk/about/well-being-future-generations-wales-act-2015
http://thewaleswewant.co.uk/about/well-being-future-generations-wales-act-2015


Page | 36 

 Base Budget 2017-2018 Expenditure Income Net

Business Support and Service Improvement 4,396 -1,828 2,568 

Commissioning 1,713 0 1,713 

Housing and Public Protection 27,174 -16,259 10,915 

Integrated Services 48,359 -13,745 34,614 

Leisure 19,839 -8,194 11,645 

Mental Health and Learning Disability 42,309 -12,109 30,200 

Performance, Analysis & Systems 187 0 187 

 143,978 -52,135 91,843 

Savings and Efficiencies

Efficiency Proposals 2017-2018 Managerial 2017-2018 Policy

Business Support and Service 
Improvement

71 0 

Housing & Public Protection 560 85 

Integrated Services 721 0 

Leisure 72 40 

Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 870 0 

 2,294 125 

Workforce Planning

 Workforce Planning Toolkit and Divisional Profile to help complete this sectionTudalen 94

http://brian/worklife/Document%20Library/HR%20Policies%20and%20Guidance/Workforce%20planning/Workforce%20Planning.pdf


Page | 37 

Need to identify:

1. Current workforce issues?

2. Future business priorities and implications on the workforce?

3. What is your Development Plan to address the gap implications? (between 1 & 2 above)

A Departmental Workforce Plan is being drafted by the Departmental Management Team with support 
from HR staff, this section will be updated early in 2017.

Business Cycle

Action By When
Commissioning Leadership Team agree consultation plan July

Involve others to get their views and understand their expectations  September - November

Understand what people have told us, self-assess, plan for performance, 
review budgets and prepare equality impact assessments 

December

First draft of business plan January

Finalise business plan and get signed off March

Agree individual and team actions February/March

Implementation Plan April

Decision Making

Tudalen 95



Page | 38 

The following structure outlines Leadership and Governance for Social Services and how we operate 
within the Council’s decision making process.  All major decisions and policies are made by the County 
Council.

Carmarthenshire County Council 74 elected members. 

Executive Board 10 elected members, the Council’s cabinet. Chaired by 
the leader, Cllr E. Dole

Our Executive Board members
With a portfolio of; Social Care and Health; Adult Social 
Services; Residential Care; Home Care; Learning 
Disabilities; Mental Health; NHS Adult Social Services; 
Residential Care; Home Care; Learning Disabilities; 
Mental Health; NHS Liaison/Collaboration/Integration; 
Carers’ Champion; Dementia Care Champion; Disability 
Ambassador. 

Scrutiny Committees The decisions that we make are also scrutinised by 
elected members. We have the following scrutiny 
committee:

Social Care and Health: This committee is chaired Cllr G. 
Thomas and the Vice Chair is Cllr. S.M. Allen. The 
committee is made up of a cross section of members 
whose role is to challenge the decision-making process.

Corporate Management Team (CMT) Chaired by the Chief Executive and includes the Assistant 
Chief Executives and Directors

Departmental Management Team (DMT) Social Care, Health, Housing, Leisure management team. 
Chaired by the Director who is responsible for:

 Meeting our objectives   

 Business planning by self-assessment

 Resource management (including money, people, 
systems and other resources)

 Improving performance

 Workforce development and training

 Working with other councils and providers

 Improving our leadership of the division 

 Improving communication

Senior  Management Service and 
Performance Meetings

Chaired by the Head of Services

Tudalen 96



Page | 39 

Team Meetings Each team within the division has team meetings which 
feed into the decision making process. Managers update 
their teams with decisions made through a combination 
of group meetings and individual 1-2-1’s/supervision. 

Tudalen 97



Page | 40 

6. Key Measures

Leisure Services by Division

2015/16
2014/15

All Wales Comparative data
2016/17 2017/18Definition / Measure 

Reference

(abbreviated definition is 
fine)

Our 
Result

Our 
Result

Quartile
 * to 
****

Welsh 
Median

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile

Target 
set

Result 
(when 

available)

Target 
set 

(at EOY)

Cost 
Measure

(£)

LCL/00
1b

The number of 
visits to Public 
Libraries during 
the year, per 
1,000 population

6806 7203 **** 4576 5692 7274 5353

LCS/00
2b

The number of 
visits to local 
authority sport 
and leisure 
centres during the 
year where the 
visitor will be 
participating in 
physical activity, 
per 1,000 
population

7028 6905 * 8231 9382 7251 5511

Housing & Public Protection Services by Division

2015/16
2014/15

All Wales Comparative data
2016/17 2017/18Definition / Measure 

Reference

(abbreviated definition is 
fine)

Our 
Result

Our 
Result

Quartile
 * to 
****

Welsh 
Median

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile

Target 
set

Result 
(when 

available)

Target 
set 

(at EOY)

Cost 
Measure

(£)

PLA/00
6b

The number of 
additional 
affordable 
housing units 
provided during 
the year as a 
percentage of all 
additional housing 
units provided 
during the year

8 8 * 33 51 30 45

PPN/0
09

The percentage of 
food 
establishments 
which are 
‘broadly 
compliant‘ with 
food hygiene 
standards

94.16 94.98 * * * 94.28 95.66 93.00 96.71

Tudalen 98



Page | 41 

Definition / Measure 
Reference

(abbreviated definition is 
fine)

2014/15
2015/16

2016/17 2017/18 Cost 
Measure

(£)
All Wales Comparative data

Our 
Result

Our 
Result

Quartile
 * to 
****

Welsh 
Median

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile

Target 
set

Result 
(when 

available)

Target 
set 

(at EOY)

PSR/00
2

The average 
number of 
calendar days 
taken to deliver a 
Disabled Facilities 
Grant

252 232 * * * 235 189 220 168

PSR/00
4

The percentage of 
private sector 
dwellings that had 
been vacant for 
more than 6 
months at 1 April 
that were 
returned to 
occupation during 
the year through 
direct action by 
the local 
authority.

5.45 5.73 * * 6.43 13.82 6.00 5.29

PSR/00
6

The average 
number of 
calendar days 
taken to deliver 
low cost 
adaptation works 
(including 
equipment) in 
private dwellings 
where the 
Disabled Facilities 
Grant process is 
not used

8 8 10

Mental Health, Learning Disability Services & Safeguarding 
Services

2015/16
2014/15

All Wales Comparative data
2016/17 2017/18Definition / Measure 

Reference

(abbreviated definition is 
fine)

Our 
Result

Our 
Result

Quartile
 * to 
****

Welsh 
Median

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile

Target 
set

Result 
(when 

available)

Target 
set 

(at EOY)

Cost 
Measure

(£)

SCA/1
8

The percentage of 
adult protection 
enquiries 
completed within 
7 days

75.00

Tudalen 99



Page | 42 

Integrated Services (Older Persons & Physical Disabilities) 
Services

2015/16
2014/15

All Wales Comparative data
2016/17 2017/18Definition / Measure 

Reference

(abbreviated definition is 
fine)

Our 
Result

Our 
Result

Quartile
 * to 
****

Welsh 
Median

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile

Target 
set

Result 
(when 

available)

Target 
set 

(at EOY)

Cost 
Measure

(£)

SCA/1
9

The rate of 
delayed transfers 
of care for social 
care reasons per 
1,000 population 
aged 75 or over

6.18 4.69 * * 4.33 2.44 4.51 3.32

SCA/2
2

Average age of 
adults entering 
residential care 
homes

85

Welsh Government Returns
 WG Quantative Performance Date Returns
 WG Aggregate Data Collection Returns
 WG Qualitative Performance Measures
 WG SSDA 900 - Physical Disability Register
 WG SSDA 901 - Learning Disability Register
 WG Adult Safeguarding Return
 CSSIW DoLs Return
 Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring System (LAEMS)
 Noise Return
 Drinking Water Inspectorate
 Licensing Return
 National Fraud Initiative
 Housing Assistance/Housing Grants
 Housing Standards
 Section 70 Return
 Dogs Trust
 Homeless Return
 Rent Agreement SAP
 Rough sleepers
 Stock Rent
 WHQS Part 1 
 WHQS Part 2
 Rent Income Excellence Network
 HQN
 Rents, HB, DD, Former/Current Arrears

Tudalen 100



Page | 43 

Appendix 1

The Council’s Well-being Objectives

Draft Council Well Being Objectives

The division  
contributes 
significantly 

to the 
following 
Council 

Well- being 
Objectives

 MHLD 
Services

Integrated 
Services

Housing & 
PP Commissioning Leisure

1. Help to give every child the best 
start in life and improve their early 
life experiences

2. Help children live healthy lifestyles 
3. Continue to improve learner 

attainment for all (KIOP)
4. Reduce the number of young adults 

that are Not in Education, 
Employment or Training (KIOP)



5. Tackle poverty by doing all we can 
to prevent it, help people into work 
and improve the lives of those living 
in poverty (KIOP)



6. Create more jobs and growth 
throughout the county (KIOP)

7. Increase the availability of rented 
and affordable homes (KIOP)



8. Help people live healthy lives 
(tackling risky behaviour and 
obesity)

   

9. Support good connections with 
friends, family and safer 
communities

  

Age Well
10. Support the growing numbers of 

older people to maintain dignity 
and independence in their later 
years (KIOP)

 

11. A Council wide approach to support 
Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire

    

12. Look after the environment now 
and for the future (culture)



13. Improve the highway and transport 
infrastructure and connectivity 
(KIOP)

Tudalen 101



Page | 44 

Appendix 2
The seven Well-being goals of the Future Generations Act

A prosperous Wales

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of 
the global environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and 
proportionately (including acting on climate change), and which develops a skilled 
and well-educated population in an economy which generates wealth and 
provides employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the 
wealth generated through securing decent work.
 Contact Stuart Walters 3241 or Helen Morgan 4902 / Contact Dave Astins 6426

A resilient Wales
A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment with 
healthy functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological 
resilience and the capacity to adapt to change (for example climate change).
 Contact Rosie Carmichael 2727 or Isabel Macho 3390

A healthier Wales A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in 
which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood.
 Contact Joel Martin 2619

A more equal Wales
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their 
background or circumstances (including their socio economic background and 
circumstances).
 Contact Llinos Evans 4914

A Wales of cohesive 
communities

Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities.
 Contact Kate Thomas 4202

A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 

Welsh Language

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, 
and which encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and recreation.
 Contact Jane Davies 2180

A globally responsible 
Wales

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing 
such a thing makes a positive contribution to global well-being

Tudalen 102



Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - CYMUNEDAU 
30 MAWRTH, 2017

Y PWNC: 

Diweddariad Blynyddol: Gwasanaethau Hamdden

Y Pwrpas:  
Rhoi diweddariad i'r aelodau ynghylch rhaglen waith blynyddol yr is-adran 
Gwasanaethau Hamdden.

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Nodi'r diweddariad. 

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhoi gwybodaeth i'r aelodau'n gyson a'u cynnwys yn y broses gwella'r Gwasanaeth 
Hamdden.

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad: 
NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- 
Y Cynghorydd Meryl Gravell (Deiliad y Portffolio Adfywio a Hamdden)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Yr Adran Cymunedau 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
 Ian Jones
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Ian Jones

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Hamdden 

Rhifau ffôn: 
01267 228309

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
IJones@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 103

Eitem Rhif  7

mailto:IJones@sirgar.gov.uk


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

30TH MARCH, 2017 

SUBJECT: 
ANNUAL UPDATE: LEISURE SERVICES

SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

Leisure is a much valued, front line service providing a range of health and well-being 
related facilities, activities and programmes, all aimed at getting: 

More people, More active, More often.

We want Carmarthenshire to be a place:

 That is the most active and healthy in the UK
 Where every person is an active participant at a 'Community Club' or 'Leisure / Cultural 

Facility'
 Where every child is hooked on Leisure / Cultural activity for life

The service aims to deliver 7 key Outcomes for residents and visitors to the County:

 Outcome 1: People can access opportunities to be active 
 Outcome 2: More children & young people are hooked on leisure / cultural activity for 

life (0-24)
 Outcome 3: More people (25+ yrs) are active in Leisure and Culture
 Outcome 4: People are affiliated to clubs / community groups or facilities
 Outcome 5: People are given the skills to become physically and creatively literate for 

life
 Outcome 6: People achieve their potential
 Outcome 7: Our facilities and services are well managed and efficient

The purpose of this annual report is to update members in relation to actions and measures 
delivered by the division in relation to the above aims and objectives.  

The division is also in the process of drafting its 2017/18 business plan which looks forward at 
next year’s actions and would welcome members’ observations and comments as part of that 
process.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Tudalen 104



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:  Ian Jones                                                                 Head of Leisure                           

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

NO NO NO NO NO NO NO

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:    Ian Jones                                                             Head of Leisure                                              

1.Local Member(s)  
N/A  
2.Community / Town Council 
N/A
3.Relevant Partners  
N/A 
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  
N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

2016/17 Business plan 
for Leisure

HOS office, 3 Spilman Street, Carmarthen (also 
available electronically upon request)

Tudalen 105



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

Report of the Director of Community Services
Community Scrutiny Committee

30th March, 2017

Annual Report: Leisure Services

Head of Service & Designation.
Ian Jones
Head of Leisure

Directorate
Leisure

Telephone No.
01267 228309

1. Service Overview 

Leisure is a much valued, front line service providing a range of health and well-being related 
facilities, activities and programmes, all aimed at getting: 

More people, More active, More often.

We want Carmarthenshire to be a place:

 That is the most active and healthy in the UK
 Where every person is an active participant at a 'Community Club' or 'Leisure / Cultural 

Facility'
 Where every child is hooked on Leisure / Cultural activity for life

The service aims to deliver 7 key Outcomes for residents and visitors to the County:

 Outcome 1: People can access opportunities to be active 
 Outcome 2: More children & young people are hooked on leisure / cultural activity for life 

(0-24)
 Outcome 3: More people (25+ yrs) are active in Leisure and Culture
 Outcome 4: People are affiliated to clubs / community groups or facilities
 Outcome 5: People are given the skills to become physically and creatively literate for life
 Outcome 6: People achieve their potential
 Outcome 7: Our facilities and services are well managed and efficient

The service is non-statutory in the main, although elements of the service are classed as 
statutory, namely: Library services; elements of Archives and Museums Services, and KS2 
swimming provision for primary schools.

Tudalen 107



2

Action When by By Who

Service Head

Develop plans for new Llanelli Leisure Centre linked to 
wellness village and life sciences hub
Update: Specification for new Wellness hub (leisure centre) 
drafted and fed into project management team. 

March 2017 
and ongoing

HOS

Implement the new Countryside Structure
Update: Structure signed off 17th Nov ’16, with 3 new senior 
posts being advertised. New Senior Outdoor Recreation 
Manager appointed. Aim to get whole structure in place by 
end March ’17 in readiness for busy Spring / Summer ’17 
season 

March 2017 HOS

Review POEC provision and local regeneration master 
plan. 
Update: Meetings held with Regeneration team and 
Museum of Speed / Outdoor Education Centre Manager to 
co-ordinate next phases of development plan, potentially 
looking at a new Museum / Arts offer.

March 2017 HOS

Complete Cycling Strategy for Carmarthenshire to include 
focus on: Events; Development and Infrastructure.
Update: Strategy drafted and out to consultation with key 
users. Bid being submitted to host ‘Grand Depart’ of Tour of 
Britain 2018

March 17 HOS

Continue to invest time in regional collaboration and 
working.
Update: HOS continues to chair national Chief Culture & 
Leisure Chief Officers group for Wales (CCLOW); Service 
managers all engaged in regional collaboration groups

March 2017 HOS / Leisure 
Managers

Deliver Cycling infrastructure schemes at:
- Carmarthen Park Velodrome
- Closed Circuit track facility (location tbc)
- Assist with Tywi Valley cycleway scheme

Update: 
- Velodrome sample surfacing laid for testing. Looking 

to complete re-surface by Summer ‘17
- Closed Circuit: Paper presented to Executive Board 

with PCP agreed as final site location
- Tywi Valley: Being led by Highways, but scheme 

progressing with some sections already being 

March 2017 HOS / Business 
& Projects 
Manager

2. 2016/17 Year’s Achievements and Successes 
Member Foreword

Tudalen 108



3

progressed

Business and Project Manager 

Workplace champion post in place and working towards 
sustainable delivery model 
Update:- Member of staff has been appointed. Links have 
been established with the Occupational Health Team with 
the Health and Wellbeing Co-ordinator, the Occupational 
Health Team and the Business & Projects Manager working 
closely together over the 12 month period to roll out the 
Health and Wellbeing Champions programme across the 
authority.

March 2017 Business & 
Projects 
Manager

Pro-active H&S management with ongoing site / service 
reviews throughout the year
Update: - Monthly meetings are scheduled with the Health 
and Safety Advisor where divisional Health and Safety 
issues are discussed and future works areas are identified 
and prioritised.

March 2017 Business & 
Projects 
Manager

Finalise Customer contact / consultation strategy, using 
user / non user surveys
Update: - This is an ongoing piece of work and we are 
working closely with the Policy, Consultation and 
Engagement team to utilise existing established survey 
opportunities such as the Citizen Panel, 50+ Forum etc. to 
ask relevant service specific questions, the responses to 
which will help shape future service provision. The service 
is also utilising survey packages such as Snap Surveys and 
Net Promoter Score to gauge customer feedback.

January 2017 Business & 
Projects 
Manager

Outdoor Recreation Services 

Work with Environment Dept. to undertake dredge and wall 
repairs at Burry Port Harbour
Update: Funding agreed by EB and fully supported by 
Community Scrutiny on 20th January 2017 outlining 
preferred options, costs and timelines for works. 

January  2017 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

New wakeboarding franchise at North Dock, Llanelli 
Update: Potential operator did not proceed with 
development for Summer 2016, but still interested in 
implementing for 2017 Spring / Summer season

March 2017 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

Review outdoor events strategy for the County, linking with 
Tourism 
Update: Will not be completed until 2017/18 due to delays 

March 2017 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

Tudalen 109



4

in appointing to new Outdoor Recreation Structure.

Development of Carmarthen Wetlands scheme
Update: Phase 2 bid submitted to WEFO for £160k 
gateway project 

March 2017 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

Complete £250k capital investment into Pembrey Country 
Park
Update: New shower and toilet block for PCP caravan and 
campsite designed and costed, with work due to start in 
early 2017; Re-furb of existing restaurant building being 
designed and costed, with a view to starting works in early 
2017; New entrance barrier system being procured in 
partnership with Highways and transport division

March 2017 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

Sports and Leisure services 

Refurbish fitness facilities at 3 main leisure centre sites. 
Update: Circa £1m investment completed including new 
equipment and improved fitness suite décor at Llanelli, 
internal reconfigurations at Carmarthen and Ammanford 
increasing capacity and housing new equipment, along with 
providing new fitness spaces via a new dance studio at 
Ammanford and Spin and Functional Fitness studios at 
Carmarthen.

Dec 2017 Snr S&L Mgr

New Aquatics plan in place and being implemented 
including Learn to Swim for u5’s
Update: ‘Splash’ learn to swim programme now in place for 
children 4 months upwards. Increased membership and 
income.
Future Aquatics plan being finalised with Swim Wales.

Feb 2017 Snr S&L Mgr

Oversee a programme of planned maintenance and 
improvement works at key sites including: 

- AVLC wet-side changing rooms & fitness area
- Carmarthen Running track re-surface

Update: AVLC dry-side works complete. Wet-side 
refurbishment scheduled for 2017-18; Masterplan being 
created for site.
Carm Track re-surface to be part of Masterplan being 
created for site, including option to extend track by 2 lanes.

Planned maintenance process being established with 
Environment Department.

March 2017 Snr S&L Mgr

Complete legal agreements with:
- DIBC 
- Llandysul Canoe Centre; 

Mar 2017 Snr S&L Mgr

Tudalen 110



5

- NCE Pool 
Update: DIBC transferred via asset transfer. Discussions 
ongoing with Legal and Corporate Property to finalise legal 
agreements with Llandysul and NCE Pool.
Work with Carbon Trust to review and improve energy 
efficiency of buildings. 
Update: Work ongoing to implement energy improvement 
schemes. New pool covers in place at CLC, AVLC, LLC 
and Llandovery Pools and solar panels at Carmarthen 
Leisure Centre, saving an estimated £126k of energy 
usage per year.

Nov 2016 Snr S&L Mgr

Implement a health intervention programme targeted at 
women with an unhealthy weight during pregnancy.
Update: Sourced funding via Public Health Wales and now 
accepting referrals into our new ‘Baby Let’s Move’ initiative 
for expectant mothers with high BMI (Body Mass Index). 

Sept 2016 Snr S&L Mgr

Develop community sport, including via allocating Sport 
Wales Community Chest grants to clubs and organisations.
Update: Allocated over £83k of funding to 71 
clubs/organisations, engaged 53 sports clubs in an audit to 
inform future club development planning and set up 2 new 
Parkruns (junior run at Carmarthen Park; and Senior run at 
Pwll) working with volunteers in the community.

Mar 2017 Snr S&L Mgr

Culture Services 

Ensure Y Ffwrnes Social Enterprise areas are fully 
occupied
Update: Units have been advertised, but no interest at 
current specification / cost. Revised spec being prepared to 
go back out to advert

Jan 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Replacement of mobile Library fleet and service
Update: New vehicles due in March ’17. New routes being 
consulted on with a view to implementing new service with 
enhanced housebound provision in Spring ‘17

March 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Co-locating of Llandeilo Library into Civic building
Update: Opening 15th March ‘17

March 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Review of Cultural Services Structure and Museums 
function in particular
Update: New Museums Development Manager recruited. 
Advert being prepared for replacement Theatres Manager 
to be in post by late Summer ’17. Archives management 
being reviewed for consideration by Director in Spring ‘17

March 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Tudalen 111



6

Progress ACW funded scheme looking at re-development 
of Oriel Myrddin 
Update: ACW supported initial development phase bid. 
Stage 2 bid being worked up 

March 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Progress HLF funded Tywi Gateway scheme at 
Carmarthen Museum 
Update: HLF have supported initial development phase bid. 
Stage 2 bid being worked up

March 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Review of Archive service / accommodation 
Update: New Archive facility at rear of Carmarthen Library 
has been designed and costed, awaiting sign off to 
progress to build phase.  

Dec 2016 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr 

Agree master plan for Parc Howard Museum in conjunction 
with user group and Environment dept
Update: Masterplan agreed by EB. Heritage 6 project and 
spec for commercial leasing of ground floor being worked 
up  

March 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr 

Undertake a review of the Theatres structure
Update: Will be reviewed when new Theatres Manager is in 
post 

March 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr 

Tudalen 112



7

Action When by By Who

Service Head

Develop plans for new Llanelli Wellness Hub (Leisure 
Centre) as part of Wellness village and life sciences hub at 
Delta Lakes

March 2021 HOS

Assist with delivery of Parc Howard masterplan, working 
closely with Environment dept and key stakeholders

March 2018 HOS

Feed into Pendine local regeneration master plan, including 
provision for Museum of Speed, and Outdoor Recreation 

March 2018 HOS

Work with Environment Dept to implement Cycling Strategy 
for Carmarthenshire to include focus on: Events; 
Development and Infrastructure.

March 2018 HOS

Continue to invest time in regional collaboration and 
working.

March 2018 HOS / Leisure 
Managers

Deliver Cycling infrastructure schemes at:
- Closed Circuit track facility (location tbc)
- Assist with Tywi Valley cycleway scheme

May 2018 HOS / Business 
& Projects 
Manager

Business and Project Manager 

Manage Workplace health champion to effect change in 
physical activity levels of staff and adults on a sustainable 
basis

March 2018 Business & 
Projects 
Manager

Pro-active H&S management with ongoing site / service 
reviews throughout the year  

March 2018 Business & 
Projects 
Manager

Work with TIC (efficiency) team and Service managers to 
effect improvements in service delivery and performance 
across the Leisure division. 

March 2018 Business & 
Projects 
Manager

Complete Carmarthen Park Velodrome Project in 
conjunction with Carmarthen Town Council.

Summer 2017 Business & 
Projects 
Manager

Outdoor Recreation Services 

Work with Environment Dept. to undertake full dredge of 
Burry Port Harbour and develop a programme of works to 
repair the listed harbour walls

December  
2017

Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

Review role of Rights of way maintenance unit as part of 
wider grounds maintenance review within the Environment 
dept.  

March 2018 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

3. Draft Strategic Service Priorities 2017/18

Tudalen 113



8

Review outdoor events strategy for the County, linking with 
Tourism, co-ordinating the bid to stage Grand Depart of 
Tour of Britain Cycle Race 2018 

March 2018 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

Development of £160k Carmarthen Wetlands gateway 
scheme with colleagues from Regeneration team

March 2018 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

Complete £2m capital investment into Pembrey Country 
Park, to include:

- Upgraded comms links to PCP
- New Restaurant and activity centre
- New shower and toilet block
- New automated entrance barrier system
- New and upgraded caravan and campsite pitch 

layout (including automated booking system)

March 2018 Senior Outdoor 
Recreation Mgr

Sports and Leisure services 

Create and launch new Actif website with enhanced digital 
capability to join and book a wide range of facilities and 
products seamlessly.

October 2017 Snr S&L Mgr

Establish and embed a leadership academy for Sport & 
Leisure volunteers and staff so that all are fully supported 
and developed.

December 
2017

Snr S&L Mgr

Progress with site masterplans for Carmarthen, Ammanford 
and Pembrey Ski & Activity Centres to maximise activity 
and income generating opportunities.

March 2018 Snr S&L Mgr

Review and launch an overhauled suite of party packages 
and a progressive term-time activity programme for children 
that puts a pathway in place to develop the physical literacy 
of future generations.

November 
2017

Snr S&L Mgr

Review and implement an improved pathway of aquatics 
provision that enables participants to reach their full 
potential.

December 
2017

Snr S&L Mgr

Create and implement an ‘Actif Accreditation’ quality 
assurance mark for community sports clubs in order to 
analyse and strengthen the sporting infrastructure.

September 
2018

Snr S&L Mgr

Ensure a range of targeted physical activity interventions 
are put in place across the life course to increase the 
activity levels of those who are inactive or at risk of 
becoming inactive.

March 2018 Snr S&L Mgr

Complete legal agreements with:
- Llandysul Canoe Centre; 
- NCE Pool 

October 2017 Snr S&L Mgr

Tudalen 114



9

Culture Services 

Ensure Y Ffwrnes Social Enterprise areas are fully 
occupied

Sept 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Review new mobile Library provision Sept 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Appoint new Archives Development Manager Oct 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Agree new Museums strategy and improvement plan July 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Progress ACW funded scheme looking at re-development 
of Oriel Myrddin  

March 2018 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Progress HLF funded Tywi Gateway scheme at 
Carmarthen Museum 

March 2018 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr

Progress with building of new Archive facility at the rear of 
Carmarthen Library 

March 2018 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr 

Develop Heritage 6 digital project as part of master plan for 
Parc Howard Museum in conjunction with user group and 
Environment dept

Dec 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr 

Appoint new Theatres Development Manager and 
undertake a review of the Theatres structure 

Sept 2017 Snr Cultural 
Services Mgr 

2016-17 has proved to be another busy and productive year for the division, set against the 
backdrop of a difficult financial position. The staff within the service have been dedicated and 
professional and huge credit must go to them in terms of moving the service forward, often as 
sector leaders. 

The unit looks forward to working with members to plan and deliver quality leisure services for its 
residents again in 2017-18.

4. Summary & Conclusion 

Tudalen 115



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU 
30ain O FAWRTH 2017 

 
 

Gweithredu’r Ddull Vanguard 
 

 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 

 Ystyried sut y mae’r fethodoleg ‘Vanguard / Meddwl trwy Systemau’ yn gweithredu a 
sut y defnyddiwyd o fewn yr Is-Adran Tai a Diogelu’r Cyhoedd ac ardaloedd eraill er 
mwyn gwella y ddarpariaeth o wasanaethau i denantiaid y Cyngor.   

 

Rhesymau:  
 

 Fe wnaeth y Pwyllgor wneud cais am yr eitem yma yn ei gyfarfod ar yr 20fed o 
Orffennaf 2016, ac mi fydd yn darparu gwybodaeth i aelodau ar y gweithredu o’r 
adolygiad System Vanguard a ddefnyddiwyd gan yr Is-Adran Tai a Diogelu’r Cyhoedd 
i werthuso ei berfformiad o ran gosod tai ac ail-ddefnyddio tai gwag y Cyngor.   

 

 

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud 
penderfyniad: NAC OES 
 

 

 

Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio: Cyng. Linda Evans (Tai)  
 

 

 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Cymunedau  

 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Robin Staines  

 

 

Awdur yr adroddiad: 

Jon Owen  

 

 

Swyddi: 

 

 

 

Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu’r 

Cyhoedd 

 

 

Rheolwr y Rhaglen TIC  

 

Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

 

 

 

01267 228960 

rstaines@sirgar.gov.uk  

 

 

01267 224522 

jowen@sirgar.gov.uk  

 

 
  

Tudalen 117

Eitem Rhif  8

mailto:rstaines@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:jowen@sirgar.gov.uk


 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
30th MARCH 2017 

 
 

Operation of the Vanguard Method 
 

 

What is the Vanguard method and how has it been used in Carmarthenshire? 
 

 The Vanguard method is an approach now being used widely across the public 
sector as organisations seek ways of responding to the on-going challenges of 
shrinking financial resources and ever increasing service demands and expectations. 

 The methodology and approach provides opportunities to create sustainable and 
transformational change in organisations through re-designing their services around 
the needs of the customer. 

 As the method requires organisations to ‘think’ differently about how their deliver 
services and usually involves all levels of the organisation in this process; it also 
provides a powerful opportunity to create long term cultural and behavioural change 
within those organisations. 

 Vanguard are an external consultancy who were initially engaged by 
Carmarthenshire in 2012 to support a service improvement initiative in the housing 
voids service. However, it was quickly recognised that this was a way of working that 
could be used to underpin the principles and approach being adopted via the 
Council’s newly launched TIC (Transform, Innovate and Change) Programme. 

 The Vanguard method also involves the transfer of skills and building of capacity 
within in-house resources so that the method can be deployed to other parts of the 
organisations in a sustainable manner. Following two further interventions with 
support from Vanguard, the approach has subsequently been rolled out to other 
parts of the organisation via the Council’s TIC Team. 

 To date, the team has supported on over 12 Vanguard style reviews across the 
authority which have realised significant benefits in terms of improvements to both 
the quality and efficiency of those services.  

 
 
What does it look to achieve? 
 

 Key to the Vanguard approach is ‘understanding the needs of your customer’ and 
then designing services  ‘to best meet those needs’ 

 

 Doing ‘what matters to the customer’ and ‘doing those things ‘right first time’, 
improves the customer experience and quality of service, but costs can  also reduce 
as time is not being spent dealing with customer queries/complaints and undertaking 
unnecessary re-work.  

 
 

Tudalen 118



 

• The Vanguard method also requires managers and their teams to undergo a 

‘normative’ experience, and in particular to experience the service from a customer 

perspective.   This is an important stage in the process, as it helps staff to understand 

the need for change, so that they are then in a better position to develop and implement 

new ways of working. 

 
What is the theory underpinning the approach? 
 
• The method was invented by the occupational psychologist, John Seddon, who 

began his career researching the reasons for failures of major change programmes. 
Based on what he learned, he developed this method for change, which he describes 
as a combination of ‘systems thinking’ “understanding how work works” - and 
intervention theory – “how to change it". 

 
• The Vanguard method encourages organisations to challenge their ‘thinking’ about 

the way services are designed and delivered, as  a radical change of thinking is 
usually required to deliver fundamental, sustainable change in these services. 

 
 

                                                Thinking 
 
 
                                                System 
 
                                       
                                              Performance 
 
 
How does it work in practice? 
 
Vanguard interventions usually involve 3 stages : 
 

1) ‘Check’-  to understand how the service is currently operating and why it’s 
working in that way. 

2) Redesign – involves a test/experiment of new ways of working 
3) Roll-in – new way of working is made normal across the service. 

 
The most important part of the process is usually the ‘check’ stage – this usually 
involves groups of managers and staff who are encouraged to speak to staff and 
customers to find how the service is ‘actually’ operating, rather than how they ‘think’ it is 
operating. 
 
The ‘check’ stage will aim to establish the following : 
 

 What is the purpose of this service in customer terms? 

 What are customers asking of us (demands) and how often? 

 How well are we responding to these demands? 

 What is the flow of the work? How much is value and how much in the process is 
waste? 

 What are causes of the waste (system conditions)? 

 What was the thinking that created these system conditions? 

Tudalen 119

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Occupational_Psychology
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/John_Seddon
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Systems_thinking
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Intervention_theory


 

 
The outcomes of the check are usually the production of a new ‘purpose’ for the service 
and key operating principles that will underpin the development of some new ways of 
working which the service may want to test (re-design) before rolling in (making normal) 
across the rest of the service. 
 
Impact in Carmarthenshire 
 

 This approach and methodology is a significant move away from the traditional 
approach to undertaking service improvement/efficiency projects within the authority. 
Although resource intensive in terms of staff and time commitment, it has been proved 
to work and deliver results across all of the services where it has been deployed. 

• Many of the staff involved in projects which have adopted this approach have found 

the experience to be highly motivating and rewarding. Some have also gone as far to 

say that they have found it to be to be liberating experience as it has provided an 

opportunity to challenge and review outdated processes and procedures which often 

compromised their ability to undertake their professional role.  

• Over 300 staff across the organisation have now some awareness or knowledge of the 

principles that underpin this approach through the work of the Transform Innovate and 

Challenge Programme and Team.  

• The approach has been adopted across 12 service areas in the Council to date and 

there is clear evidence to demonstrate that it is improving the quality of services 

delivered and enabling those services to be delivered in a more cost effective way. 

 
Case Studies – examples of where we have used this approach. 
 

1. Empty Council Properties (Voids) 
 
• Vanguard Consultancy was initially engaged to support a review of the housing voids 

service during 2012. We reviewed the process from having a set of keys returned 
from a tenant to them being handed over to the next tenant to identify what could be 
improved in the way we worked so that a new process could be designed. 

• A project team of officers from Housing Services, Building Services and our 
Customer Service Centres spent 5 days walking through the then process to see 
where there was waste and talking to existing and prospective tenants to see what 
matters to them.  

• They identified the purpose of the process, “To provide a home that suits my needs” 
and agreed which steps were crucial to the re-letting process and how to measure 
performance in an effective way.  
The Team designed a new simpler process which they tested on some new 
demands i.e. new empty Council properties for a period of 8 weeks. They then 
looked at what had been learnt, any problems, what had gone well and new 
performance measures so they could look at implementing the new process across 
all voids within the county. 

• A New Homes Team was established in June 2013 which is working to the new 
process on a county wide basis. Prospective tenants now view a property as soon as 
it becomes vacant and are supported to make choices regarding decoration and 
adaptations before they move in. They are also offered welfare advice. 

 

Tudalen 120



 

• This means a much better experience for our new tenants. We’re also not wasting 
time and money decorating the home, only for the new tenant to move in and 
redecorate it to their own taste. 

 
What impact has it had? 
 
• Overall average re-let times have dropped from 120 days pre review to 60 days. 

Standard void turnaround is now under 25 days and last year 23 properties were let 
within a day. Rent loss has been reduced by more than £500,000 in the 3 years 
following the review (2015/16). Trends are continuing to improve during the current 
year and year end data will be available in April 2017. 

• Last year around 50% of new tenants completed satisfaction surveys and 99% of 
them rated the service as good to excellent.  

 
• “Had property 3 days after viewing.”  
• “Service very good, very happy with help. Very helpful and very impressed.” 
•  “Provided a clean and safe house for my son and myself. Given me all the 

information I need to complete my tenancy agreement.”  
 
What does it mean to the Team? 
 
• “The experience of reviewing the service was challenging but has been immensely 

enjoyable.  Now that we are working in a new way it is great to be trusted to make 
our own decisions and to be able to use our initiative to meet tenant’s needs. It is 
really rewarding to hand over the keys to a property knowing you have met that 
person’s expectations and they are happy with their new home.” 

• The TIC Team supported a further review of the new process in November 2014 with 
the new Team to “check” whether or not it was still delivering what matters to new 
tenants. The New Homes Team also re-check their process on a regular basis and 
the Team is looking to implement some further changes to drive further 
improvements over the coming year. 

 
2. TIC Development Control Review 

 
• Committee Members were given a presentation about the TIC Programme and the 

work of the TIC Team at the committee meeting on 3rd November 2016 (link below) 
which highlighted a review of Development Control during June 2014. 

 
Community Scrutiny agenda and minutes 3.11.16 

 

• The key drivers for the review were to reduce the number of complaints/upheld being 
received and to improve quality and customer experience. 

• TIC supported a team to undertake a systems thinking review of the planning 
application process over 6 days during February 2014. The team included staff from 
administration, registration, planning officers, team leaders as well staff from 
enforcement, highways and transport.  They looked at the process from a customer 
experience from receipt of an application to notification of the decision and spoke to 
agents, applicants and Elected Members about what matters to them. 

• They learnt from previous applications – what worked and what didn’t and identified 
the service’s purpose, “To provide a clear and valued service to manage development 
in a timely and consistent manner”. They identified the value steps in the process – 
initial enquiry  case management   decision and realised the value in better 
communication both internally and with our customer and other stakeholders. 

Tudalen 121

http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=186&MId=451&Ver=4


 

 
• The team started work straightaway on some “quick wins” they had identified to 

improve case management and remove waste. A re-design team was set up in 
Llandeilo which pulled in internal and external reps from Transport, Streetscene, 
Conservation, Legal and Natural Resources Wales. They took a case by case 
approach testing new ways of working on different categories of application, learning 
each time. The new process focusing on pre-application advice and customer 
engagement was initially piloted in the Llandeilo from November 2014 and 
subsequently rolled out across the county. 

 
What impact has it had? 
 
• End to end times for planning applications have reduced by half. 
• The quality of applications has improved. 
• Complaints upheld/Refusals/appeals have all reduced.  
• Costs of the service reduced by over £65k. 
• Customers/agents and staff are happier with the new ways of working. 

• “Pleasure to deal with the officer, very helpful and he explained things clearly 
and responded quickly to my emails” 

• “The process was far quicker than I thought it would be” 
 

• A re-check of service undertaken in May 16. They found good progress made in 
respect of consistency, accessibility and quality of applications. They identified key 
risks impacting on service principles/performance.  E.g. Affordable housing 
requirement, new pre-application legislation and staffing levels. A Service 
Improvement Board has been put in place to manage risks and drive further 
improvement. 

 
TIC Programme 
 

• For further information about other TIC projects using the Vanguard approach, the 
link below leads to the TIC Programme Annual Report 2015/16 and Business Plan 
2016/17 presented to the Policy & Resources Committee on the 14th July 2016. 

 
Policy & Resources agenda and minutes 14.07.16 

 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 

 
NO 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 122

http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s7388/Summary.pdf
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=170&MId=442&Ver=4


 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
  
Signed:   Robin Staines         Head of Housing & Public Protection (TIC Head of Service Lead) 
 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE YES  NONE NONE NONE NONE 

 

 
3. Finance – The benefits of the TIC systems think approach are being realised as 
many of the projects have started to deliver significant improvements in terms of service 
quality, customer experience and financial efficiencies.  To date, the TIC approach has 
assisted in identifying, or is helping to deliver, approximately £6.4m of efficiency savings.   
     

 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
 
Signed:   Robin Staines         Head of Housing & Public Protection  
 

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

TRANSFORM, INNOVATE & 
CHANGE (TIC) - PROGRAMME 
UPDATE  
 

Community Scrutiny agenda and minutes 3.11.16 

TRANSFORM, INNOVATE & 
CHANGE (TIC) PROGRAMME 
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 
AND BUSINESS PLAN 2016/17  

Policy & Resources agenda and minutes 14.07.16 

 

Tudalen 123

http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=186&MId=451&Ver=4
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=170&MId=442&Ver=4


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU

Dydd Llun, 30 Ionawr 2017

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd D.M. Cundy (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: 
T. Devichand, J.K. Howell, S. Matthews, W.R.A. Davies, H.I. Jones, D. Tomos, 
G.B. Thomas, E.G. Thomas, J. Thomas, J.S. Edmunds (In place of S.L. Davies) and 
W.T. Evans (In place of J.M. Charles)

Hefyd yn bresennol:
Y Cynghorwyr L.M. Stephens, Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau Dynol, 
Effeithlonrwydd a Chydweithio

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:
L. Quelch, Y Pennaeth Cynllunio
I.R. Llewelyn, Rheolwr Blaen-gynllunio
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Siambr, 3 Heol Spilman, Caerfyrddin - 2.00  - 3.40 pm

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr J.M. Charles, S.L. 
Davies a H.B. Shepardson ac wrth y Cynghorydd M. Gravell (Yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd 
Gweithredol dros Adfywio a Hamdden).

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau o fuddiant personol.

3. DECLARATION OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch chwip waharddedig.

4. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW)

Nid oedd cwestiynau gan y cyhoedd wedi dod i law.

5. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL

Rhoddwyd y rhestr i'r Pwyllgor o'r eitemau a fyddai'n cael eu hystyried yn y 
cyfarfod oedd i'w gynnal ar 17 Chwefror, 2017. 

6. ADRODDIAD PERFFORMIAD BLYNYDDOL 2016 (CYNLLUNIO)

Yn unol â Chofnod 7 ei gyfarfod ar 3 Tachwedd, 2016, cafodd y Pwyllgor 
Adroddiad Perfformiad Blynyddol yr Is-adran Gynllunio ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng 
mis Ebrill 2015 a mis Mawrth 2016. Nodwyd bod llunio Adroddiad Perfformiad 
Blynyddol yn un o ofynion y Fframwaith Perfformiad Cynllunio a bod yn rhaid ei 
gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru erbyn 31 Hydref bob blwyddyn. Yn unol â'r gofyniad 
hwnnw, roedd yr Adroddiad Perfformiad Blynyddol presennol, sef yr ail i'w lunio 

Tudalen 125

Eitem Rhif  9.1



gan Sir Gaerfyrddin, wedi cael ei gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru erbyn y dyddiad 
gofynnol sef 31 Hydref 2016.   

Rhoddwyd sylw i'r cwestiynau/materion canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:- 
 Cyfeiriwyd at y ddarpariaeth yn y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol ar gyfer 

datblygiadau tai newydd ledled y sir, a cheisiwyd eglurhad ynghylch sut y 
gellid defnyddio Ardoll Seilwaith Cymunedol (CIL) roedd y Cyngor wedi ei 
mabwysiadu, ynghyd â llunio achos busnes, i gyllido darparu seilwaith 
priodol e.e. ysgolion, ffyrdd, a meddygfeydd i gefnogi'r datblygiadau hynny.  

Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor fod ymgynghori wedi digwydd, wrth lunio'r Cynllun 
Datblygu Lleol, ag amrywiaeth eang o gyrff cyhoeddus a phreifat ynghylch 
cynigion y Cynllun. Roedd yr ymgyngoriadau hynny wedi bod yn rhai dwy 
ffordd ac wedi cael eu defnyddio i ganfod cynigion datblygu y cyrff hynny yn 
y dyfodol a sut y byddent yn clymu i mewn i'r cynllun ac i asesu unrhyw 
oblygiadau posibl o ran seilwaith. O ran cyllido prosiectau seilwaith 
mawrion, drwy fabwysiadu CIL o bosibl, cadarnhawyd er bod y Cyngor yn 
dal i gasglu gwybodaeth i'r diben hwnnw, pe câi ei mabwysiadu, byddai 
angen i'r Cyngor fod yn fwy penodol ynghylch y math o seilwaith oedd ei 
angen yn y sir. Byddai angen seilio hynny ar dystiolaeth a chynnwys costau 
posibl, ac roedd trafodaethau â chyrff allanol ac adrannau mewnol y Cyngor 
yn hollbwysig i'r broses honno. 

 Cyfeiriwyd at y ddarpariaeth gynllunio yn y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol ar gyfer 
codi rhyw 280 o dai yn Ward yr Hendy, a'r anawsterau presennol a gaed yn 
y Ward honno o ganlyniad.  Roedd yr anawsterau'n cynnwys bod y 
feddygfa leol yn llawn a bod problemau cydnabyddedig o ran priffyrdd yn y 
pentref ac ar ffordd ymuno/ymadael yr M4. Gofynnwyd a ellid lliniaru effaith 
datblygiadau mawr ar gymunedau, fel yr Hendy, drwy 
gymeradwyo/gweithredu datblygiadau cynllunio fesul cam dros gyfnod o 
flynyddoedd.  

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Blaengynllunio er bod y Cyngor wedi cynnwys Polisi 
Fesul Cyfnod yn y Fersiwn Drafft o'r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol, nad oedd yr 
Arolygydd Cynllunio, wrth ei archwilio, wedi derbyn y polisi a'i fod wedi 
gorchymyn i'r polisi gael ei dynnu allan oherwydd bernid bod ganddo'r 
potensial i leihau datblygu.   Fodd bynnag, wrth baratoi a llunio'r ail Gynllun 
Datblygu Lleol, gellid cyfeirio at y sefyllfa yn yr Hendy fel enghraifft i gefnogi 
Polisi Fesul Cyfnod.  

 Cyfeiriwyd ymhellach at y 280 o dai oedd wedi eu dyrannu ar gyfer yr 
Hendy, a'r 700 a mwy o dai oedd wedi eu dyrannu ar gyfer cymuned 
gyfagos Pontarddulais yn Ninas a Sir Abertawe. Mynegwyd safbwynt y dylid 
cynnal mwy o drafodaethau trawsffiniol ynghylch yr effaith y gallai 
datblygiadau yn ardal un awdurdod lleol ei chael ar awdurdod lleol oedd yn 
ffinio ag ef. 

Gan ymateb, dywedodd y Pennaeth Cynllunio er bod yr Awdurdod mewn 
cysylltiad  ag awdurdodau lleol cyfagos ynghylch paratoi eu Cynlluniau 
Datblygu Lleol nhw ac yn ceisio dylanwadu ar bolisïau eu cynlluniau lle bo'n 
bosibl, roedd y cysylltiad hwnnw ar lefel ymgynghorol yn unig a'r awdurdod 
lleol perthnasol fyddai'n gwneud y penderfyniadau ar ddiwedd y dydd. Fodd 
bynnag, pe câi cynigion presennol Llywodraeth Cymru eu rhoi ar waith, 
byddai angen mabwysiadu ymagwedd fwy rhanbarthol, strategol a 

Tudalen 126



thrawsffiniol at gynllunio o ran materion fel priffyrdd a thai. Gallai hynny 
arwain at Sir Gaerfyrddin yn ffurfio rhanbarth gyda Chastell-nedd Port 
Talbot a Dinas a Sir Abertawe. 

 Cyfeiriwyd at y pryderon a godwyd yn gynharach ynghylch yr effaith bosibl y 
gallai datblygu tua 1,000 o dai yn ardaloedd yr Hendy/Pontarddulais ei 
chael ar y gymuned leol. Mynegwyd pryderon tebyg mewn perthynas ag 
ardaloedd Llangennech/Llwynhendy/Bynea a Throstre o ran y 1,000+ o dai 
oedd wedi eu dyrannu ar gyfer yr ardaloedd hynny. Roedd y pryderon 
hynny'n ymwneud ag effaith bosibl y datblygiadau ar seilwaith yr ardaloedd, 
a sut y gellid cyllido gwelliannau i'r seilwaith drwy Gytundeb Adran 106, 
neu, o bosibl, drwy CIL. Hefyd nodwyd bod dyraniad y Cynllun Datblygu 
Lleol ar gyfer tai newydd ledled Sir Gaerfyrddin dros gyfnod y cynllun yn 
dod i gyfanswm o 15,921, a gallai hynny roi bod i oblygiadau seilwaith ar 
draws y sir. 

Cydnabu'r Rheolwr Blaengynllunio fod darpariaeth y cynllun yn sylweddol a 
rhoddodd sicrwydd fod yr adran gynllunio yn ymwybodol o'r tueddiadau 
oedd yn codi ac y byddent yn cael sylw yn Adroddiadau Monitro Blynyddol y 
Cynllun Datblygu Lleol yn y dyfodol, er mwyn asesu a oedd dyheadau'r 
Cynllun yn cael eu cyflawni. O ran cyllido prosiectau seilwaith, cyfeiriodd at 
y drafodaeth flaenorol ynghylch cyfyngiadau cyllid Adran 106, gan ei fod yn 
benodol i ddatblygiad, a'r gwaith oedd yn cael ei wneud ar fabwysiadu CIL 
er mwyn darparu cyllid ar gyfer prosiectau seilwaith ledled y sir. 

 Soniwyd y byddai Strategaeth Gymunedol Integredig 2011-2016 yn cael ei 
disodli yn 2017 gan Ddeddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015, 
a fyddai'n dod i rym yn 2018. Mynegwyd pryder ynghylch yr amserlenni 
uchod a'r posibilrwydd y gallai rhai o ddarpariaethau'r Strategaeth 'lithro 
drwy'r rhwyd' yn ystod y cyfnod trosglwyddo. 

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Blaengynllunio er y byddai bwlch rhwng diwedd y 
Strategaeth Gymunedol Integredig a gweithrediad y Cynlluniau Llesiant 
newydd, ei bod yn bwysig cynnal y cysylltiad â'r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol, ac 
roedd y trafodaethau â'r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus yn parhau er 
mwyn sicrhau bod y ddau gynllun craidd hyn yn dal i gyd-fynd â'i gilydd. 

 Cyfeiriwyd at sut oedd y polisïau cynllunio presennol yn cyfyngu ar y gallu i 
ganiatáu cartrefi newydd i ffermwyr/estyniadau i ffermdai presennol er 
mwyn galluogi ffermwyr ifanc i fyw ar y fferm, a holwyd a oedd unrhyw 
ffyrdd y gallai'r Cyngor helpu'r ffermwyr hynny i aros ar y fferm. 

Dywedodd y Pennaeth Cynllunio er bod polisïau presennol y cyngor yn 
darparu ar gyfer cynllunio ar gyfer olyniaeth ac y dylai ffermwyr drafod â 
swyddogion cynllunio i'r perwyl hwnnw, fod y Cyngor yn gorfod dilyn 
Polisïau Cynlluniau Cenedlaethol Llywodraeth Cymru. Er mwyn 
newid/dylanwadu ar y polisïau hynny, byddai angen cyflwyno dadleuon 
rhesymedig wedi eu seilio ar dystiolaeth. Er y gallai'r dystiolaeth honno gael 
ei chasglu gan swyddogion mewn ymgynghoriad ag awdurdodau eraill i 
asesu a oeddent yn dod ar draws anawsterau tebyg, os oedd unrhyw 
newidiadau'n mynd i ddigwydd byddai hefyd yn fuddiol pe bai sylwadau 
tebyg yn cael eu gwneud ar lefel aelod etholedig/gweinidog. Fodd bynnag 
dywedodd, er bod yn rhaid ystyried Polisïau Cynllunio Cenedlaethol, fod 
cyfle o bosibl i gyflwyno polisïau lleol addasedig fel rhan o'r Cynllun 
Datblygu Lleol diwygiedig. Serch hynny, unwaith eto, byddai angen 

Tudalen 127



cyfiawnhau unrhyw ddiwygiad o'r fath o ran polisi drwy gyflwyno dadl 
resymedig wedi ei seilio ar dystiolaeth. 

Gan ymateb i awgrym, cadarnhaodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol â 
chyfrifoldeb dros y portffolio cynllunio y byddai'n ysgrifennu at Gymdeithas 
Llywodraeth Leol Cymru i dynnu sylw at y mater uchod ac i ofyn i'r 
Gymdeithas gyflwyno sylwadau i Lywodraeth Cymru.

 Gan ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch y posibilrwydd o ddyrannu lleiniau 
ychwanegol mewn cymunedau gwledig i helpu pobl ifanc leol i aros yn y 
gymuned, dywedodd y Pennaeth Cynllunio, yn yr un modd â'r drafodaeth 
flaenorol, fod gallu'r Adran wedi'i gyfyngu gan bolisïau cenedlaethol, ond 
bod cyfle o bosibl, fel rhan o'r paratoadau i lunio'r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol 
diwygiedig, i ymchwilio i'r mater. Fodd bynnag, byddai angen i unrhyw 
newidiadau awgrymedig/arfaethedig i bolisïau presennol gael eu hategu 
gan ddadl wedi ei seilio ar dystiolaeth. I'r perwyl hwnnw, roedd yr Is-adran 
Dai yn cynnal asesiad ar hyn o bryd o angen gwledig, a allai fod o gymorth 
o ran darparu'r dystiolaeth honno. 

 Gan ymateb i gwestiwn am yr amser a gymerid i droi swyddfeydd yn llety 
preswyl yng nghanol trefi, yr oedd honiad y gallai gymryd 18-24 mis, 
dywedodd y Pennaeth Cynllunio y gallai nifer o ffactorau effeithio ar 
benderfyniadau ynghylch ceisiadau o'r fath e.e. diffyg cyfleusterau/diffyg 
lleoedd parcio ac ati. Fodd bynnag roedd y Cyngor yn ceisio cyflymu'r 
broses drwy gyflwyno Gorchmynion Datblygu Lleol ac ar hyn o bryd roedd 
Gorchymyn Peilot ar gyfer Cyngor Tref Llanelli yn destun proses wleidyddol 
y Cyngor. Os bydd y peilot yn llwyddiannus, gellid ei gyflwyno i ardaloedd 
eraill yn y sir. 

PENDERFYNWYD
6.1 bod yr adroddiad yn cael ei dderbyn.
6.2 bod yr Adroddiad Perfformiad Blynyddol nesaf yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r 

Pwyllgor i'w ystyried cyn ei gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru 

7. ADRODDIAD MONITRO BLYNYDDOL 2015/16 - CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL 
SIR GAERFYRDDIN

Yn unol â Chofnod 8 ei gyfarfod ar 3 Tachwedd, 2016, cafodd y Pwyllgor, i'w 
ystyried ymhellach, Adroddiad Monitro Blynyddol 2015/16 am Gynllun Datblygu 
Lleol Sir Gaerfyrddin. 

Rhoddwyd sylw i'r cwestiynau/materion canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:- 
 Cyfeiriwyd at y dyraniad yn y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol, sef darparu 15,197 o 

unedau tai, a mynegwyd safbwynt bod angen ymchwilio i ffyrdd gwahanol o 
ddarparu'r tai hynny yn hytrach na pharhau i adeiladu tai newydd ar dir, a 
oedd yn adnodd yr oedd pen draw iddo. 

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Blaengynllunio nad tai newydd yn unig fyddai'r 15,197 
o unedau a bod sawl dull arall y gellid eu defnyddio e.e. addasu eiddo 
preswyl mawr yn unedau llai, addasu adeiladau diwydiannol/swyddfeydd 
neu ailddechrau defnyddio eiddo preswyl gwag, sef arfer yr oedd Is-adran 
Dai y Cyngor wedi bod yn llwyddiannus iawn ynddo. 

 Gan ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch amrywiadau ar draws y sir o ran lefel y 
ddarpariaeth tai fforddiadwy mewn datblygiadau tai, dywedodd y Rheolwr 
Blaengynllunio fod y lefel yn dibynnu ar broffidioldeb datblygiad unigol. 

Tudalen 128



Cadarnhaodd y dylai lefel y ddarpariaeth adlewyrchu prisiau'r farchnad a 
bod angen ei hadolygu'n barhaus. 

PENDERFYNWYD derbyn yr adroddiad.

________________________ __________________
CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

Tudalen 129



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU

Dydd Gwener, 17 Chwefror 2017

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd E.G. Thomas (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: 
J.M. Charles, S.L. Davies, S. Matthews, W.R.A. Davies, H.I. Jones, D. Tomos, 
G.B. Thomas and M.J.A. Lewis (In place of J.K. Howell)

Hefyd yn bresennol:
Y Cynghorwyr L.D. Evans, Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Tai

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:
W. Walters, Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol (Adfywio a Pholisi)
R. Staines, Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd
I. Jones, Pennaeth Hamdden
H. Morgan, Rhelowr Datblygu Economaidd
J. Edwards, Y Pennaeth Cynllunio Integredig
S. Walters, Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd
A. Thomas, Prif Gyfrifydd
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Siambr, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin - 10.00  - 10.35 am

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr D. Cundy, T. 
Devichand, J.K. Howell a H.B Shepardson.

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau o fuddiant personol.

3. DECLARATION OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch chwip waharddedig.

4. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW)

Nid oedd cwestiynau gan y cyhoedd wedi dod i law.

5. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL

Rhoddwyd rhestr i'r Pwyllgor o'r eitemau a fyddai'n cael eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
oedd i'w gynnal ar 30 Mawrth, 2017.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad. 

6. ADDRODIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB CYFALAF A REFENIW 2016/17

Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i'r Adroddiadau Monitro ynghylch Cyllideb Refeniw 
a Chyllideb Gyfalaf 2016/17 ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau Tai, Adfywio, Cynllunio a 

Tudalen 131

Eitem Rhif  9.2



Hamdden am y cyfnod hyd at 31 Rhagfyr 2016. Nododd y rhagwelid gorwariant o 
£122k yn y gyllideb refeniw, tanwariant o £9.297m yn y gyllideb gyfalaf a 
gorwariant o £392k yn y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai. 

Codwyd y materion canlynol wrth ystyried yr adroddiad:-

 Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch y gorwariant rhagamcanol o £56k mewn 
perthynas â chyfleuster Un Sir Gâr yn Llanelli, a hynny oherwydd bod yr 
incwm yn llai na'r disgwyl, cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol fod 
swyddogion yn ystyried ffyrdd o gynyddu'r ffrwd incwm.

 Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch y sefyllfa bresennol o ran cynllun maes 
parcio Talacharn, cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol fod oedi 
oherwydd bod angen cynnal rhagor o brofion halogi pridd. Cadarnhawyd y 
byddai'r cynllun yn cael ei roi ar waith, ar hyn o bryd, yn unol â'r gyllideb ac 
y byddai cronfa wrth gefn y cynllun yn talu am unrhyw gostau ychwanegol. 

 Cyfeiriwyd at yr ymarfer ymgynghori ynghylch y gyllideb refeniw a 
gynhaliwyd yn ddiweddar a'r effaith bosibl ar ddarparu gwasanaethau yng 
nghyfleusterau hamdden y Cyngor. Gofynnwyd am eglurhad hefyd 
ynghylch a oedd y tanwariant cyfalaf presennol i'w briodoli i ddiffyg 
buddsoddiad yn y gwasanaethau hynny i ddenu defnyddwyr gwasanaeth 
ychwanegol.

Dywedodd y Pennaeth Hamdden fod y tanwariant presennol o £2,316m o 
ran y rhaglen cyfalaf hamdden i'w briodoli i lithriant, a bod rhai cynlluniau 
heb ddechrau eto, a dywedodd y byddai unrhyw ddyraniad nas gwariwyd yn 
cael ei gario ymlaen i'r flwyddyn ariannol nesaf. Mewn perthynas â'r 
gorwariant refeniw, roedd hynny i'w briodoli'n rhannol i ostyngiad yn yr 
incwm ym mhrif ganolfannau hamdden yr Awdurdod yng Nghaerfyrddin a 
Llanelli tra oedd gwaith cyfalaf yn cael ei wneud i wella'r cyfleusterau hynny. 
Mewn perthynas â chyfleusterau hamdden llai yr Awdurdod, y gobaith oedd 
y gallai Canolfan Hamdden Sanclêr aros ar agor, gan fuddsoddi mewn 
cyfleusterau eraill wrth i gyllid ddod ar gael. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod yr adroddiad ynghylch Monitro 
Cyllideb Refeniw a Chyllideb Gyfalaf 2016/17 yn cael ei dderbyn.

7. ADRODDIAD MONITRO PERFFORMIAD CYNLLUN GWELLA 2016/17 
CWARTER 3 - 1AF EBRILL I'R 31AIN RHAGFYR, 2016

Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i'r Adroddiad Monitro Perfformiad Cynllun Gwella 
2016/17 - Chwarter 3 am y cyfnod 1 Ebrill 2016 tan 31 Rhagfyr 2016.

Rhoddwyd sylw i'r materion canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:-
 Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch Cam Gweithredu 12153 a'r cyfeiriad at 

anawsterau recriwtio staff addas, cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr 
Cynorthwyol fod swyddog wedi'i benodi'n ddiweddar a bod y broblem 
bellach wedi cael ei datrys.

 Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch Cam Gweithredu 12173, cadarnhaodd y 
Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol pan fyddai’r Cyngor yn rhoi grantiau i 
sefydliadau allanol y byddai angen i ymgeiswyr llwyddiannus sicrhau bod 
Polisi Iaith Gymraeg ar waith cyn derbyn unrhyw grant, a hynny fel rhan o 
bolisi i hyrwyddo defnydd y Gymraeg.

Tudalen 132



PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad. 

8. MESURAU PERFFORMIAD Y GWASANAETHAU TAI

Yn dilyn cofnod 7 o'i gyfarfod ar 20 Gorffennaf 2016 cafodd y Pwyllgor adroddiad 
ynghylch Fframwaith Perfformiad y Gwasanaethau Tai oedd yn rhoi enghreifftiau o 
wybodaeth perfformiad a sut roedd hynny'n cefnogi cyfeiriad strategol a phrif 
amcanion y Cyngor. Nodwyd er bod yr adroddiad yn rhoi dwy enghraifft o fesur 
perfformiad mewn perthynas ag Astudiaeth Effaith ar Iechyd (Atodiad 1) a 
Chyngor/Dewisiadau Tai (Atodiad 2), fod Is-adran y Gwasanaethau Tai yn casglu 
dros 150 darn o ddata yn rheolaidd a oedd yn cynnwys:-

- Adroddiadau ystadegol a dangosyddion perfformiad cenedlaethol i 
Lywodraeth Cymru; 

- Prif amcanion perfformiad sy'n cefnogi'r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Lleol;
- Dangosyddion Perfformiad sy'n gysylltiedig â'r Cynllun Gwella a'r 

Strategaeth Integredig;
- Data at ddibenion craffu gwleidyddol; 
- Data i reoli'r busnes;
- Data i asesu cydymffurfiaeth gyfreithiol e.e. Digartrefedd a Safonau Tai.

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd, wrth gyfeirio at yr enghreifftiau 
a nodwyd yn atodiadau'r adroddiad, y gellid darparu data perfformiad mwy manwl 
ynghylch unrhyw faes penodol o weithgarwch yr Is-adran, petai'r Pwyllgor yn 
dymuno hynny.

Rhoddwyd sylw i'r materion canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:-
 Mewn ymateb i ddatganiad y Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd uchod, 

mynegwyd barn y dylid cyflwyno data perfformiad mwy manwl i'r Pwyllgor 
ynghylch ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol, darparu cyngor cywir ac amserol 
ynghylch tai, a digartrefedd.

 Mewn ymateb i gais am eglurhad ynghylch y data a ddarparwyd yn Atodiad 
2, cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd y byddai'n edrych ar 
hwn a rhoi manylion i'r Aelodau ynghylch y cwymp a gofnodwyd o ran 
bodlonrwydd cwsmeriaid yn ystod y cyfnod Ionawr - Mawrth 2016.

 Cyfeiriodd y Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd at effaith eang y 
gwelliannau a wnaed i stoc tai'r Cyngor. Roedd y rheiny'n cynnwys 
gostyngiad yn nifer y ceisiadau gan denantiaid am wasanaethau, rhoi sylw i 
dlodi tanwydd a gallu tenantiaid i dalu biliau cyfleustodau rheolaidd megis 
trydan, dŵr a nwy a hefyd astudiaethau a gynhaliwyd gan Brifysgol 
Caerdydd a Phrifysgol Abertawe mewn perthynas â gwerth y gwelliannau i'r 
Gwasanaeth Iechyd o ran llai o alw dros y cyfnod 2009-2016.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL:

8.1 Derbyn yr adroddiad
8.2 Bod adroddiadau'n cael eu cyflwyno yn ystod cyfarfodydd 

yn y dyfodol ynghylch Data Perfformiad sydd wedi'i gasglu 
gan Is-adran y Gwasanaethau Tai mewn perthynas ag 
ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol, darparu cyngor cywir ac 
amserol ynghylch tai, a digartrefedd.

9. EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO A CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIADAU CRAFFU

Tudalen 133



Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried yr eglurhad a roddwyd ynghylch peidio â chyflwyno 
adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi'r adroddiad nad oedd wedi'i 
gyflwyno.

10. DIWEDDARAF AM WEITHREDIADAU AC ATGYFEIRIADAU'R PWYLLGOR 
CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU

Cafodd y Pwyllgor adroddiad a fanylai ar y cynnydd o ran y camau gweithredu, y 
ceisiadau, neu'r atgyfeiriadau oedd wedi deillio o'i gyfarfodydd blaenorol:

Trafodwyd y mater canlynol wrth ystyried yr adroddiad:-
 Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen arfaethedig 

mewn perthynas ag adeiladau gwag mawr sy'n anharddu canol trefi, 
dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor fod y mater yn cael sylw gan Dasglu Rhydaman i 
ddechrau.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad. 

11. LLOFNODI YN GOFNODAU CYWIR, COFNODION Y PWYLLGOR A 
GYNHALIWYD AR Y 20FED IONAWR 2017

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor 
oedd wedi ei gynnal ar 20 Ionawr 2017 gan eu bod yn gywir.

________________________ __________________
CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

Tudalen 134


	Agenda
	5 GORCHYMYN DATBLYGU LLEOL DRAFFT – CANOL TREF LLANELLI
	Datganiad o Rhesymau
	Atodiad

	6 ADRAN CYMUNEDAU GYNLLUN BUSNES YR ADRAN AM 2017-2020
	Adroddiad

	7 DIWEDDARIAD BLYNYDDOL: GWASANAETHAU HAMDDEN
	Adroddiad

	8 GWEITHREDU'R DDULL VANGUARD
	9.1 30AIN IONAWR 2017
	9.2 17EG CHWEFROR 2017

